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National Industries Group Holding K.PS.C. (later referred to as the “Issuer’, the "Group’, the “Company” or "NIGH") is a Kuwaiti Public
Shareholding Company established by Amiri Decree No. 8/1960 on 10 August 1960 and registered with the Commercial Register under No.
8392 on 23 April 2003, and listed on Boursa Kuwait (later referred to as "Boursa Kuwait”) since 29 September 1984 with an authorized capital
of KD 300,000,000 and its source and paid-up capital is 149,923,801.400 Kuwaiti Dinars.

This Prospectus contains information on the 524,733,305 ordinary shares to be issued by the Issuer at an offer price of 200 fils (two hundred
Kuwaiti fils) per share (representing the nominal value of 100 fils plus a share issuance premium of 100 fils) (hereafter referred to as “Shares’,
"Issue Shares” or"Offering Shares”) with a total nominal value of KD 52,473,330.5 (fifty two million, four hundred and seventy-three thousand,
three hundred and thirty thousand Kuwaiti Dinars and five-hundred Kuwaiti fils) and a total value after adding the share issuance premium of
KD 104,946,661 (one hundred and four million, nine hundred and forty-six thousand and six hundred and sixty one Kuwait Dinars).

Registered shareholders (also referred to as "Qualified Shareholders” or “Subscribers’, as required by the context of the text) shall be listed
in KCC's shareholders> register (later referred to as the "Clearing and Deposit Agent”) on the record day specified at 28 March 2022 (later
referred to as the "Record Date"), the preemption right to subscribe to the shares of the offering at the rate of their respective shares (later
referred to as the "Preemption Right”).

The issuance of new shares was approved by the decision of the Board of Directors of the Issuer issued on 30 January 2022 on the basis
of the extraordinary general assembly decision to issue new shares dated 20 December 2021, which authorized the Board of Directors to
increase the issued capital within the authorized limits and was published in the Official Gazette, issue number 1567 dated 2 January 2022 and
annotated by the Commercial Register of the Issuer at the Ministry of Commerce and Industry on 11 January 2022. The Issuer also obtained the
approval of the Kuwaiti Capital Markets Authority to increase capital and issue shares on the date of 24 February 2022 and on this Prospectus
dated 10 March 2022.

The subscription period begins from and includes 3 April 2022 (the “Subscription Period”) and ends at the end of 21 April 2022 (which is
included in the Subscription Period). If the entire subscription of all the issue shares is covered before that date, the Issuer is then entitled to
suspend and close the Subscription Period before the expiration date. In the case the Offering is not fully subscribed for during the original
Subscription Period, the Board of Directors has the right to extend the Offering Period at its sole discretion for a period or other similar or lesser
periods as long as the total extension period does not exceed three (3) months and subject to obtaining the approval of the Capital Markets
Authority on such extension.

For the purposes of this Prospectus, the term “Business Day” means the day on which Boursa Kuwait carries out normal trading business, and
for the purposes of the subscription process, it must also be the day on which banks are open to conduct their public business in the State of
Kuwait (except for Fridays and Saturdays), and with the exception of public holidays.

This Prospectus is not considered an offer to sell or solicit any offer to buy securities in any legal system in which offering, or selling is not
permitted. In addition, investors’subscription to any of the securities referred to in this document must be based on the information contained
in this Prospectus exclusively.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

YOU ARE HEREBY ADVISED TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF AN ADVISOR LICENSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAW WHO SPECIALIZES IN
ADVISING ON THE CONTENT OF THIS PROSPECTUS PRIOR TO MAKING A DECISION TO SUBSCRIBE.

This Prospectus has been approved by the Kuwait Capital Markets Authority on 10 March 2022 and this Prospectus was prepared in accordance
with the Kuwait Capital Markets Law no. 7 of 2010 regarding the establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and the executive bylaws
thereto (each as amended). The members of the Board of Directors, whose names appear in the management section of this Prospectus,
collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of all information contained in this Prospectus relating to the Issuer and
the issue shares, and confirm, having made all reasonable enquires, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the
omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent accept full responsibility for the inaccuracy of any information and data contained in this
Prospectus and confirm that, having made all reasonable enquiries to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other material facts
and information omitted, and that the Prospectus has been drafted in accordance with information and data that correspond to reality. The
Issuer acknowledges that the necessary requirements and procedures have been met and all the required documents have been submitted
in this Prospectus and in accordance with the laws and executive regulations of the Capital Markets Authority.

The Issuer’s legal counsel confirms that it has reviewed the Prospectus and any related documents thereto as provided to them by the Issuer,
and that to the best of their knowledge and after having made all reasonable inquiries, the Prospectus complies with the relevant legal
requirements and that the Issuer has obtained the required approvals necessary in order for its obligations to be valid and enforceable.

The Kuwait Capital Markets Authority assumes no liability for the contents of this Prospectus, does not make any representation as to its
accuracy or completeness, and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of
this Prospectus.

This Prospectus is dated 10 March 2022

Lead Manager and Subscription Agent

ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE OFFICIAL ARABIC LANGUAGE PROSPECTUS




RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Individuals responsible for the prospectus

This Prospectus has been prepared by:

Name: Title: Address:
Ahmed Mohammed Hassan Chief Executive Officer National Industries Group
Holding K.P.S.C.

EACH OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE ISSUER, WHOSE NAMES APPEAR HEREIN, ACCEPTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS. TO THE BEST OF THE KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF OF
THE DIRECTORS, WHO HAVETAKEN ALL REASONABLE CARE AND CONDUCTED A FULL AND DETAILED DUE
DILIGENCETO ENSURE THAT SUCH ISTHE CASE, (1) THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS
COMPLETE, ACCURATE AND CORRECT, (Il) ALL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE SECURITIES AND TO THE
ISSUER HAVE BEEN DISCLOSED TO THE INVESTORS, SO THAT THE INVESTORS COULD TAKE A DECISION AS
TOWHETHER ORNOT TO SUBSCRIBETO THE ISSUE SHARES, AND (Il) THAT ALLTHE RELEVANT PROVISIONS
RELATING TO THE SECURITIES AS PROVIDED IN LAW NO. 7 OF 2010 REGARDING THE ESTABLISHMENT
OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS AUTHORITY AND REGULATING SECURITIES ACTIVITIES AND ITS EXECUTIVE
BYLAWS (AS AMENDED), AND MODULE ELEVEN OF THE EXECUTIVE BYLAWS OF THE IN LAW NO. 7 OF 2010
REGARDING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS AUTHORITY AND REGULATING SECURITIES
ACTIVITIES (AS AMENDED), AND THE COMPANIES LAW NO. 1 OF 2016 AND ITS EXECUTIVE BYLAWS AND
THE INSTRUCTIONS ISSUED BY THE CAPITAL MARKETS AUTHORITY FROM TIME TO TIME, HAVE BEEN
COMPLIED WITH.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Issuer

Name: Title: Signature:
Saad Mohammed Al-Saad Chairman A . \

e
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CONFIRMATIONS AND NOTICES OF THE ISSUER

This Prospectus contains information relating to National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C., the Offering
terms and conditions and the Issue Shares. The Issuer has not authorized the making or provision of any
representation orinformation regarding the Issuer, the Offering, or the Issue Shares other than as contained
in this Prospectus or as approved for such purpose by the Issuer. Any such representation or information
emanating from third parties should not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer, the Lead
Manager or the Subscription Agent named on the cover hereof.

While the Issuer has made all reasonable enquiries as to the accuracy of the information contained in
this Prospectus as at the date hereof, certain portions of the market and industry information herein are
derived from external sources, and while neither the Issuer, the Lead Manager, the Subscription Agent, nor
any of their respective advisors have any reason to believe that any of the market and industry information
is materially inaccurate, such information has not been independently verified and no representation is
made with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of this information.

The information contained in this Prospectus as at the date hereof is subject to change. In particular, the
actual financial state of the Issuer and the value of the shares in the Issuer may be adversely affected
by future developments in inflation, financing charges, taxation, or other economic, political, and other
factors, over which the Issuer has no control. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any oral, written,
or printed interaction in relation to the Issue Shares is intended to be or should be construed as or relied
upon in any way as, a promise or representation as to future earnings, results, or events.

In any event, the information contained in this Prospectus related to the Issuer or issue of shares shall not
be considered correct at any time after the date of this Prospectus. The Lead Manager and Subscription
Agent shall not be obliged to review the financial position or the status of the Issuer or to advise any
investor about the shares or regarding any information that comes to their knowledge regarding the
aforementioned or the absence of a change in the financial position or the status of any party whose name
is mentioned in this Prospectus after its date.

This Prospectus is not to be regarded as a recommendation on the part of the Issuer, the Lead Manager,
and the Subscription Agent or any of their advisers or affiliates to participate in the Offering. The
information provided herein is of a general nature and has been prepared without taking into account
any potential investors’ investment objectives, financial situation or particular investment needs. Neither
this Prospectus nor any other information contained therein in connection with the issue of shares is
intended to provide a basis for granting credit facilities or undertaking any other financing operations.
Each recipient of this Prospectus (before taking any investment decision) is responsible for obtaining his
own independent professional advice from a person licensed by Kuwait Capital Markets Authority (“CMA”")
in relation to the Issuer, the Offering terms and conditions or the Issue Shares and for making his/her
own independent evaluation of the Issuer, an investment in the Issue Shares and of the information and
assumptions contained herein, using such advice, analysis, and projections as he/she deems necessary in
making any investment decision. Prospective investors are not to construe the contents of this document
as constituting tax, investment, or legal advice.

Prior to subscribing for any Issue Shares, a prospective investor should consult a financial advisor who has
been duly licensed by CMA and with his, her or its own legal, business and tax advisors to determine the
appropriateness and consequences of an investment in the Issue Shares for such investor and arrive at an
independent evaluation of such investment. The sole purpose of this Prospectus is to provide background
information about the Issuer to assist each recipient in making an independent evaluation of the offering
and any investment in the Issue Shares.
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Neither this Prospectus nor any other information provided in connection with the issuance of shares
constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Lead Manager, or the Subscription Agent
for any person to subscribe in the shares.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of the Issue Shares in certain jurisdictions is restricted
by some laws outside the State of Kuwait. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus may come are
required by the Issuer and the Advisor to inform themselves about and to observe such restrictions.

The Issue Shares may not be an appropriate investment for all shareholders and investors. Therefore, each
potential investor in the Issue Shares must determine the appropriateness of such an investment, in light
of his/her own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should do the following:

1. have sufficient knowledge and experience to carry out a meaningful evaluation of the Issue Shares, the
risks of investing in the Issue Shares, and the information contained in this Prospectus.

2. be able to access and be familiar with the appropriate analytical tools, in order to evaluate any
investment in stocks in the context of his own financial position, as well as assess the impact of the
shares on his investment portfolio in general.

3. have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all the risks of investing in the Issue Shares.

4. have a full understanding of the terms of the Issue Shares, and to be familiar with the conduct of
business in the relevant financial markets.

5. beable (whether alone or with the assistance of an investment advisor) to assess the possible scenarios
of economic and other factors that could affect the investor’s investment and their ability to bear
potential risks.

None of the contents of this Prospectus or any information communicated by the Issuer is intended or
construed as advice regarding the purchase or subscription of shares (or earnings per share). If you are in
any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus, you should consult a licensed investment advisor. It must
be remembered that the value of the shares can fluctuate down or up.

No other party has been authorized to give any information or make any representations in connection
with the offering of shares other than the parties mentioned in this Prospectus, and in the event that such
information or undertakings are provided, it shall not be relied upon and considered as approved by the
Lead Manager, the Subscription Agent or the Issuer. No distribution of this Prospectus or offer of shares or
any sale or presentation of shares made under it may in any way create the implicit impression that there
has been no change, or any event that is reasonably likely to include any change in the conditions of the
Issuer since the date of this Prospectus.

The financial information for the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2020 has been audited by the auditors
of the Issuer and approved by the general assembly of the shareholders of the Issuer as required by the
applicable regulations. Otherwise, the financial information contained in this Prospectus for any period
ending after 31 December 2020 is not subject to audit. The financial information for the financial period
ending on 30 September 2021 was also reviewed by the auditor of the Issuer, and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Issuer on 1 November 2021. Otherwise, the financial information contained in this
Prospectus for any period ending after 30 September 2021 was not subject to for review or audit.

Certain figures and percentages included in this Prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown in the same category presented in different tables may vary slightly and figures
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shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures which precede them.
In this Prospectus all references to “KWD” “KD”, “Kuwaiti Dinars” and “Dinars” are to Kuwaiti Dinars, the
lawful currency of Kuwait.

Some statements in this Prospectus may be deemed to be forward looking statements. Forward looking
statements include statements concerning the Issuer’s plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future operations
and performance and the assumptions underlying these forward-looking statements. When used in this
document, the words “anticipate’, “estimates’, “expects’, “believes’, “intends’, “plans’, “aims’, “seeks”, “may”,
“will", “should” and any of their derived expressions or any similar expressions generally identify forward
looking statements. The Issuer has based these forward-looking statements on the current view of the
Issuer’s management with respect to future events and financial performance. Although the Issuer believes
that the expectations, estimates and projections reflected in the Issuer’s forward-looking statements are
reasonable as of the date of this Prospectus, if one or more of the risks or uncertainties materialize, including
those which the Issuer has identified in this Prospectus and those which the Issuer could not reasonably
identify, or if any of the Issuer’s underlying assumptions prove to be incomplete or inaccurate, the Issuer’s
actual results of operation may vary from those expected, estimated or predicted without any liability
on the Issuer. These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of this Prospectus. Without
prejudice to any requirements under applicable laws and regulations, the Issuer expressly disclaims any
binding obligation or undertaking to achieve or fulfil any of the objectives or results contained in any of the
expectations, estimations or predictions and to disseminate after the date of this Prospectus any updates
or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in expectations,
estimations or predictions thereof or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
forward looking statement is based.



ABBREVIATIONS

CMA Kuwait Capital Markets Authority

Dinars, Kuwaiti Dinars, KWD and KD Kuwaiti Dinar

Fils Kuwaiti fils

GCC Gulf Cooperation Council

KCC Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C.

MENA Middle East and North Africa

Mn, mn Million

MOCI Ministry of Commerce and Industry - Kuwait
USD, USS, $ and Dollars United States Dollars
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SUMMARY TERMS OF THE OFFERING

The following summary should be read as an introduction to the additional detailed information that
appears in any part of this Prospectus to which this summary is subject. This summary does not include all
the information that shareholders and potential investors must consider before deciding to subscribe to
Shares as it does not purport to be complete. Accordingly, any decision by a prospective investor should
be based on the full study of this Prospectus and not just part of it.

The terms included in this Prospectus bear the meanings set forth in the “Summary Terms of the Offering”

section.

Issuer

Issued and Paid-up Capltal
before Capital Increase

Nominal Value of Capltal
Increase

TotaI Value of Issue Shares
(Nominal Value and Issuance
Premlum)

Issued and Paid-up Capltal
after Capital Increase

Type and Number of Offered

Shares

Natlonal Industrles Group Holdlng K. PS C

The reglstered address of the Issuer is Shuwalkh - Jahra Road
Interchange, beside the Kuwait Red Crescent Society, PO. Box 417

Safat, 13005, State of Kuwait
10 August 1960
29 September 1984

KD 300,000,000 (Three hundred m|II|on Kuwa|t| Dlnars)

KD 149,923,801.4 (one hundred and forty nine million, nine hundred
and twenty-three thousand, eight hundred and one Kuwaiti Dinars and

four hundred Kuwa|t| ﬁIs) are fuIIy pald

KD 52,473,330.5 (ﬁfty -two m|II|on four hundred and seventy three
thousand and three hundred and thirty Kuwaiti Dinars and five hundred

Kuwa|t| ﬁIs)

KD 52,473,330.5 (ﬁfty -two m|II|on four hundred and seventy three
thousand and three hundred and thirty Kuwaiti Dinars and five hundred

Kuwaltl ﬁIs)

KD 104,946,661 (one hundred and four m|II|on nine hundred and forty—
six thousand, six hundred and sixty-one Kuwaiti Dinars).

KD 202,397,131.9 (two hundred and two million, three hundred and

ninety-seven thousand and one hundred and thirty one Kuwaiti Dinars

and nine hundred Kuwa|t| ﬁls)

524,733,305 ordlnary shares W|th a nomlnal value of KD 52,473,330.5
(Aifty two million, four hundred, seventy-three thousand, three hundred
and thirty Kuwaiti Dinars and five hundred Kuwaiti fils) 35% of the
Issuer’s issued and paid-up capital prior to the increase, with a total
value after the addition of the issuance premium of KD 104,946,661
(one hundred and four million, nine hundred and forty-six thousand,

six hundred and sixty-one KD).

None.

Public Offering Prospectus for the Capital Increase of National Industries Group Holding Company K.PS.C. 9



Hold Preemption Rights to
Subscribe to the Offering
Shares

Record Date

Qualified Shareholders’
Options for Offering Shares

Subscription Perio

Disposal of Preemption
Rights

The holders of the Preemption Rights and the shareholders whose

names are registered on the Issuer’s shareholders’ register with the
Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. at the close of trading on Boursa Kuwait
on the record date, or those who obtained Preemption Rights, whether

during the Preemption Rights trading period or by assignment.

28 March 2022

Subscribers may resort to the following actions:
Exercise their Preemption Rights in the Issue Shares;

Exercise their Preemption Rights to subscribe to the Issue Shares
and to subscribe to additional Issue Shares;

May trade the whole or part of their Preemption Rights, in
accordance with the relevant rules applied by Boursa Kuwait;

May assign their Preemption Rights free of charge to another
shareholder or any other person in accordance with the
mechanism approved for this by Boursa Kuwait and the
Kuwait Clearing Agency, at least five days before closing the
Subscription Period (and any of these concessions are made
in accordance with the relevant and applicable rules by Boursa
Kuwait and the Kuwait Clearing Agency); or

May refrain from resorting to any of the previous actions.

The Subscription Period (the “Subscription Period”) will commence

on the start of day 3 April 2022 (which is included in the Subscription
Period) and will expire at the end of the day 21 April 2022 (which is
included the Subscription Period), and if the entire subscription is
covered before the final date of the Subscription Period, the Issuer
has the right to stop and close the subscription before the end of the
Subscription Period. In all cases where the subscription of all shares of
the Issuer is not exhausted, the Board of Directors of the Issuer may
extend the Subscription Period for a period or other periods of a similar
or lesser time such that the original Subscription Period and its total
extensions do not exceed three months provided that the approval of

the Capital Markets Authority is obtained.

The Preemption Rights may be disposed of by trading according to the
trading price of the Preemption Rights on Boursa Kuwait, or they may
be assigned free of charge and without restriction and in accordance
with the applicable rules of both Boursa Kuwait and the Kuwait Clearing

Company.



Tlmellne for L|st|ng the The approval of this Prospectus constitutes an approval for the listing
Preemption Rights and trading of the Preemption Rights during the Subscription Period
for the Offering Shares. The listing of the Preemption Rights starts
from the date of the start of the Subscription Period for these rights.
The listing is canceled as soon as the Issuer discloses the results of the
subscription in the capital increase. For the inclusion and continuation
of trading of the Preemption Rights, the Shares of the Issuer shall
remain in circulation on Boursa Kuwait throughout the Subscription
Perlod

Offerlng Price 200 ﬁIs (Two hundred Kuwaiti ﬁIs) per share (representlng the nomlnal
value per share of 100 ﬁIs pIus issuance premlum of 100 ﬁIs)

Nommal Value of the Issue 100 Kuwaiti fils (One hundred Kuwaiti ﬁIs) per share.
Share

Issuance Premlum per Share 100 Kuwa|t| ﬁls (One hundred Kuwa|t| ﬁIs) per share

Reference Price for Trading of Boursa Kuwait schedules the reference price on the ﬁrst tradlng day of
Preemption Rights Preemption Rights in accordance with the mechanism contained in the
rules of Boursa Kuwait, which is according to the following equation:
the closing price of the share the day before the start of trading of those
rights - the subscription price (nominal value + issuance premium), and
the price of Preemption Rights may change during the Subscription

Perlod
Preemptlon nghts to The Issuer and the regulatory authorltles agreed toincrease the Issuer’s
Subscribe in Shares current issued and paid-up capital by KD 52,473,330.5, divided into

524,733,305 ordinary shares, with a value of 200 Kuwaiti fils per Share
(including 100 fils nominal value plus 100 fils issuance premium),
which shall be allocated to the shareholders registered in the Issuer’s
shareholder registry on the Record Date in proportion to their share
ownership in the Issuer’s capital, during the Subscription Period as set
forth in this Prospectus and according to the applicable rules.

The holders of the Preemption Rights may dispose of their Preemption
Rights by trading according to the trading price of the Preemption
Rights at Boursa Kuwait or by assigning these rights free of charge and
without restriction, in the manner prescribed in the applicable rules in
force at Boursa Kuwait and the Kuwait Clearing Company.

In the event that a Qualified Shareholder does not subscribe, it is
deemed that he has waived his Preemption Rights to subscribe to
the Shares of the capital increase for the benefit of existing or new
shareholders, pursuant to the Issuer’s Board of Directors decision
issued on 30 January 2022.
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Issue Shares

Fractional Shares

Boursa Kuwait

Qualified Shareholders have the right to subscribe for additional Issue

Shares (“Additional Issue Shares”) in addition to their entitlement to
Issue Shares. Such subscription shall be made at the Offering Price (i.e.
KWD 0.200 per Additional Issue Share). In the event that the Subscriber
does not subscribe, sell or waive the Preemption Rights to subscribe,
it is considered a waiver of the Preemption Right in subscribing to the
Issue Shares in favor of other Subscribers who wish to subscribe to a
number of shares exceeding the percentage allocated to each of them.

The holders of the Preemption Rights may sell these rights on Boursa
Kuwait until 5 Business Days prior to the closing of the Offering Period
and they are also entitled to assign it without any consideration at
the Kuwait Clearing Company during the Offering Period to other
shareholders of the Company or to others until 5 Business Days prior
to the closing of the Offering Period in accordance with the rules and
procedures in force at each of Boursa Kuwait and the Kuwait Clearing
Company, according to what is set forth in this Prospectus.

The remaining unsubscribed Offering Shares, if any, shall be allocated
to the Qualified Shareholders who have applied for subscription with an
additional number of Offering Shares exceeding the number allocated
to them, in accordance with the applicable rules in this regard, secondly

to other shareholders, and thirdly to new shareholders.

1 (one) share.

It is not permissible to subscribe to fractional shares, and where
necessary, the number of Offering Shares to which the Qualified
Shareholder is entitled shall be rounded to the nearest whole number.
The Issuer has the exclusive right to dispose of the fractional shares. The
Issuer has the right to register the fractional shares as treasury shares
in the shareholders’ register, subject to the maximum authorized limit
for the Company’s ownership of its shares. Fractions of the Offering
Shares will not be issued (refer to the section “Terms and Conditions
and Instructions for Subscription”).

After the end of the Subscription Period and the final allocation of
shares and the completion of all the necessary regulatory procedures
for issuing shares and registering them with the regulatory authorities
and the Kuwait Clearing Company, the Offering Shares will be traded
on Boursa Kuwait without restriction and to be in the same rank as all

the shares of the Issuer, without discrimination among them.



Allocation of Offering Shares The Offering Shares are allocated between the Qualified Shareholders
and those to whom the Preemption Rights have devolved, who have
applied for a number of the Offering Shares in proportion to their
respective contribution to the shares issued on the Record Date. The
surplus of Subscribed Shares, in excess of the Preemption Rights-
which may be due to the failure of some shareholders to exercise their
Preemption Rights- will be allocated first to qualified shareholders who
wish to subscribe to a number of shares that exceed the percentage
allocated to each of them and in proportion to the shares they already
own, secondly to other shareholders and thirdly to new shareholders,
in accordance with the rules in force in this regard. The number of
shares allotted will be rounded to the nearest whole number and the
Issuer has the absolute right to dispose of the fractional shares, if any,
without the possibility of issuing fractional shares.

Refund of Excess Subscription The value of the subscription will be paid by the Subscribers during
Amounts the Subscription Period and in any event before the closing date
of the Subscription Period. If there is any surplus in the sums that
the Subscribers transferred to the Subscription Account, any such
surplus amounts will be refunded, without interest, within a period
not exceeding five (5) business days from the date of the allocation of
shares.

Purpose of the Issuanceand  The proceeds of the capital increase will be used to develop the Issuer’s

the Use of Proceeds business to achieve growth in the Issuer’s revenues and continue to
implement its future plans and objective, in addition to covering the
issuance expenses and some of the expenses incurred on the capital
increase.

Subscription Fees No subscription fees will be charged for the shares as the Issuer will
bear all the costs of the issuance.

Issuance Costs The total issuance costs, including marketing, legal consulting fees,
Prospectus printing costs and other issuance-related costs and
expenses, are expected to reach a maximum of KD 500,000 (Five
hundred thousand Kuwaiti Dinars).

Summary of the Consolidated Assets: KD 1,270.8 million
Financial Position on 30 Paid-up capital: KD 149.9 million
September 2021 Liabilities: KD 727.0 million
Shareholders’ equity: KD 396.8 million

Summary of the Consolidated Assets: KD 1,187.3 million

Financial Position on 31 Paid-up capital: KD 142.8 million

December 2020 Liabilities: KD 724.1 million
Shareholders’ equity: KD 326.9 million
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Summary of the Consolidated
Financial Position on 31
December 2019

Assets: KD 1,244.5 million

Paid-up capital: KD 142.8 million
Liabilities: KD 735.9 million
Shareholders’ equity: KD 378.0 million

Summary of the Consolidated
Financial Position on 31
December 2018

Assets: KD 1,202.7 million

Paid-up capital: KD 136.0 million
Liabilities: KD 706.4 million
Shareholders’ equity: KD 352.7 million

Previous Issuance Values

Net value of the

Date of Total nominal ; . )

Issue Type annotation in No. of shares T issue (including
o h ial issued of the issue nominal value and
(Bonus shares / capital increase) the ::“::t‘::"a e (issue premium
) (KD) (KD)

10% bonus shares 2005 20/6/2006 74,674,120 7,467,412 7,467,412
Capital increase 33.3% 2006 20/6/2006 248,913,736 24,891,374 149,348,242
10% bonus shares 2006 15/4/2007 107,032,907 10,703,290 10,703,290
10% bonus shares 2007 6/5/2014 117,736,196 11,773,620 11,773,620
5% bonus shares 2013 22/6/2014 64,754,908 6,475,491 6,475,491
5% bonus shares 2018 19/5/2019 67,992,653 6,799,265 6,799,265
bonus shares 5% 2020 23/5/2021 71,392,286 7,139,229 7,139,229

Date of the Extraordinary
General Assembly Decision of
the Shareholders and Board
of Directors of the Issuer to
Approve the Issuance

Lead Manager and
Subscription Agent

Clearing Agency

Legal Council

Applicable Law

Jurisdiction

The issuance of shares was approved by the decision of the Board of
Directors of thelssueron 30January 2022, pursuant to the extraordinary
general assembly decision of the Issuer on 20 December 2021, which
authorized the Board of Directors to increase the capital issued within
the limits authorized and published in the official gazette in its issue
no. 1567 of 2 January 2022, and annotated in the commercial register
of the Issuer at the Ministry of Commerce and Industry on 11 January
2022.

Kuwait Financial Centre K.P.S.C,, Sharqg, Block 1, Ahmad Al-Jaber Street,
Universal Tower, Floor 3, P.O. Box 23444, Safat 13095, Kuwait.

Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C. (Closed) - Kuwait P.O. Box 22077, Safat
13081, Kuwait

Al-Hossam Legal - Al-Turgi & Partners, Legal Consultants & Attorneys,
KIPCO Tower, 42nd Floor, P.O. Box 1364, Safat 13014, Kuwait.

Laws of the State of Kuwait.

Kuwaiti Courts.



Business Days Any day when Boursa Kuwait operates normal trading, and for the
purposes of the subscription process, it must also be a day when
banks are open to the public for business in Kuwait (except Fridays and
Saturdays) except on public holidays.

Board of Directors of the Mr. Saad Mohammed Al-Saad Chairman
Issuer Mr. Suleiman Hamad Al-Dalali Deputy Chairman
Mr. Abdul Aziz Ibrahim Al-Rabia Member
Mr. Ali Murad Behbehani Member
Mr. Hossam Fawzi Al-Khorafi Member
Dr. Abdul Aziz Rashed Al-Rashed Member
Mr. Mohammed Abdul Mohsen Al-Asfour Member
Ms. Maha Khalid Al-Guanim Member
Mr. Salah Khaled Al-Fulaij Member
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE OFFERING SHARES

Offering Shares

The issuing Company will offer 524,733,305 ordinary shares, representing 35% of the Company’s issued
and paid-up capital before the increase.

Offer Price per Offering Share and Issuance Size

The Offering will have a price of 200 fils (two hundred Kuwaiti fils) per Offering Share, which represents
a nominal value of 100 fils (one hundred Kuwaiti fils) per Share and a share issuance premium of 100 fils
(one hundred Kuwaiti fils) per Share. The total nominal value of the offering is KD 52,473,330.5 (fifty-two
million, four hundred and seventy-three thousand, and three hundred and thirty Kuwaiti Dinars and five
hundred Kuwaiti fils) and the total offering value after the addition of the shares issuance premium is KD
104,946,661 (one hundred and four million, nine hundred and forty-six thousand, and six hundred and
sixty-one Kuwaiti dinars).

Fair Value per Share as per the Asset Valuator Report

The shares of the National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. were valued for the purpose of increasing
the Company’s share capital through the issuance of ordinary shares to be offered for public subscription
in accordance with the provisions of Law No. (7) of 2010 and its executive regulations and amendments,
whereby BDO Economic and Management Consulting (“BDO”), the “accredited asset valuator”), valued
the Company’s shares with a fair and independent valuation based on the latest financial statements. The
valuation report was submitted to the CMA as part of the share capital increase application.

The valuation of the Company’s shares was derived from the application of the sum of parts, using the
following 3 valuation methods:

. Discounted cash flow method.

Modified net asset value method.

Relative valuation method (market multiples).
Accordingly, the Group’s valuation as per the approved asset valuator report amounted to 424 fils.
Shares Market Data

The following is a summary of the Group’s stock market data as at 23 January 2022:

National Industries Group Holding’s Stock Data:

Closing price (fils) 302
Market capitalization (in KD mn.) 444
52-week high/low market price (fils) 309/173
52-week average market price (fils) 231
Six-month average market price (fils) 259
Book value per share as at 30 September 2021 (fils) 270




Share Issuance Premium Calculation
The share premium was determined after the Board of Directors reviewed each of the following:

« The fair value of the share, according to the approved asset valuator report, is at 424 fils per share,
The book value per share is at 270 fils per share,

« Calculating the six-month average of the Company’s share market price at 259 fils per share,

Further, the earnings / loss per share during the financial year of 2020 were also reviewed in addition to
the above.

Subsequently, equal weights were determined for each of the above, as follows:

Proposed fair value share

Fair value of the NIGH’s shares as at 23 Share price Weighting price by the Board of
January 2022 (fils) factor Directors (fils)
BDO'’s valuation 424 33.4% 142

Book value per share as at 30 September 2021 270 33.3% 920
Six-month average market price 259 33.3% 86

Fair value 318fils

Based on the foregoing and the latest consolidated interim financial statements issued by the company
for the nine months 30 September 2021, in addition to the market data for the shares and the valuations
presented earlier, the Company’s Board of Directors determined the subscription price for the capital
increase of the issued and paid-up capital shall be set at 200 fils per Share (consisting of a nominal value
of 100 fils per Share and share issuance premium of 100 fils per Share). Accordingly, the total value of
the capital increase of the issued and paid-up capital is KD 104,946,661, including a nominal value of KD
52,473,330.5, and an issue premium of KD 52,473,330.5.

The subscription price represents a discount of 53% from the fair value of the share as per the asset
valuator, a discount of 37% from the fair value proposed by the Board of Directors, a discount of 34% from
the last market price as on 23 January 2022, and a discount of 26% from the book value of the share as
at 30 September 2021 - for the purpose of enhancing the Company’s shareholders’ participation in the
subscription process and thus achieve the offering goal to meet the regulatory capital requirements and
to finance the Company’s future operations.

Preemption Rights

The Issuer and the regulatory authorities agreed to increase the Issuer’s current issued and paid-up capital
by KD 52,473,330.5 with a value of 200 Kuwaiti fils per Share (including 100 fils nominal value plus 100
fils issuance premium), which shall be allocated to the shareholders registered in the Issuer’s shareholder
registry on the Record Date (“Qualified Shareholders”) in proportion to their share ownership in the Issuer’s
capital, and to the holders of the Preemption Rights to subscribe the to Issue Shares (“Preemption Rights”)
during the Subscription Period as set forth in this Prospectus or resolved upon by the Board of Directors
of the Issuer according to the applicable rules.
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Inthe event that a Qualified Shareholder does not subscribe, itis deemed that he has waived his Preemption
Right to subscribe to the Shares of the capital increase for the benefit of existing or new shareholders. The
Issuer’s Board of Directors, in accordance with its decision issued on 30 January 2022, have approved the
allocation of the subscription surplus to new shareholders, and to dispose of fractional shares (if any) in the
manner it deems appropriate in accordance with the provisions of the law. The holders of the Preemption
Rights may dispose the Preemption Rights by trading according to the trading price of the Preemption
rights on Boursa Kuwait or by assigning these rights free of charge and without restriction, during the
period from the beginning of the subscription until at least five business days before the closing of the
Subscription Period, in the manner prescribed in the applicable rules in force at Boursa Kuwait and the
Kuwait Clearing Company during the Subscription Period for the shareholders of the Issuer or others.

Convertibility of Issue Shares

The Issue Shares cannot be converted into another form of securities.

Tradability of the Issue Shares

After the end of the Subscription Period and the final allocation of Shares and after they have been
registered with the Kuwait Clearing Company, the Issue Shares will be traded on Boursa Kuwait without
restriction and will be in the same rank as the other shares of the Issuer and shall not be differentiated from
the other shares.

Offering Not Fully Subscribed

In the case the Offering is not fully subscribed for during the original Subscription Period, the Board of
Directors has the right and discretion to extend the Offering Period at its sole discretion for a period, or
other similar or lesser periods, as long as the total extension period does not exceed three (3) months. If
the entire Offering is not depleted during the subsequent extension periods, then the Issuer must either
withdraw the capital increase or be satisfied with the amount that has been subscribed to and reduce the
capital increase. In either case, the capital decrease must be registered at the commercial registrar based
on the decision of the Board of Directors of the Issuer.

Voting Rights of the Issue Shares

Each share of the Offering has one vote, and every shareholder has the right to attend and vote in the
General Assembly. None of the shareholders have premium voting rights or rights to dividends. Upon
issuance of the Offering, the subscribed shareholder has the right to participate in the General Assembly
meetings of the Issuer and to receive their share of dividends whenever it is announced by the Issuer.
Shareholders are also entitled to a share of the proceeds from the liquidation of the Issuer’s assets upon
liquidation, after all Issuer’s debts.

Qualified Shareholders Who Do Not Subscribe to the Issue Shares

Qualified Shareholders who do not subscribe to the Issue Shares (“Non-Participating Shareholders”) shall
be subject to a reduction in the proportion of their equity in the Issuer as well as a reduction in the value
of their Existing Shares.

Methods of Disposal of the Issue Shares and the Preemption Rights

Qualified Subscribers may resort to the following actions:
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« Qualified Subscribers may exercise their Preemption Right in whole or in part to the Issue Shares; or

« Qualified Subscribers may exercise their Preemption Right to subscribe to the Issue Shares and to
subscribe to additional Issue Shares; or

« Qualified Subscribers or those whose Preemption Rights have devolved, may trade in additional
Preemption Rights during the Subscription Period and until at least five working days before the
Subscription Period is closed, in accordance with the relevant rules applied by Boursa Kuwait or through
the market; or

« Qualified Subscribers or those whose Preemption Rights have devolved, may assign their Preemption
Right without consideration (or their rights to subscribe in additional Issue Shares) or part of it
according to the set process during the Subscription Period and until at least five working days before
the Subscription Period is closed in accordance with the relevant rules applied by Boursa Kuwait; or

« Qualified Subscribers or those whose Preemption Rights have devolved, may refrain from resorting to
any of the previous actions, whether through trading, assignment, or exercising the Preemption Right
to subscribe to the Offering Shares and leaving the right to subscribe for the unsubscribed shares to
the rest of the shareholders.

In all cases, the person who disposed of their Preemption Rights whether by trading in all or in part or
by assignment without consideration in the manner previously mentioned is not entitled to subscribe
to these rights, and their subscription in these disposed rights is considered null. However, the person to
whom these rights have been disposed may subscribe to the number of Issue Shares as allocated for these
rights and is also entitled to dispose of them in the manner prescribed in the applicable rules in force at the
CMA, Boursa Kuwait and the Kuwait Clearing Company until at least five Business Days prior to the closing
of the Subscription Period.

Maximum Subscription and Ownership

The remaining unsubscribed Offer Shares, if any, shall be allocated to Subscribers who have applied for
subscription for an additional number of Offer Shares exceeding the number allotted to them. Such
allocation shall firstly be offered to the Qualified Shareholders on the basis of the ratio of the number
of the remaining additional shares to the number of additional shares that the Subscribers requested to
subscribe for. Otherwise, the allocation shall secondly be offered to other shareholders in proportion to
the shares they own in the capital of the Issuer and the number of remaining additional shares. Finally,
the allocation shall then be offered to new shareholders in proportion to the number of shares they have
subscribed to and the number of remaining shares. It is permissible to own any percentage of the shares of
the Issuer at any time, in accordance with the law, ministerial decisions and the regulations of the Capital
Markets Authority issued from time to time.
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SUBSCRIPTION TERMS, CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS
Subscription Agreement

The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent agreed with the Issuer, as per the Subscription Agreement,
subject to fulfillment of certain relevant conditions, to take the necessary care to offer the Issue Shares to
the Subscribers at the Offer Price. The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent are not obliged to subscribe
to any of the unsubscribed Issue Shares that will not have been subscribed to by Shareholders and Potential
Investors.

Subscription Period

The Subscription Period will commence on 3 April 2022 and shall close on 21 April 2022 (with both those
dates included in the Subscription Period) in case the entire Offering is covered before that date, as the
Issuer has the right to close the Subscription Period before the specified expiry date.

Subscribers

The Preemption Right is available to the Issuer’s shareholders whose names are registered in the Issuer’s
shareholder register by or before the start of the Subscription Period or to whomever the Preemption
Rights have devolved. The remaining unsubscribed Offering Shares, if any, will be allocated to the Qualified
Shareholders or to those to whom the Preemption Rights have devolved, or to those who applied for
subscription with an additional number of Offering Shares exceeding the number allotted to them, or
to newly registered shareholders, in accordance with the applicable rules in this regard. The allotment
decision shall be final and without any liability on the Issuer or the Subscription Agent.

Under-Subscription

In the case the Offering is not fully subscribed for during the original Subscription Period, the Board of
Directors of the Issuer has the right to extend the Offering Period at its sole discretion as long as the total
extension period does not exceed three (3) months, provided that the approval of the Capital Markets
Authority is obtained for such an extension. If the entire Offering is not depleted during the original
Subscription Period and subsequent extensions, then the Issuer must either withdraw the capital increase
or be satisfied with the amount that has been subscribed to, and reduce the capital increase. In both cases,
the capital decrease must be registered at the commercial registrar based on the Issuer’s decision. In the
event of cancellation of the Offering, the holders of the Preemption Rights will not be able to exercise
their Preemption Rights in respect of the Issue Shares entitlements based on their rights. This may cause
the purchaser of a Preemption Right to forfeit the purchase price of the Preemption Right without any
recourse against the Issuer or against the Subscription Agent for any claim or compensation.

Subscription Process

Subscription amounts will not be accepted in cash. Subscription amounts must be paid in full via the K-NET
service or by wire transfer (as a net amount without fees by both the transferor bank and the transferee
bank) to the Subscription Account (non-interest bearing), as shown below:

First: Subscription through the electronic platform for subscription amounts of KD10,000 or less:

The subscription website https://ipo.com.kw allows subscription in the capital increase during the Offering
Period, whereby payment shall be made through K-NET service, which is available 24 hours a day for 7 days
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a week throughout the Subscription Period (noting that the Subscription Period ends at 13:30 on the last
day of subscription).

Note: Subscribers should confirm with their respective bank with regards to the permissible limit on their K-NET
cards for online payments.

The Subscriber shall:

1.
2.
3.

4,
5.
6.

Log in via the mobile application (iOS / Android) or the website via the link: https://ipo.com.kw
Select an active IPO from the list.

Enter the following Subscriber details: Civil ID number (or commercial registration number for
Corporate Subscribers), email address and mobile number.

Record the number of shares desired to be subscribed for.
At the K-NET payment gateway page, enter bank details for the payment.

Receive the subscription payment receipt via email and mobile SMS notification.

Second: Subscription through the electronic platform for subscription amounts of more than
KD10,000:

1.

Log in via the mobile application (iOS / Android) or the website via the link: https://ipo.com.kw

2. Select an active IPO from the list.

3. Enter the following Subscriber details: Civil ID number (or commercial registration number for
Corporate Subscribers), email address and mobile number.

4. Record the number of shares desired to be subscribed for.

5. Print the Subscription Application Form.

6. The Subscriber shall visit their bank and submit a copy of the Subscription Application Form printed
from the link above filled with all the necessary information and transfer the required amount by
way of electronic bank transfer (net amount without any charges by either the transferring bank or
the receiving bank) to the Subscription Account (non-interest bearing) provided below:

Bank Name National Bank of Kuwait

Account Number 1000450837

Beneficiary Name Kuwait Financial Centre - Clients — Collection
IBAN KW46 NBOK 0000 0000 0000 1000 4508 37
SWIFT Code NBOKKWKW

7. The Subscriber shall obtain an original deposit voucher of the amount transferred from their bank.

8. The Subscriber shall go to the headquarters of the Clearing and Depository Agent located on
Arabian Gulf Street, Ahmed Tower, 5" floor, to submit the Subscription Application Form along
with the documents listed in the item “Documents required when Submitting the Subscription
Application Form” of this Prospectus, from 10:00 in the morning to 13:30 in the afternoon from
Sunday through Thursday (except for public holidays) throughout the Subscription Period.

9. The Clearing and Depository Agent shall provide to the Subscriber a deposit receipt of the

Subscription.
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10. Forinvestment companies that manage investment portfolios on the behalf of their clients: detailed
subscription information shall be submitted in accordance with the procedures and form set by the
Lead Manager and Subscription Agent, or any party that provides support services to it, in addition
to an expression of interest form. The detailed information provided in the form is considered to be
complete for determining the final subscription instructions, even if the instructions conflict with
what is provided initially in the expression of interest form.

In the event that any of the Subscribers fails to submit a duly completed Subscription Application
Form or detailed subscription information form (for investment portfolios) (together with all
required supporting documentation thereto) at the offices of the Clearing and Depository Agent,
after transferring the Subscription Amount required in this Prospectus, then the Subscriber’s
Subscription Application Form will be null and void, noting that that Subscription Amount shall
not be accepted in cash.

Documents required when submitting the Subscription Application Form

The subscription application shall be submitted with a proof of payment of the subscription amounts
and of the subscriber’s IBAN number, in addition to the following documents listed below. The employee
responsible for checking the subscription application will check the copies of all documents and means of
identification provided alongside the original documents and means of identification and shall return the
original documents to the Subscribers.

Individual Subscribers

Original and copy of personal Civil Identification Card;

« Original and copy of passport for citizens of GCC states;
Original and copy of Special Legal Proxy for subscribing in shares (for Proxy Subscribers);
Original and copy of Certificate of Guardianship (for minors/orphans);

« Original and copy of a Limitation of Succession Deed for beneficiaries.

In the event that the Subscriber does not attend in person, the original authorization form issued by
the Subscriber to the person authorized to deal with the administration regarding the Subscription
Application Form must be provided (provided that the signature contained in the authorization
from the Subscriber’s bank is verified).

Legal Person Subscriber

Original and copy of Commercial Registration Certificate;

+ Original and copy of the Authorized Signatories Certificate or the Extract of the Commercial Register,
as applicable;

Original and copy of the personal Civil Identification Card of the authorized signatory;

Original and copy of the specimen of signature for the authorized signatory issued by the Ministry
of Social Affairs and Labor or as attested by the Chamber of Commerce and Industry; and

« In the event the authorized signatory does not attend in person, a letter issued by the authorized
signatory to the person authorized to deal in the administrative matters pertaining to the
subscription application.
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Non-Kuwaiti Subscribers

Non-Kuwaiti subscribers (whether legal or natural persons (as applicable)) are required to provide the
equivalent of the aforementioned documentation as issued by their jurisdictional authorities if they do
not have Kuwait issued documentation.

Payment of Subscription Amount

The subscription amount shall be paid in full via the K-NET service or by bank transfer (as a net amount
without fees by both the transferor bank and the transferee bank) to the subscription bank account (non-
interest bearing), noting that the subscription amount will not be accepted in cash. The full subscription
value must be received in the subscription account during the Subscription Period and before the
subscription closing date at the latest.

Subscription Terms & Conditions

Subscription applications are final, and it is not permissible to cancel them for any reason, even before
the closing date of the Subscription Period once they have been submitted. The Subscriber may not
add any conditions or restrictions to the subscription application. The subscription application must be
genuine and any mock subscriptions with fictitious names or otherwise, are prohibited. The subscription
application must be submitted in accordance with this Prospectus prior to the deadline set for the
Subscription Period. The Issuer, Clearing and Depository Agent, and the Subscription Agent have the right
to exclude duplicate requests and requests that do not fulfill the required information or are in violation
of any law, unless they are corrected, and the Subscriber must subscribe through one bank account. In the
event that the Subscription Application is submitted by someone who legally represents the Subscriber
in accordance with the applicable laws, regulations and relevant rules, the shares shall be allocated in the
name of the Subscriber whose name is mentioned in the Subscription Application. The Issuer, Clearing and
Depository Agent, and Subscription Agent reserve the right, without referring to the Subscriber, to reject
any Subscription Application if it is found that it violates the terms and conditions of this Prospectus or if
it does not include all of the required data or documents indicated in the Prospectus or other documents
that may be requested by the Clearing and Depository Agent and Subscription Agent. The Subscriber also
acknowledges that he has carefully read and understood this Prospectus and all of its contents and that
he agrees with the articles of association and memorandum of association of the Issuer and all the terms
and conditions of subscription contained in this Prospectus and the right of the Issuer, the Subscription
Agent, the Clearing and Deposit Agent to reject any subscription request in any of the cases specified
in this Prospectus as well as the acceptance of the Offering Shares allocated to him (with a maximum
number of shares requested). The Subscriber further acknowledges his acceptance of all the terms and
instructions for subscription contained in the subscription application form and in this Prospectus. In the
case of a legal entity subscribing - it acknowledges and is held accountable - that all procedures have
been met and all necessary approvals have been obtained under his memorandum of association and
articles of association or under the relevant laws to enable it to submit the subscription application and
implement its obligations as stipulated in the Prospectus or to waive the preemption right to subscribe
including the approval of the Board of Directors and the general assembly - as the case may be - for joint
stock companies and the approval of the general manager and the general assembly of partners - as the
case may be - for other companies.

Bank Fees and Commissions

The subscriber shall bear the bank fees and commissions related to the method of paying the subscription
value for the subscription amount applied for.
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Allocation of Shares

Shares shall be allocated to Subscribers within a maximum period of five (5) business days after the closing
of the Subscription Period.

The Issuer’s Board of Directors will allocate all the shares subscribed to by the shareholders who hold the
preemption right on a pro rata basis.

The Issuer’s Board of Directors will offer the surplus subscribed shares, in excess of the preemption rights,
firstly to qualified shareholders who wish to subscribe to a number of shares that exceed the percentage
allocated to each of them and in proportion to the shares they already own, secondly to other shareholders
and thirdly to new shareholders, in accordance with the decision of the Issuer’s Board of Directors issued
on 30 January 2022, pursuant to the Issuer’s extraordinary general assembly decision issued 20 December
2021, that approved the right of existing and new shareholders to subscribe to the surplus shares that the
shareholders with the preemption rights have not subscribed to. The Board of Directors will dispose of the
fractional shares (if any) in the manner it deems appropriate in accordance with the provisions of the law.

Refund of Subscription Surplus Amount

The value of the subscription will be paid by the subscribers during the Subscription Period and in any
event before the closing date of the Subscription Period. If there is any surplus in the sums that the
subscribers transferred to the subscription account, any such surplus amounts will be refunded, without
interest, within a period not exceeding five (5) business days from the date of the allocation of shares.

Expected timeframe

Date Event

Record Date 28 March 2022
Share trading date without Two trading days before the Record Date according to the T+3
maturity settlement cycle

Start date of Subscription Period 3 April 2022

Start date of trading in
preemption rights trading

End date of trading in preemption
rights trading

End date of Subscription Period 21 April 2022

3 April 2022

14 April 2022

Allocation of Offering Shares 28 April 2022

Refund of subscription amounts to Within 5 working days from the date of announcement of the
subscribers allocation

Will be listed on Boursa Kuwait after the completion of all the
required regulatory procedure and register the shares with the
regulators and the Kuwait Clearing Agency

Trading the Offering Shares on
Boursa Kuwait

Abidance with the Laws

The Lead Manager and Subscription Agent and the Issuer shall comply with all laws and regulations relating
to the Issue Shares that may be effective in the countries where they wish to offer, market or subscribe the
Issue Shares or distribute this Prospectus. The Issuer and the Lead Manager and Subscription Agent shall
obtain all the applicable approvals, authorizations, and/or permits that are required by such countries in
order to carry out any of the activities set forth above according to the applicable laws and regulations in
each relevant country.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The total value of the capital increase after the addition of the issue premium is KD 104,946,661 (one
hundred and four million, nine hundred and forty-six thousand and six hundred and sixty-one Kuwait
Dinars). The proceeds of the capital increase will be used to develop the Issuer’s business to achieve growth
in the Issuer’s revenues and continue to implement its future plans and objectives, in addition to covering
the issuance expenses and some of the expenses incurred from the capital increase.

The following table shows the size of the issuance and the estimated uses of proceeds:

Nominal value of the Offering 52,473,330.5
Total value of the share issuance premium 52,473,330.5
Total 104,946,661

General corporate purposes 104,446,661
Share issuance related costs (maximum) 500,000
Total 104,946,661
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BUSINESS DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER
Incorporation

National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C. (also referred to herein as the “Group” or “Company” or “Issuer”
or “NIGH") is a public Kuwaiti shareholding company established under Amiri decree no. 1960/8 dated 10
August 1960 and its subsequent amendments. The Group is listed under Commercial Registration no. 8392
dated 23 April 2003 and is subject to regulations of the Ministry of Commerce and Industry (“MOCI") and
is also regulated by the Capital Markets Authority (“CMA”) in the State of Kuwait, in accordance with Law
No. 7 of 2010 concerning the establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and regulating the activity
of securities and its executive regulations issued pursuant to the Capital Markets Authority Resolution No.
(72) of 2015, as amended.

Registered Office

The Group’s registered office is Shuwaikh - Jahra Road Interchange, beside the Kuwait Red Crescent Society;
P.O. Box 417 Safat, 13005, State of Kuwait and its telephone number is +965 2484 4739 / 2484 9466.

Main Objectives as per the Articles of Association

1. Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-Kuwaiti shareholding companies and shares in Kuwaiti
or non-Kuwaiti limited liability companies and participating in the establishment of, lending to and
managing of these companies and acting as a guarantor for these companies.

2. Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the borrowing
company, along with acting as guarantor on behalf of these companies.

3. Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royalties, or any other related
rights, and franchising them to other companies or using them within or outside the State of Kuwait.

4. Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as stipulated
by law.

5. Employing excess funds available with the Group by investing them in investment and real estate
portfolios managed by specialized companies.

The Group may have an interest or participate in any way in entities that carry out activities similar to its
work or which may assist the Group in achieving its objectives in Kuwait or abroad, and may acquire or
integrate such entities with its operations.

Listing

The Group’s shares were publicly listed on Boursa Kuwait (formerly Kuwait Stock Exchange) on 29 September
1984.The Group is currently listed on the Premier Market of Boursa Kuwait.

Authorized, Issued and Paid-Up Capital

Asat 30 September2021,the Group had an authorized, issued and paid-up share capital of KD 149,923,801.4
comprising of 1,499,238,014 shares of KD 0.100 each.
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Major Shareholders

The following table presents the Group’s major shareholders that own 5% or more, as at 31 January 2022:

Shareholder Name Ownership (%)

Public Institution for Social Security (indirect) 11.11%

Kuwait Cement Company & Group (Amwaj Real Estate Company) (direct & indirect) 10.10%

Treasury Shares held by the Group amounted to 29,560,940 ordinary shares representing 2.00% of total outstanding shares of the Group, as at 30 September 2021.

Subsidiaries

The following table presents the Group’s subsidiaries as at 30 September 2021:

Countr Business Ownership
4 Activity %

Al Durra National Real Estate - KSC (Closed) Kuwait Real Estate 97%*
National Combined Industries Holding Company . op%
for Energy - KSC (Closed) Kuwait Investments 96%
Pearl National Holding - KSC (Closed) Kuwait Investments 99%*
Economic Holding Company - KSC (Closed) Kuwait Investments 97%*

United - . . o
BI Group Plc Kingdom Specialist Engineering 100%
Proclad Group Limited UAE Specialist Engineering 100%
Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited UAE Financial Services 100%
Pearl Offshore Enterprises Limited Bnrl:r:gzgm Investments 100%
Denham Investment Limited Cayman Investments 85%

Islands
Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company - KSC Kuwait Petroleum 7%
(Closed)
National Industries Company — KPSC Kuwait Industrial 50%
Noor Financial Investment Company — KPSC Kuwait F|narTC|aI 50%

Services

*The Group’s holding of these subsidiaries are 100% and the remaining stakes are held by nominees on its behalf

Associates

The following table presents the Group’s associates as at 30 September 2021:

Business Ownershi
Name Country Nature % P
Meezan Bank Ltd - (Quoted) Pakistan Islamic Banking 35%
Privatization Holding Company - KPSC (Quoted) Kuwait Investments 36%
Kuwait Cement Company - KPSC (Quoted) Kuwait Industrial 27%
Mabanee Company - KPSC (Quoted) Kuwait Real Estate 18%
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Overview

The National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C was incorporated in the State of Kuwait on 10 August
1960 as a Kuwaiti shareholding company under the Kuwaiti Companies Law No. 15 of 1960, originally
by the name of the National Industries Company K.S.C. The Group’s founding shareholders were several
government entities with a 51% share of the issued capital and a group of prominent Kuwaiti families with
the remaining 49%; the Group’s initial issued capital at the date of incorporation was 20 million Indian
Rupees (equivalent to 1.5 million Kuwaiti Dinars).

The Group is a diversified holding company, where its original business was the manufacturing of building
materials. Over the years, the Group has diversified though direct investments in oil, gas, petrochemicals,
heavy industries, infrastructure and privatization programs pertaining to power generation and public
utilities, in addition to investing in an extensive portfolio of international investments.

The Group was responsible for the management and operation of two government-owned factories
established by the Kuwaiti government in 1955 - a cement and a limestone production factory. In 1962,
NIGH began investing in industrial activity and established a water pipes and sewage plant through
Asbestos Kuwait Company as well as a factory for the manufacturing of products sourced from plastic
through the Plastic Industries Company.

During the 1960s, NIGH was behind a large number of industrial establishments, such as the Kuwait
Cement Company, Kuwait Metal Pipes Industries, Contracting and Marine Services Company, Gulf Cable
and Electrical Industries Company. Throughout the 1970s, the Group participated in the establishment of
two major industrial complexes for building materials, namely the Sulaibiyah Complex, which specializes
in products sourced from cement, and the Mina Abdullah Complex, which specializes in limestone-sourced
products and plastics. Furthermore, the Group became involved in the manufacturing of household goods
like washing detergents, under licensing from Henkel (Germany), and the production of automotive
batteries and tires.

During the 1980s, the Group participated in a number of industrial activities within and outside of Kuwait,
where it was the founder of the Saudi Sand Lime Bricks & Building Materials Company (KSA), the Gulf
Gravel Company (UAE) and the National Quarries Company (UAE).

In 1995, NIGH underwent a restructuring exercise where it exited certain activities and divested non-
core investments in order to focus on a select group of sectors instead. Moreover, the Group’s ownership
structure changed after government entities sought out to sell their shares through a public offering on
Boursa Kuwait (formerly Kuwait Stock Exchange).

Business Activities

The purpose of this section is to give an overview of the business activities of the Group. The below overview lists
the main investments of the Group and is in no way exhaustive of all the list of investments of the Group.

The Group operates as a holding company with a portfolio of wholly or partially-owned investments, in

addition to a portfolio of financial investments managed through third parties. NIGH’s investments are
focused on the following 6 key sectors:
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1. Building materials sector.

2. Petrochemicals sector.

3. Oil & Gas and Specialist Engineering Services sector.
4. Real Estate sector.

5. Utility Services sector.

6. Financial Services sector.

Investments by the Group under any of the aforementioned sectors can be further categorized as per the
following:

« Core Investments: Long-term investments in the Group’s key investment sectors, where it owns more
than 50% stake (although some exceptions may exist depending on the nature of the investment). The
Group controls the management of its Core Investments.

.+ Strategic Investments: Investments with an investment horizon of five to ten years during which
the Group may exit if a profitable opportunity arises. The Issuer typically holds a 10% to 50% stake of
Strategic Investments (some exceptions may exist depending on the nature of the investment). The
Group has a significant influence over the management of its Strategic Investments.

« Financial Investments: Short to medium term investments where the Group does not have control or
influence over such investments.

The following section illustrates the major subsidiaries, associates and investments of the Group as at 30
September 2021:
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Core and Strategic Investments

1. Building Materials Sector
1.1 National Industries Company K.P.S.C. (“NICBM”)
« Subsidiary (NIGH Direct & Indirect Ownership Share 50%)

Core Investment

NIGH has been operating within the building materials sector since the 1960s, where with the expansion
of its investments into various sectors, the Group decided to spin off its activities in the building materials
sector into a newly formed entity under the name of National Industries Company K.P.S.C. - a subsidiary
of the Group. NICBM was listed on Boursa Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) on 13 October 2003.
NICBM'’s paid-up capital amounted to KD 35.1 million as at 30 September 2021, where NIGH holds a 50%
share. The company is considered a Core Investment of the Group and is within its operational activities.

NICBM’s activities are focused on the manufacturing of building materials, in addition to providing
complementary products that meet the demand for building materials of the housing and infrastructure
projects in Kuwait and the MENA region. NICBM’s building materials products include limestone, sand
limestone, concrete pipes and polyethylene pipes. Moreover, NICBM manufactures concrete and plastic
pipes, and extracts rocks from a quarry that is leased from the government and is located in Al-Ahmadi
area.

NICBM owns two factories in Mina Abdullah and Sulaibiyah with a total of 16 production plants and a
quarry in Al-Ahmadi, as well as its partnership in factories present in Saudi Arabia, Bahrain and Oman. The
total number of NICBM employees is 1,800 as at 30 September 2021.

Mina Abdullah Factories Group

The Mina Abdullah factories group manufactures lime-sourced products, such as limestone and white
blocks, plastic-base products such as plastic pipes and equipment for industrial use, as well as a wide range
of building materials and other products for infrastructure projects and needs. The following is a list of
materials manufactured and factories operated by NICBM in Mina Abdullah: autoclaved aerated concrete
block, sand lime bricks, PVC, quarry, lime, plaster, wall-covering and cladding, high-density polyethylene
(HDPE), polypropylene, paint, ready-mix plant, ceramic and porcelain, and special use materials.

Sulaibiyah Factories Group

The Sulaibiyah factories group manufactures cement-based materials, such as ready-mix cement and a
variety of tiles and interlocked tiles, in addition to any supplementary products required for infrastructure
projects including concrete pipes and its derivatives. The following is a list of materials manufactured and
factories operated by NICBM in Sulaibiyah: ready-mix, tiles and curbstones, concrete pipes, interlock tiles,
and sand-washing station.
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The following table a summary of the financial performance and position of NICBM for the years ended
2018, 2019 and 2020 and the fiscal quarters ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenuel 52.9 48.1 36.2 25.0 30.5
Profit/(loss) 3.8 4.0 (0.7) (1.9 1.7
Total Assets 112.0 114.3 118.3 113.0 119.2
Total Liabilities 23.1 25.5 30.0 28.1 29.9
Shareholders’ Equity 88.9 88.8 88.3 84.9 89.3

1.2 Kuwait Cement Company K.P.S.C. (“KCEM")
« Associate (NIGH Direct Ownership Share 27%)

+ Strategic Investment

Kuwait Cement Company was established as a shareholding company in 1968, and was listed on Boursa
Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) in 1984. KCEM is considered to be the largest cement company
in Kuwait with a paid-up capital of KD 73.3 million as at 30 September 2021.

The company is primarily involved in the production, supply and transportation of cement. KCEM is the
primary national supplier of regular cement, regular portland cement resistant to sulfate, salt-resistant
cement, white portland cement for industrial purposes, cement used for petroleum wells, among other
types of cement in Kuwait.

The following table presents a summary of the financial performance and position of KCEM for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Sales 96.3 81.8 42.5 30.1 36.5
Profit/(loss) 7.9 40 (18.2) (16.1) (2.8)
Total Assets 301.9 316.0 279.0 282.8 292.1
Total Liabilities 108.8 106.7 103.0 107.3 959
Total Equity 193.2 209.3 176.0 175.5 196.2

2. Petrochemicals Sector
2.1 lkarus Petroleum Industries Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“lkarus”)
Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 72%)
« CoreInvestment
The Group established Ikarus Petroleum Industries Company (formerly known as National Company

for Cement Industries) on 1 February 1997. lkarus was listed on Boursa Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock
Exchange) in April 2008 but was later delisted in February 2017.
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Ikarus operates as a holding company that invests in local or regional firms operating in the oil and gas and
petrochemical industries. Ikarus’major investments include holdings in Sahara International Petrochemical
Company (formerly known as the Saudi International Petrochemical Company (Sipchem)) and Middle East
Chemical Company Ltd., both of which are based in Saudi Arabia and specialize in chemical manufacturing
operations.

The following table presents a summary of Ikarus’ financial performance and position for the years ended
31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenues 4.5 5.2 5.2 39 4.1
Net profit/(loss) 10.4 4.4 1.3 (2.5) 30.0
Total Assets 121.9 111.7 111.8 114.1 169.2
Total Liabilities 10.6 26.4 31.5 30.1 36.1
Total Equity 111.3 85.3 80.3 84.0 133.1

3. Oil and Gas and Specialist Engineering Services
3.1 Proclad Group Limited (“Proclad Group”)
Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 100%)

« CoreInvestment

Proclad Group is a holding company that was established in 1985, where the primary activities of the
company include oil and gas services and specialist engineering services managed through its subsidiary
United Cast Bar.

Proclad Group is a major producer of and utilizes advanced technology in the protective weld cladding
of pipeline components for the oil and gas, petrochemical and energy sectors. Proclad Group has refined
protective weld cladding solutions for pipelines and its components to cover internal surfaces from
anti-rust environments. Moreover, the operations of Proclad Group have expanded to include supplying
coating and cladding products, supplying hydraulic pipes, site installation across several sectors, special
applications of engineering, procurement and construction contracts, and special applications for oil & gas
companies.

Further, Proclad Group retains technical specializations in the key areas of oil & gas production around
the world, where its productions cover the Middle East, Brazil, Commonwealth Countries, North and West
Africa, North America, China and South-East Asia.

Proclad Group also maintains sales offices in Australia, the United States, China, Indonesia and South
Korea for coverage of oil & gas markets in those countries. The company’s customer base includes British
Petroleum (BP), ExxonMobil, Chevron, ADNOC - UAE, NPCC - UAE, PT Pertamina (Persero), Saudi Aramco,
Hyundai Oilbank, WorleyParsons, and Petrofac - UAE.
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The following table presents some of Proclad Group’s financial performance and position for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in USD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenues 177.2 214.6 180.2 118.5 119.6
Net profit/(loss) (10.4) (8.1) (4.4) (8.4) (10.1)
Total Assets 264.9 274.8 304.0 300.0 279.5
Total Liabilities 125.6 143.6 176.9 174.8 163.9
Total Equity 139.3 131.2 127.1 125.2 115.6

The following is a summary of Proclad Group’s major investments and subsidiaries:

3.1.1 United Cast Bar Limited (“UCB"”)
Subsidiary (Proclad Ownership Share 100%)

Core Investment

Proclad Group operates in activities of specialized engineering of minerals through its subsidiary United
Cast Bar, which was incorporated in February of 1998 as a merger between three specialized European
manufacturers of continuous cast iron bars, which are Eurocast Bar Ltd. (UK), Starkey’s Technicast Ltd. (UK)
and Cast Profil SA (Spain); the merger also included the combining of each of the companies’ production
facilities which specialize in the production of cast iron bars.

UCB is one of the leading manufacturers of cast iron and has more than 50% market share of markets it
operates in within Europe and Asia. UCB has offices in markets of Korea, Turkey, Germany, Austria, France,
Sweden and a number of other countries.

UCB have expanded their operations and distributions network via the expansion of its production capacity
in factories located in the UK and Spain to 65,000 tons/annum of Unibar, accomplished through 2 factories,
9 marketing centers across Europe and Asia and more than 300 employees.

3.2 Contracting and Marine Services Company K.S.C.C. (“CMS”)
« Associate (NIGH Ownership Share 17.8%)

Strategic Investment

The Contracting and Marine Services Company was established as a closed shareholding company on 13
September 1973, to provide marine and oil contracting services in Kuwait and the GCC region including
offshore drilling and maintenance of oil wells and other offshore oil and petroleum services. Moreover, CMS
has strategic investments in Kuwait Drilling Company and International Marine Construction Company.

CMS listed its shares on Boursa Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) in 1984 but was later delisted
in 2017.

3.3 Foulath Holding Company B.S.C. (“Foulath”)
«  NIGH Ownership Share 10%

Strategic Investment
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Foulath Holding Company was established in 2008 as a Bahraini holding company for the purpose of
investing in steel production within the GCC and MENA region. In 2010, Foulath inaugurated 3 main
production factories, which are considered to be, in addition to its previously constructed factories, an
integrated complex for the production of steel and iron in the Kingdom of Bahrain with the total investment
value reaching USD 3.5 billion. Furthermore, Foulath has established several companies that operate in
various stages of steel production, where it has established an integrated steel complex in the Kingdom
of Bahrain.

Foulath is categorized as a Strategic Investment and is classified in the financial statements of NIGH as
financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The following table presents some of Foulath’s financial performance and position for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in USD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenues 1,463.9 1,696.5 1,362.7 974.2 2,373.1
Net profit/(loss) 123.1 43.1 (15.7) (21.6) 97.5
Total Assets 2,461.7 2,323.2 2,343.9 2,346.4 2,671.9
Total Liabilities 1,103.5 1,036.0 1,075.5 1,079.3 1,298.6
Total Equity 1,358.2 1,287.2 1,268.4 1,267.1 1,373.3

3.4 Financial Investments in the Oil and Gas and Specialist Engineering Sectors

The following table presents other investments by the Group classified as Financial Investments under the
Oil & Gas and Specialist Engineering:

Financial Investments Ownership (%)

Dana Gas PJSC 2.4%

Dana Gas PJSC (“Dana Gas") is the Middle East’s first and largest regional private sector natural gas company.
It was established in December 2005 with a public listing on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX).
Dana Gas has exploration and production assets in Egypt, Kurdistan Region of Iraq (KRI) and UAE, with an
average production output of 63,200 boepd in first nine months of 2021. The company has sizeable assets
in Egypt, KRI and the UAE with total value of USD 2.7 billion and total equity amounted to USD 2.3 billion
as at 30 September 2021.

4. Real Estate Sector
4.1 Al Durra National Real Estate Company K.S.C.C. (“Al Durra”)
+ Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 100%)

« Core Investment

Al Durra was established in December 2005 as a fully-owned subsidiary of NIGH, under the name of the
National Company for Storage and Refrigeration K.S.C.C. Al Durra represents the real estate investments
arm of NIGH with a share capital of KD 100 million with total assets of KD 235.5 million as at 30 September
2021. In addition to its major investment in Mabanee Company, Al Durra is invested into a portfolio of
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investment properties that includes income-generating properties and land under construction, where
the total value of these investments reached KD 39.4 million as at 30 September 2021.

The following table presents a summary of Al Durra’s financial performance and position for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KWD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Income/(loss) 6.2 2.0 (3.0) (0.9) 10.4
Net profit/(loss) 4.6 7.1 (4.9) (2.1) 5.6

Total Assets 227.7 238.7 231.9 238.8 2355
Total Liabilities 45.2 49.2 48.7 50.9 46.0
Total Equity 182.5 189.5 183.2 187.9 189.5

As at 30 September 2021, Al Durra’s investments and corresponding ownership share of investments
include:

4.1.1 Mabanee Company K.P.S.C. (“Mabanee”)
Associate (NIGH Direct & Indirect Ownership Share 17.9%)

Strategic Investment

Mabanee was established in 1964 and listed on Boursa Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) in 1999.
Mabanee is the largest real estate company in Kuwait with a share capital of KD 117.1 million as at 30
September 2021.

One of the major assets of Mabanee is the Avenues Mall, the largest commercial mall in Kuwait consisting
of four phases in addition to a hotel and multiple cinema theaters spanning a total lease area of 425,000
square meters and an occupancy rate of 93.9% as at 30 September 2021. Mabanee also operates several
projects, which includes the Hilton Garden Inn, a four-star hotel located on the north side of Avenues
Mall, and the Waldorf Astoria Hotel, a five-star luxury hotel located on the south side of the Avenues Mall
and that is currently under construction with a completion rate of 93% as at 30 September 2021. Further,
the company continues to target Public-Private Partnerships (“PPP”) and Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT")
projects.

Mabanee also owns a range of projects within the GCC, including the Avenues Mall in Bahrain, where the
first phase comprises of 210 stores spanning a total lease area of 40,000 square meters and an occupancy
rate of 90% as at 30 September 2021; the second phase of the project is under development. Moreover,
Mabanee is also working on the development of Avenues Mall in Sharjah (UAE), Riyadh and Khobar (KSA).
The following table presents a summary of Mabanee’s financial performance and position for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:
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For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenues2 85.4 96.4 65.5 40.9 73.8
Net profit/(loss) 52.1 56.1 21.6 93 40.6
Total Assets 862.8 965.1 964.8 984.3 1,057.7
Total Liabilities 3774 418.2 409.8 439.7 469.4
Total Equity 485.4 546.9 555.1 5445 588.3

4.1.2 Real Estate Funds

In addition to the aforementioned investments, Al Durra invests in 17 foreign real estate funds valued at
a total of KD 5.6 million held across the United States, United Kingdom, China and Europe.

4.2 J3 for Management and Development of Lands and Real Estate W.L.L.

The J3 Investment Opportunity in Jaber Al-Ahmad Residential City was awarded in 2020 by the Public
Authority for Housing Welfare (“PAHW”) to a consortium of three Kuwaiti companies, containing NIGH,
Privatization Holding Company and Mabanee Company, where the winning consortium submitted the
best offer and was considered the “winning investor”for the project. The Group, along with its consortium,
have signed a partnership agreement on 15 July 2020 with PAHW, which includes the design, construction,
financing, operation, maintenance and transfer of the J3 Investment Opportunity, where the project
comprises a residential investment facility with 276 housing units and a commercial complex in Jaber Al-
Ahmad Residential City. The project will be developed by the consortium on a total area of 217,272 square
meters and is expected to be completed within a period of 4 years, followed by a 25-year right-of-use
period. The total project value is KD 156,300,000, where the total value is distributed as follows:

1. National Industries Group Holding 32.5%
2. Privatization Holding Company 32.5%
3. Mabanee Company 35.0%

The Privatization Holding Company and Mabanee Company are associates of the Group.

5. Utility Services Sector
5.1 Combined National Industries Holding Company for Energy K.S.C.C. (“NI Energy”)
+ Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 100%)

Core Investment

The Combined National Industries Holding Company K.S.C.C. was established on 6 May 2006 for the
purpose of targeting investments in the energy, utilities, infrastructure and renewable energy sectors
within the GCC, MENA and emerging markets. The primary activities of NI Energy include:

- Direct investments in energy, utilities and infrastructure sectors;
- Direct investments in BOT projects within the scope of Public-Private Partnerships (PPPs); and

- Mechanical maintenance of energy power stations and transmission and generation of electricity.
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The share capital of NI Energy amounted to KD 45 million as at 30 September 2021. Moreover, the table
below presents a summary of NI Energy’s financial performance and position for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenue/(loss) (0.3) 0.9 0.1 0.0 0.1
Net profit/(loss) (0.0 0.8 (0.0) 0.1 (0.1)
Total Assets 48.7 49.7 49.1 494 49.8
Total Liabilities 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 04
Total Equity 48.5 49.5 48.8 49.2 49.4

5.2 Denham Investment Limited (“Denham”)
Subsidiary (NI Energy Ownership Share 70%)

« CoreInvestment

Denham Investment Limited was established for the purpose of investment in KES Power Limited which
in turn invested in K-Electric Limited (“K-Electric”) (formerly known as Karachi Electric Supply Company
Limited).

KES Power Limited currently owns a 66.4% stake in K-Electric Limited, whereas Denham owns an 18.5%
stake in KES Power Limited. Denham Investment Limited owns indirectly 12.3% of K-Electric Limited
and is classified in the financial statements of NIGH as financial assets held at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

K-Electric is a fully integrated utility company located in Pakistan with significant dominance in the
generation, transmission and supply of energy to Karachi and surrounding cities. The company maintains
a total installed power generation capacity of more than 2,000 megawatts (MW) and a licensed area
spanning 6,500 km2. Moreover, K-Electric is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, and boasts a client base
of around 3.2 million customers.

6. Financial Services Sector

6.1 Noor Financial Investment Company K.P.S.C. (“Noor”)
Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 50%)

o Core Investment

Noor Financial Investment Company K.P.S.C. was established in 1996 in Kuwait and was listed on Boursa
Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) in May 2006. The company holds a variety of financial services
and real estate investments, manages portfolios and mutual funds and offers advisory services toits clients.
The company’s share capital amounts to KD 41.3 million as of 30 September 2021.

Noor has recently completed the merger of its subsidiary - Noor Telecommunication Holding Company
KSCC-into Noor by amalgamation. Noor’s equity has grown from KD 55 million in 2018 to KD 83.7 million as
of 30 September 2021. Further, Noor has reduced its total liabilities, which amounted to KD 29 million as of
30 September 2021, by divesting some of its investments and using the proceeds to repay the outstanding
liabilities. Total outstanding debt decreased by 61% to reach KD 18.4 million as of 30 September 2021
compared to KD 49 million as of 31 December 2018.
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Below is a summary of Noor’s financial performance and position for the years ended 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Income 30.7 30.0 285 21.6 25.2
Net profit/(loss) 23.8 8.9 12.1 9.5 13.9
Total Assets 131.3 108.2 107.2 106.6 115.4
Total Liabilities 61.7 37.0 336 35.9 293
Total Equity 69.1 71.3 73.6 70.7 86.1

The following is a summary of Noor’s major assets:

6.1.1 Meezan Bank Limited (Pakistan)
« Associate (Noor’s Ownership Share 35.3%)

+ Strategic Investment

Meezan Bank is the first and largest Islamic bank in Pakistan, established in 2002 with total assets reaching
KD 3 billion as of 30 September 2021, and its customer deposits represents more than 50% of the total
deposits of the Islamic banking sector in Pakistan. The bank has 849 branches all across Pakistan (as of 30
September 2021), where it offers traditional as well as alternative banking services to customers including
online banking, ATMs, Visa and MasterCard cards, debit cards, SMS services, mobile banking and payment
services through ATM. Meezan Bank is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange and has received a number of
recognition awards from local and international financial institutions in the past few years.

The following table presents a summary of Meezan’s financial performance and position for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Income 65.2 101.0 1344 102.4 106.1
Net profit/(loss) 16.2 28.0 40.2 32.7 354
Total Assets 1,667.8 1,994.4 2,703.5 2,353.9 3,016.1
Total Liabilities 1,590.7 1,883.2 2,573.9 2,220.1 2,863.5
Total Equity 77.2 111.2 129.7 133.9 152.7

6.1.2 Hotels Global Group Company P.S.C. (Jordan)
«  Subsidiary (Noor’s Ownership Share 100%)

Core Investment

The Hotels Global Group Company retains the management rights of Queen Alia International Airport’s
hotel for a period of 25 years, starting from 2008 until 2033. The hotel is a 4-star hotel with 300 rooms,
a variety of restaurants and many other services, and is managed through a team of hotel management
specialists that work for the company. As such, the Hotels Global Group Company offers hospitality and
hotel management services. In addition, the Hotels Global Group Company operates the Petra Lounge at
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Queen Alia International Airport; the lounge provides an ideal resting place for transit passengers, where
500 customers per day are served.

6.2 Eagle Propriety Investments Limited (“Eagle Investments”)
Subsidiary (NIGH Ownership Share 100%)

o Core Investment

A fully-owned subsidiary of the Group established in 2008, where it operates out of its headquarters in the
world-renowned Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC) with the particular purpose of investing in
private international assets as well as offering various other financial services.

6.3 Privatization Holding Company K.P.S.C. (“PHC")
« Associate (NIGH Direct Ownership Share 35.8%)

Strategic Investment

PHC is a shareholding company established in 1994 that became a publicly listed on Boursa Kuwait
(previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) in 2005. The company’s paid-up capital amounts to KD 61.0 million
as of 30 September 2021. PHC maintains a diversified investment portfolio of companies operating in the
infrastructure, energy, renewable energy, services, facilities, health care and real estate. PHC has a proven
track record of participating in many past and current opportunities and projects, within a PPP framework
in different sectors, in addition to investment opportunities in industrial land development and operational
projects in the MENA and GCC region, with a particular focus on Kuwait.

The following table presents a summary of PHC’s financial performance and position for the years ended
31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Revenue 94 16.4 8.8 44 7.2
Net profit/(loss) (4.0) (0.6) (4.2) (4.7) (1.4)
Total Assets 133.6 126.8 123.4 123.2 122.0
Total Liabilities 45.5 42.6 46.3 46.1 46.1
Total Equity 88.1 84.2 77.1 77.0 75.9

6.4 Kuwait Pillars for Financial Investment K.S.C.C. (“Kuwait Pillars”)

« Strategic Investment (NIGH Ownership Share 10.7%)

Kuwait Pillars (formerly Strategia Investment Company K.S.C.C.) was established in March 2004 with the
purpose of investing in funds and private equity, in addition to other investment activities. Kuwait Pillars
was publicly listed on Boursa Kuwait (previously Kuwait Stock Exchange) on 3 December 2008 and was
delisted Kuwait on 1 March 2016. Kuwait Pillars has a group of subsidiaries specialized in various fields of
investment, both in Kuwait and the United States of America, in addition to the management of funds and
private equity investments.

Kuwait Pillars is considered a strategic investment for the Group, and is classified in the financial statements
of the Group as financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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The following table presents a summary of Kuwait Pillars’ financial performance and position for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 and the nine months ended 30 September 2020 and 2021:

For the nine months
For the year ended 31 December ended 30 September

in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Income 14 29 (3.9) (1.8) 49
Net profit/(loss) 0.1 1.6 (5.1) (2.6) 4.0
Total Assets 40.2 42.7 37.6 40.6 45.6
Total Liabilities 5.6 6.5 6.3 6.8 10.2
Total Equity 34.6 36.2 31.3 33.8 354

6.5 Financial Investments of the Issuer in the Financial Services sector

Below is a list of the major investments by the Issuer in the financial services sector and which are
categorized as Financial Investments for the Issuer as at 30 September 2021:

Financial Investments Ownership (%)

Al Ahleia Insurance Company S.A.K.P. 8.5%
Egypt Kuwait Holding Company E.J.S.C. 3.4%
Kuwait Finance House K.S.C.P. 1.6%
National Bank of Kuwait S.A.K.P. 0.9%

Financial Investments

In addition to the group of Financial Investments mentioned above in each of sectors, the Group’s Financial
Investments include a diversified portfolio of local and foreign securities and funds, which are held
directly and indirectly through its subsidiaries and associates. The estimated value of the Group’s financial
investments portfolio (including some Strategic Investments) is KD 584.4 million, comprising of KD 393.2
million in financial assets held at fair value through P&L and KD 191.2 million in financial assets held at fair
value through OCl as at 30 September 2020.

Financial assets held at fair value through P&L are comprised of short to medium term investments in
quoted equities and debt instruments, unquoted equity participations, and managed portfolios and funds.
The following is a summary of the Group’s financial assets held at fair value through P&L:

For the nine
For the year ended 31 months ended 30
December

September
in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2021
Local quoted shares 147.9 188.8 161.9 193.3
Foreign quoted shares 66.6 514 44 .4 82.6
Unquoted equity participations 21.6 26.4 13.9 14.1
Quoted debt securities 1.3 1.3 - -
Local funds 2.5 2.6 23 2.2
Foreign managed portfolios and 124.8 139.9 910 101.0
funds
Total financial assets held at FVTPL 364.7 4104 3135 393.2
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Financial assets held at fair value through OCl are comprised of medium to long-term investments in quoted
and unquoted shares and managed portfolios and funds. A summary of the Group’s financial assets held at
fair value through OCl is as follows:

For the nine
For thg:::;‘;r:led 31 months ended 30
September
in KD million 2018 2019 2020 2021
Local quoted shares 10.2 12.7 83 11.0
Foreign quoted shares 35.6 35.0 33.2 39.5
Local unquoted equity participations 23.7 253 25.2 15.1
Foreign unquoted equity participations 117.4 107.1 142.6 103.8
Managed portfolios and funds. 29.6 23.8 21.6 21.8
Total financial assets held at FVTOCI 216.5 203.9 230.9 191.2
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STRATEGY AND BUSINESS PLAN

The Group’s strategy focuses on the development and expansion of the operational activities of its Core
Investments, in addition to improving the efficiency of managing its Strategic and Financial Investments
in order to achieve optimal financial management and results for the Group. As such, the Group’s strategy
can be summarized as follows:

1. Core Investments

« National Industries Company K.P.S.C.

NICBM was established in Kuwait in 1961 to manufacture and market building materials and
infrastructure products. NICBM remains a leader in the construction and building materials sector
in Kuwait and GCC due to the expansion of its industrial base and its commitment to a product
diversification strategy to guarantee income growth and an increase in shareholders’ equity. The
company owns and operates 16 production plants and a quarry, and has 1,800 employees.

In addition, NICBM aims to increase its market presence in the other GCC countries through
acquisitions of well-performing companies operating in the building material sector. In recent
years, NICBM has acquired stakes in companies in Saudi Arabia and Oman.

« lkarus Petroleum Industries Company K.S.C.C.

Ikarus is well-established as a leading investor in the energy industry throughout the Middle East,
which is rapidly growing as a global center in the production of petrochemicals. Ikarus seeks to
achieve geographicand sectoral expansion through direct investments or acquisition of companies
operating in the petrochemicals sector in the GCC.

Ikarus owns a controlling stake in Middle East Chemical Company Limited, which owns 100% of a
KSA-based Chlor Alkali producer (“SACHLO”). SACHLO produces caustic soda, chlorine, hydrochloric
acid and sodium hypochlorite.

« Proclad Group Limited

Proclad Group has firmly established itself as one of the leading suppliers of integrated solutions to
a diverse range of market sectors with manufacturing facilities in the United Arab Emirates, United
Kingdom and Europe. With a commitment to providing clients with the complete service, Proclad
Group has developed a group of specialist companies through a combination of investment and
acquisition and delivering its best products with competitive efficiency.

« Al Durra National Real Estate Company K.S.C.C.
Al Durra was established in 2005 to provide leadership in the expanding real estate industry
throughout the GCC countries and the MENA region. In addition, Al Durra’s focus will be on
completing real estate projects currently under development and benefiting from income-
generating properties.

« Noor Financial Investment Company K.P.S.C.

Noor Financial Investment Company was established in Kuwait in 1997 and its shares were listed
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on the Kuwait Stock Exchange in May 2006. Noor is engaged in investment activities and financial
services primarily in Kuwait, the Middle East, Asia, and other emerging markets. Noor offers a
full spectrum of innovative and unrivalled investment and financial services which include both
advisory and asset management.

Noor aims to implement an exit plan from some of its investments; most notably, Noor has gradually
reduced its stake in Meezan Bank’s to 35.3% as at 30 September 2021, compared to 49.1% as at 31
December 2017.

« Eagle Proprietary Investments Limited

Eagle Investments’strategy aims at continuing its investment activities, providing financial advisory
services, and expanding its asset management services. Eagle Investments launched its first fund
(US Income-Producing Real Estate) in the United States.

2, Strategic and Financial Investments

National Industries Group Holding aims at ensuring the continued effective management of its Strategic
and Financial investments whilst achieving profitable returns through the development of the best
investment practices that are appropriate to the given market conditions and the enhancement of
investment controls, which are summarized below:

« Maintaining a portfolio of growth stocks along with a portfolio of selected value stocks,

« Maintaining high liquidity of assets, and

« Achieving positive returns on the Group’s Strategic and Financial Investments.

3. Financial Performance

« Reducing Debt Levels and Decreasing the Leverage Ratio

The Group is targeting, in the medium to long-term, to reduce its leverage ratio to reach (1:1) debt-
to-equity from its current level of (1:1.2) as at 30 September 2021, by developing a plan to repay its
existing debts.

o Exit of Non-Core Investments

The Group aims to exit some of its non-core investments in the next five years in return for favorable
returns, with the objective of using the proceeds to reduce the Group’s indebtedness. The timing of
exits from investments will depend on market conditions, as well as approvals from the concerned
parties. The Group does not intend to rush out of any of its non-core investments without achieving
appropriate returns.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The scope of implementation of this policy is within the scope of risk management, and includes all
departments and systems that are subject to direct compliance and risk management, including internal
control systems that include the integrity of financial statements, the efficiency of the Group’s operations
and adherence to supervisory controls. Risk management encompasses all internal or external factors that
lead to risk.

Governance Framework for Risk Management

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the strategic direction of the Group through the
adoption of the Group’s strategic plan and defining its risk management strategy as well as Risk Appetite.
The risk strategy is translated into a risk management policy that is applied to the Group’s executive
management as the first line of defense.

The risk management function is an independent function that is directly reporting to the Risk Committee
and is the Group’s second line of defense, representing the supervisory and guidance role of the senior
management and under the supervision of the Board of Directors.

1. Risk Aversion
The Group determines the risk appetite by determining the material amount of the Group’s risk appetite.
2. Risk Management Responsibilities

The overall risk management responsibilities are as follows:

- Establish the necessary foundations for identifying, identifying and analyzing types of risks to
which the Group is exposed.

« Continuously assess and measure those risks.

« Ensuring that the accepted risk level in the Group is not exceeded and approved by the Board of
Directors.

- Take preventive measures and corrective steps to transfer risk to an acceptable level with risk limits.

« Implement risk management strategies and policies established by the Risk Management
Committee.

- Develop a risk database and classify it according to its expected effects.
« Implementing plans to deal with risks and procedures.

« Dealing with executive management with regard to day-to-day operations and implementation of
risk management plans.

« Continue to monitor these risks through the reporting mechanism submitted to the Risk
Management Committee.

« Develop and support risk management culture by creating a common language that helps to
understand and identify risks and to organize activities accordingly.

+ Review the transactions proposed by the Group with related parties and make appropriate
recommendations regarding the risks arising from such transactions to the Board of Directors.
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2.1 As part of the Group’s risk management policy, the responsibilities for implementing these
policies are shared as follows:

2.1.1 Responsibility of the Group’s Board of Directors:

The formation of a risk management committee emanating from the Board dealing with risk
management whose role is to develop risk management policies and regulations consistent with
the Group’s risk appetite.

Know and manage the strategic risks facing the group.

Adopt Group strategies, policies and plans in risk and crisis management based on the Risk
Management Committee reports.

Identify and approve acceptable level of risk in the group.

Oversee the Risk Management Committee to ensure that it monitors the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management activities.

Disclose to shareholders, potential investors and related stakeholders the risks facing the Group
and how to deal with them, in accordance with disclosure policies approved for publication.

2.1.2 Responsibility of the Risk Management Unit within the Group:

Develop the necessary control systems and procedures based on the perception of the risks facing
the group.

Review any risk profile submitted by department managers and prepare a regular report on the
risk management framework and risk structure and submit these reports to the Risk Management
Committee.

Identify, develop and monitor the implementation of risk management strategies, plans and
procedures to identify, measure, control and monitor the risks inherent in the Group’s activities.

Propose exposure limits for all Group activities, whether exposure to financial risk, operational risk,
credit risk, reputational risk or other risks to the Group.

2.1.3 Responsibility of managers of various departments in the Group:

Identify risks within their responsibilities and activities, and recognize their potential impact on
their management, other departments, or the group as a whole.

Develop performance indicators that allow monitoring of key management activities.

Designing systems to report deviations in performance in a systematic manner.

Regular and rapid reporting of any new risks or failure of the applicable supervisory procedures.
Ensure the continued application and effectiveness of approved risk management tools and

procedures.

2.1.4 Responsibility of employees in the Group:

Realize their responsibilities for individual mistakes.
Recognize the importance of contributing to the development of risk management tools.

Regular and rapid reporting of risk management for new risks or failure of supervisory procedures.



3. Classification of Risk Categories

The use of a unified risk classification system in the Group helps to collect risks in a single registry to
determine the overall impact on the Group’s activities. Risks are usually classified in different ways
depending on the nature of the activity and the market, but common definitions can be summarized and
disseminated to different types of activities and businesses. The Group has adopted a risk rating system
described below which is designed to be as comprehensive as possible:

3.1.0perational risk: The risk of losses arising from the inefficiency or failure of internal processes,
individuals and systems or arising as a result of external events.

3.2.Credit risk: The potential loss resulting from the customer’s inability or willingness to meet its
obligations on time. These risks are compounded by credit concentration.

3.3.Market risk: These are the risks arising from unexpected changes in supply and demand or prices in
the markets through which the Group operates.

3.4.Leqgalrisks: These include risks arising from contracts or other arrangements that are not in force through
the means available. Examples include inadequate documentation, legal contracts and litigation.

3.5.5trategic risks: These include risks arising from the Group’s inability to achieve or implement the
Group’s specific objectives as well as performance management. This can include, for example:
deviations in strategy achievement, planning failure, budget, competition, regulatory environment,
economic, joint ventures, and business / new investments.

3.6.Reputational risk: Risks arising from changes in public opinion which affect profits or access to
capital. This includes: brand, media relations, group contacts with the public.

3.7.Environmental hazards: These are risks that arise due to incompatibility with local, regional or
international environmental laws and regulations. Examples of this are large fires, waste from
production processes.

3.8.Financial risk: The risks associated with shortfalls in financial resources and their management.
Examples include high cost of capital, labor or materials, deviation in business costs from original
estimates.

3.9.Liquidity risk: The risk arises from the Group’s inability to meet its financial obligations or emergency
funding requirements due to the unavailability of cash.

3.10 Health and safety risks: These are the risks that arise due to incompatibility or lack of application of
health and safety procedures, policies or controls. Examples include: loss of time, injury or iliness
associated with nature, and fire hazards.

3.11 Human resources risk: risks arising from the use of inadequate or qualified human resources.
Examples include insufficient qualifications for applicants during the recruitment phase, loss of
important staff to competitors as a result of wage increases.

3.12 Political risk: risks arising from the actions of local, regional, international or special interest groups.

3.13_Regulatory risk: risks arising from unexpected changes to domestic, regional, international or
regulatory policy. Examples: Changes in regulations governing transport operations, customs tariff
changes.

3.14 Technology risk - Information Systems: risks arising from insufficient IT resources or inappropriate
use of available resources as well as risks associated with managing technology changes and failure
toimplement technology. Examplesinclude: unused technology, and failure in operational systems.

3.15 Compliance / Governance Risk: These are the risks associated with deficiencies in working within
the framework of general instructions and corporate governance regulations. For example: failure
to involve all stakeholders at all levels.
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3.16_Pandemic risks: These are the risks associated with the emergence of new and unexpected
pandemics. An example of this is the emerging Covid-19 virus.

3.17 Business continuity risks: These are risks related to the inability to respond effectively to concerns /
major disruptions / or crises, and the lack of assurance that business interests (operations / people
/ technology / assets / etc.) are protected from such fears and crises.

4. Risk Management Reports

In order for the risk management program to be effective, periodic assessment and review (at least
semi-annual) should be undertaken to determine whether or not the objectives have been achieved. In
particular, risk management costs, risk management programs and loss prevention programs must be
closely monitored. Loss rates should also be tested to detect any changes in the frequency and size of the
loss.

The risk officer should also determine whether or not the Group’s risk management policy has been
implemented and whether it receives overall cooperation from other departments in the implementation
of risk management functions. The Risk Management Department issues several reports, the most
important of which are:

« Provideregularreports with relevantinformation, including recommendations to the Risk Management
Committee / Board of Directors and Executive Management that support effective risk management.

« Preparation of a semi-annual report on risk management activity to be presented to the Risk
Management Committee for presentation to the Board of Directors. The report details the specific risks
and methods of dealing with them and the results of this transaction.

+ Include detailed information on risk management regarding its structure, nature of operations, strategy
and developments in the Group’s annual report.

« Provide the Risk Management Committee and the Board with the necessary consolidated reports
describing the risk profile, recommendations on how best to mitigate and mitigate them, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s controls and controls.

The risk reporting procedures should be clear and available to the concerned parties in the group. The
report compiler should generally address the following points in the prepared report:

«  Control methods, especially the management responsibilities of risk management.

« Procedures used to define risks and how to deal with them through risk management systems.

«  Apply priority control systems to manage critical risks.

« Implement follow-up and review systems.

« Any significant shortfall should be recorded by the risk management system or any deficiency in the
system itself, as well as the steps already taken to deal with the shortfall.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance standards adopted by the Group are as per the requirements set in Module 15
of the Executive Bylaws specified by the CMA Kuwait, amended by Law No. 7 of 2010. The following is a
summary of the corporate governance standards:

Rule One: Construct a Balanced Board Composition

The Group’s current Board of Directors was elected during the ordinary General Assembly meeting held
on 2 May 2019 in line with the corporate governance standards set, where it necessitates that the majority
of Board members must be non-executive (8 non-executive Board members), in addition to at least one
independent member being elected. The Group’s Board of Directors hold diverse expertise from a variety
of professional fields related to the Group’s activity, where the Board was re-formed during 2018.

Rule Two: Establish Appropriate Roles and Responsibilities

The authorities and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Executive Management are clearly
identified in the approved policies, procedures and charters, where it clearly indicates that no party is
permitted an absolute power in order to ensure the accountability of the Board of Directors by the Group’s
shareholders.The Board holds liable the ultimate responsibility in managing the Group, even when forming
committees or delegating to other entities or individuals to perform work on their behalf.

Formation of Specialized Committees to Promote Independence

The Board has formed specialized committees to assist in performing its functions effectively according
to the needs and nature of the Group, to ensure the sound application of all its corporate governance
standards and requirements, which includes the Audit Committee, Risk Committee and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, in accordance with the requirements of the CMA. The Board of Directors
have reviewed all regulations and working procedures of all existing committees.

Functions of the Audit Committee

+ Review the periodic financial statements before submission to the Board of Directors, as well as
providing an opinion or recommendation to the Board, with the aim of ensuring the fairness and
transparency of financial reporting.

« Recommend the appointment, reappointment or change of external auditors to the Board, and
determine their fees.

« Follow up on external auditors and ensure they provide the required auditing services to the Group.

+ Review the external auditors’ notes on the financial statements of the Group and what has been
accomplished with respect to notes.

« Assess the adequacy of internal control systems within the Group and to prepare a report containing
the opinions and recommendations of the Committee in this regard.

« Technical supervision of the Group’s outsourced internal audit consultant, to verify its effectiveness in
carrying out specific tasks and actions by the Board of Directors.

«  Recommend the appointment, transfer, removal and performance evaluation of the outsourced
internal audit consultant.

« Review and approve the audit plans proposed by the internal auditor, as well as provide feedback.

+ Review the results of the internal audit reports and ensure that corrective actions have been taken on
the observations contained in the reports.
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« Review the results of the reports of regulatory bodies and ensure that the necessary measures have
been taken.

«  Ensure the Group’s compliance to laws and policies, regulations and instructions.

« Hold periodic meetings (quarterly), 4 times during the year and whenever necessary, and ensure the
documentation of minutes of meeting through the Secretary of the committee.

Members of the Audit Committee

Members Position

Mr. AbdulAziz Ibrahim Al-Rabiaah Chairman
Mr. Mohammed AbdulMohsen Al-Asfour Member
Dr. AbdulAziz Rashed Al-Rashed Member
Mr. Hussam Fawzi Al-Kharafi Member

Functions of the Risk Committee

« Prepare and review risk management policies and strategies adopted by the Board of Directors, ensure
their implementation and confirm that such policies and strategies align with the nature and size of
the Group’s activities.

« Ensure availability of resources and adequacy of risk management systems.

« Evaluate systems and mechanisms for identifying, measuring and monitoring various types of risk that
the Group may be exposed to in order to identify deficiencies.

« Assist the Board of Directors in identifying and assessing the acceptable level of risk exposure for the
Group, and ensure the Group does not exceed level approved by the Board.

+ Review the organizational structure of risk management and make recommendations prior to adoption
from the Board.

« Ensure the independence of risk management personnel on activities that expose the Group to risks.

« Ensure risk management personnel have full understanding of risks surrounding the Group, and work
towards raising awareness and educating employees on risk exposures.

«  Discuss periodic reports submitted by risk management on the nature of the risks the Group is exposed
to and present reports to the Board.

« Review issues raised by the Audit Committee that may impact the Group’s risk management.

« Hold periodicmeetings, 4 timesduring theyearand whenever necessary,and ensure the documentation
of minutes of meeting through the Secretary of the committee.

Members of the Risk Committee

Mrs. Maha Khaled Al-Ghunaim Chairman
Mr. Ali Murad Youssef Behbehani Member
Mr. Hussam Fawzi Al-Kharafi Member
Mr. Mohammed AbdulMohsen Al-Asfour Member

Functions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

+ Recommend the nomination or re-nomination to the Board and Executive Management.
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« Establish a clear policy for the remuneration of the Board and Executive Management, conduct an
annual review of the required skills for Board membership, as well as attract applicants to fill executive
positions when necessary and examine and review such applications; classify remuneration into
segments to be awarded to employees, such as fixed bonuses, performance-related bonuses, bonus
shares and end-of-service bonuses.

« Ensure the independence of an independent Board member is not denied.

« Preparing a governance report on an annual basis that includes the total remuneration granted to
members of the Board of Directors, executive management, and managers, whether in cash, benefits,
regardless the nature of those benefits, directly or indirectly, through the company or its subsidiaries.

« Deal with tasks and responsibilities related to the selection of qualified members to the Board and
Executive Management while defining the framework for the evaluation and remuneration of their
performance; assess and evaluate Board members and the Executive Management, in addition to
provide required training courses during the year for the development of Board members.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Members Position

Mr. Sulaiman Hamad Al-Dalali Chairman
Mr. Mohammed AbdulMohsen Al-Asfour Member
Mr. Salah Khaled Al-Fulaij Member

Rule Three: Recruit Highly Qualified Candidates for the Members of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is formed by 3 members of the Board of Directors, where
at least one member is required to be an independent Board member. The Committee’s Chairman must
be a member of the Non-Executive Members of the Board of Directors. Members with the appropriate
professional experience related to human resources and management were selected in accordance with
the nature of the Group’s work in order to carry out all purposes relating to the selection of new members
of the Board and the Executive Management.

Rule Four: Safeguard the Integrity of Financial Reporting

The reliability of a company’s financial statements is one of the most important indicators of integrity
and credibility with respect to the presentation of its financial position, and which increases investors'’
confidence in relation to the information provided and allows shareholders to exercise their rights. The
Group is keen on ensuring the integrity of its financial statements through the supervision and auditing of
accounts, such as by the Audit Committee, and verify the independence and impartiality of the external
auditor. The internal audit function of the Group is completely outsourced to an external consultant who
reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Rule Five: Apply Sound Risk Management and Internal Audit Systems

The Group has an independent risk management department that acts to measure, monitor and limit all
kinds of risk exposure, in accordance with the effective risk management systems and procedures set, and
to ensure the Group is able to perform its main functions of measuring and containing all risks facing it.
These processes are carried out continuously and must be reviewed periodically, and are amended when
necessary.
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The internal audit function aims to improve the integrity and accuracy of financial statements, in addition
to protecting the Group’s assets and rights of stakeholders and provide for the relevant regulatory
requirements. The internal audit function and risk management unit operates appropriately and
independently. The Board’s audit committee is responsible for assisting the Board in overseeing the quality
and integrity of the accounting, auditing, internal control and financial reporting practices of the Group, as
well as the relationship of the Group with external auditors.

Rule Six: Promote Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards

The Executive Management has formulated charters that include the standards and determinants of
professional conduct and ethical values at the Group. The Group has separate Codes of Professional
Conduct for each of the Board’s members, executives, managers and employees. It includes standards and
guidelines for professional conduct and ethical values that address the principle of commitment for each
of the Board members, executives, managers and employees towards complying with all laws, the Group
and its Shareholders and the interest of all Stakeholders — not the interest of a specific group only.

Rule Seven: Ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors are obliged to develop mechanisms for a quality, and transparent disclosure to be in
line with the relevant laws and regulations issued by the Group’s law or CMA regarding that matter. Those
disclosures are classified into either a Group’s disclosure or Board of Directors and executive management
disclosures, where the disclosures log should be updated regularly.

Disclosures of board members and executive management are updated regularly in a register, that register
is made available for shareholders of the company, without any fee or charge, the Group is also committed
to update this log data periodically to reflect the true situation of the related involved.

The Group has a unit that meant to manage the investors’ affairs, this unit is responsible for providing data
and information and reports required for potential investors, are providing those investors with any data
and information and reports accurately and timely.

The Group has a dedicated section on the website for Corporate Governance, where all information is
displayed.

Rule Eight: Respect the Rights of Shareholders

The Board and Executive Management shall guarantee Shareholders’rights in exercising their privileges to
a significant extent of fairness and equality, ensuring equal dealing between all Shareholders, protection
against breach of rights, as well as protecting Shareholders’ capital from misuse by the Group’s managers,
Board members and major Shareholders. The Group shall deal with Shareholders with the same class of
shares equally and without any discrimination. Under no circumstance shall the Group withhold any of the
Shareholders’ rights or establish any standards that discriminate between groups of Shareholders, so as
not to harm the interests of the Group or work in contradiction to the laws and regulations set.

The Group has a contract with the Kuwait Clearing Company (“KCC”), where KCC creates a registry contains
the investor name, nationality, residence, and the number of shares owned by each of them, any investor
may request the KCC to provide the data from this register.

The Board of Directors the shareholders to the meet within the three months that follow the end of the
financial year, the time and the place is to be determined according to the company’s bylaws. The BOD
may invite this AGM to meet whenever necessary.
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Rule Nine: Recognize the Roles of Stakeholders

The Group’s Board and Executive Management are committed to protecting the rights of Stakeholders as
part of its Corporate Governance framework. The policy of protecting Stakeholders has been developed in
such a way that ensures the protection and acknowledgement of the rights of Stakeholders. The Group’s
Board is responsible for establishing and updating the standards of the protection of Stakeholders'rights.
In addition, the Group has systems and policies in place that safeguard the rights of Stakeholders, including
dealings with Board members and Related Parties that are subject to the same conditions as the Group
with various Stakeholders, without any discrimination or preferential treatment.

Rule Ten: Encourage and Enhance Performance

The Group is responsible for the continuous training, development and any other training-related aspect
of Board members and the Executive Management, accomplished through the setting up of induction
programs for newly appointed members that ensure they have the proper understanding of the Group’s
functions and operations. These offered programs would revolve around the Group’s strategy and
objectives, the financial and operational aspect of all Group activities, and the legal and supervisory
obligations of the Board and the Group.

Rule Eleven: Focus on the Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility

The company is keen to develop its societal development and strategy with the social, economic and
environmental needs and utility results to the community and the company.

“Al-Mabarra” was able despite her upbringing - since 2007 to support many charitable projects that

reinforce diverse national belonging to the country and appoint needy nationals and expatriates, both on
the level of education or health or social, economic or other levels.
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MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors consists of 9 elected members. Each member is elected during the
shareholders’ General Assembly meeting by secret ballot. The membership of the Board shall continue for
a term of three years and is renewable. Board Members possess the authority to manage the Group and
carry out all acts required in accordance with its business objectives, and shall not be limited except as
provided by the laws and resolutions of the General Assembly.

The meeting of the Board of Directors shall not be valid unless attended by half of the members provided
that the number of attendees shall not be less than five. The Board of Directors shall meet at least six
times during one year, and more times may be agreed upon. The Board meetings are only valid when the
majority of its members are present. Decisions of the Board shall be issued when a majority of its members
are present.

The table below presents the members of the Group’s Board of Directors and the corresponding
shareholding percentage, as of the date of this Prospectus:

Board Member Name Post No. of Shares Ownership %
Mr. Saad Mohammed Al Saad Chairman 8,882,695 0.592%
Mr. Sulaiman Hamad Al-Dalali Deputy Chairman 193,942 0.013%
Mr. AbdulAziz Ibrahim Al-Rabiaah Member 455,391 0.030%
Mr. Ali Murad Youssef Behbehani Member 5,361,673 0.358%
Mr. Hussam Fawzi Al-Kharafi Member 105,053 0.007%
Dr. AbdulAziz Rashed Al-Rashed Member 27,921 0.002%
Mr. Mohammed AbdulMohsen Al-Asfour Member 3 0.000%
Mrs. Maha Khaled Al-Ghunaim Member 264,002 0.018%
Mr. Salah Khaled Al-Fulaij Member 0 0.000%

The following is a brief biography of each of the Board members:

Mr. Saad Mohammed Al Saad

Chairman, Board of Directors
Appointment Date: 2004

« Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Cairo University, Egypt

Current posts:
Board member, Egypt Kuwait Holding Company since 1999

Previous posts:

«  Chairman and Managing Director, Contracting & Marine Services Company
« Chairman, Kuwait Accountants and Auditors Association
Vice Chairman, Kuwait National Petroleum Company

«  Board member, Supreme Council for Planning and Development
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« Board member, Kuwait Building & Construction Company
Board member, National Bank of Kuwait

« Board member, Gulf Cable and Electrical Industries Company
Board member, Kuwait Aviation Fueling Company (KAFCO)
Board member, Kuwait Cement Company

« Board member, Delta Insurance Company - Cairo, Egypt

Board member, Saudi Sand Lime Bricks & Build M. Company - Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

Mr. Sulaiman Hamad Al-Dalali

Deputy Chairman, Board of Directors
Appointment Date: 2004

« Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Cairo University, Egypt

Current posts:

Vice Chairman, Kuwait Reinsurance Company

Previous posts:

Chairman, Al-Ahlia Insurance Company
« Board member, Burgan Insurance Company - Lebanon
Board member, Arab Life and Accident Insurance Company — Jordan
« Board member, Trade Union Co-Operative Insurance — Saudi Arabia
Board member, Al Watania Insurance Company - Sana’a, Yemen.
« Chairman and Managing Director, Gulf Insurance Company
Assistant Under Secretary, Kuwait University

Vice Chairman and CEO of the establishment of transactions of forward sale of companies’ shares

Mr. AbdulAziz Al-Rabiaah

Member, Board of Directors
+ Appointment Date: 1979

Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Kuwait University

Current posts:

Chairman, National Industries Company

Previous posts:

Vice Chairman, National Industries Company
« General Manager, Mohammed Abdullah Al-Rabia & Partners Company

Board member, Kuwait Cement Company
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« Board member, Kuwait Pipe Industries and Oil Services Company

Assistant Professor at Kuwait University

Mr. Ali Murad Youssef Behbehani

Member, Board of Directors
Appointment Date: 1996

« Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree English Language and Literature and Education from
Kuwait University

Current posts:

Chairman, Morad Yousuf Behbehani Group
«  Chairman, Kuwait Insurance Company
Vice Chairman, Gulf Bank

« Board member, Kuwait Danish Dairy Company

Previous posts:

Board member, Kuwait National Cinema Company

Board member, Kuwait Pipe Industries and Oil Services Company

Mr. Hussam Fawzi Al-Kharafi

Member, Board of Directors
+ Appointment Date: 2007

Academic Qualifications:

- Master’s degree in Public Policy in Islam from Hamad bin Khalif University in Qatar

- Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from Kuwait University

Current posts:

Member of the Executive Committee and Head of Real Estate and Urban Development of Mohamed
AbdulMohsen Al-Kharafi and Sons Group

Chairman, Mak Investments Group Company - Port Ghalib, Egypt
« Board member, Egypt Kuwait Holding Company

Previous posts:

Chairman, Noor Financial Investment Company
« Board member, Boubyan Bank

Board member, Al-Ahlia Insurance Company
« Board member, National Real Estate Company

Board member, Mabanee Company
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Dr. AbdulAziz Rashed Al-Rashed

Member, Board of Directors
« Appointment Date: 2016

Academic Qualifications: PhD in Electrical Engineering from the University of Wisconsin — USA

Current posts:

Chairman, Kuwait Drilling Company

« Board member, Contracting & Marine Services Company

Mr. Mohammed AbdulMohsen Al-Asfour

Member, Board of Directors - Independent
Appointment Date: 2013

« Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Cairo University

Current posts:

Vice Chairman and CEO, Kuwait Building Materials Manufacturing Company

Vice Chairman, Privatization Holding Company

Previous posts:

«  Minister of State for Housing Affairs.

General Manager, Kuwait Institute for Scientific Research (KISR).
« Secretary General of Kuwait University.

Board member, Public Authority for Housing Welfare.
« Vice President of Kuwait Ports Authority.

Vice Chairman of National Cleaning Company.

Vice Chairman, Planning & Engineering of Arab Petroleum Pipelines Company (SUMED) - Egypt.

Mrs. Maha Khaled Al-Ghunaim

Member, Board of Directors

+ Appointment Date: 1996
Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics from San Francisco State University -
California, USA

Previous posts:

« Co-Founder /Vice Chairman and CEQ, Global Investment House
Board member, Dar Al Tamleek - Riyadh, Saudi Arabia
Vice Chairman, National Ranges Company “Mayadeen”

« Vice Chairman, Shurooq Investment Services Company
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«  Board member, Kuwait University — College of Business Administration
« Board member, Union of Investment Companies — Kuwait

«  Member, Financial & Investment Committee at the Kuwait Chamber of Commerce and Industry

Mr. Salah Khaled Al-Fulaij

Member, Board of Directors

+ Appointment Date: 1995

« Academic Qualifications: Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and Economics from Emporia
State University, USA

Previous posts:

+ Vice President, Khalid Al-Fulaij Sons Company
+ Vice President, Sulaiman Al-Fulaij Trading & Contracting Company

« Deputy Chairman, Gulf Bank

Directors’ Remuneration

in KD ‘000 2020* 2019**

Directors’ Remuneration 480 590

* The distribution of the remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2020 was approved in the amount of 480
thousand Kuwaiti dinars at the general assembly meeting held on 29 April 2021.

** The distribution of the remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2019 was approved in the amount of 590
thousand Kuwaiti dinars at the general assembly meeting held on 30 April 2020.

Board’s Confirmation of Financial Statements

The financial results for years 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were approved by the Annual General
Meeting on 23 May 2017, 10 May 2018, 30 April 2020 and 29 April 2021 respectively. The Group’s Board of
Directors are obliged to present the financial results of the Group in accordance with the Companies Law
No. 1 of 2016 and its subsequent amendments, which the Board of Directors accepts responsibility.

Brief description of transactions carried out or to be carried out by Related Parties:

Related parties represent associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key management
personnel of the Group or entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by related
parties. The terms and pricing policies of such contracts and transactions are approved by the Group’s
management. The following table presents the details of the key transactions that have been carried out
by related parties. The Group does not expect further transactions to be carried out by related parties in
the future that will have material financial impact other than within the usual course of business.
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As at 30 September

in KD ‘000 2021 2020
Due from associates 7173 8,247
Due from top management 70 70
Due from other related parties 339 1,698
Due to associates 20 20
Due to other related parties 111 265
Purchases of raw material- from associates 670 1,222

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits 2,701 3,036
End of Services benefits 106 122
Board of Directors’ remuneration 480 -
Cost of share-based payment - 260
Total compensation of key management personnel of the Group 3,287 3,418

Transactions between the Group and the Board of Directors which involves a personal profit

There are no transactions between the Group and any member of the Board of Directors in which a personal
profit has been gained within the normal course of business. Members of the Board of Directors and their
families are customers of the Group during the regular course of business; however, no contracts exists
between them.

Executive Management

The National Industries Group Holding is managed by an administrative team responsible for the day-to-
day supervision and direction of the Group’s operations, particularly with respect to ensuring compliance
with the Group’s strategy, risk management, as well as safeguarding the independence of functions. The
executive management performs several tasks, which include the reviewal and discussion of proposals
provided by the Board of Directors, implementation of internal policies and regulations adopted by the
Board, preparation of periodic reports (financial and non-financial), and preparation of internal auditing
and risk management systems and ensuring their efficiency and viability.

o Y.ears o.f Total Years of
Position Experience in the .
Experience*
Group*
Mr. Ahmad Mohammed Hassan Chief Executive Officer 44 44
Deputy CEO for
Mr. Reyadh Salem Ali Al-Edrissi Investments and Mega 22 26
Projects
Deputy CEO
Mr. Faisal AbdulAziz Al-Nassar for Finance and 16 23
Administration
Mr. Mubasher Hussain Sheikh, FCCA  Chief Financial Officer 20 26
Mr. Khalid Ahmad Al Saad Direct Investment 10 14

Executive Manager

Mr. Fadi Ali Abdel Salam, CPA, CFE, Group Risk and
CABM Compliance Manager

*The number of years of experience has been rounded to the nearest year.
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Below is a brief biography of each member of the Executive Management team:

Mr. Ahmad Mohammed Hassan

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr. Hassan first joined the Group in 1977 as the Finance Manager, and was elected by the Board of Directors
for the role of Chief Executive Officer in 2013. During Mr. Hassan’s extensive tenure at the Group, he has
assumed several responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s finances and administrative work to ensure
the steady growth of the Group and its profitability. Mr. Hassan also currently holds posts at the following
companies:

National Industries Company — Board Member
«  Proclad Group Limited (UAE) - Board Member

Bl Group (UK) - Board Member
Mr. Hassan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Ain Shams University — Egypt.

Mr. Reyadh Salem Ali Al-Edrissi

Deputy Chief Executive Officer for Investments and Mega Projects

Mr. Al-Edrissi joined the Group in 1999 as an Executive Manager of Direct Investment and was later
promoted to Deputy CEO for Investments and Mega Projects in 2014. Mr. Al-Edrissi currently holds the
following posts:
Meezan Bank (Pakistan) — Chairman
« lkarus Petroleum Industries - Chairman and CEO
IT Partners Information Technology Company — Chairman
« Middle East Complex for Engineering, Electronics & Heavy Industries Company (Jordan) — Chairman
Privatization Holding Company - Board Member
« Noor Financial Investment Company - Board Member
Markaz Energy Fund - Advisory Board Member
Kuwait Investment Company — Executive Committee Member for Bunyah Fund
« ZoukVentures Limited (Clean Tech | & II) — Advisory Board Member
Sahara International Petrochemical Company (Previously known as Saudi International Petrochemical

Company (“Sipchem”)) — Board Member

Mr. Al-Edrissi holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from Newcastle Upon Tyne University -
UK, and a Master’s degree in Chemical Engineering from Kuwait University.

Mr. Faisal AbdulAziz Al-Nassar

Deputy Chief Executive Officer for Finance and Administration

Mr. Al-Nassar joined the Group in 2005 as an Executive Manager of Corporate Affairs and was promoted
to Deputy CEO for Finance and Administration in 2014. Currently, Mr. Al-Nassar holds the following posts:

60



« Al Durra National Real Estate Company — Chairman and CEO
Shorfat al Safwa (KSA) — Chairman
« Durrat Alshameya Investment (KSA) — Chairman
Noor Al Salhiya Real Estate — Chairman
Abu Dhabi Marina Real Estate Investment Company (UAE) - Vice Chairman
« Salbookh Trading Company - Vice Chairman
Meezan Bank (Pakistan) — Vice Chairman
« Proclad Group Limited (UAE) - Board Member
Noor Financial Investment Company — Board Member

« Al Ruwad Real Estate Company — Board Member
Mr. Al-Nassar holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Kuwait University.

Mr. Mubasher Hussain Sheikh, FCCA
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mr. Sheikh joined the Group in 2001 as a Managerial Accounting and Financial Analysis Manager, before
being promoted to Group Financial Controllerin 2008, and assuming the role of CFO since 2015. Mr. Sheikh
currently holds the following positions:

K-Electric Limited (Pakistan) — Board Member

Ikarus Petroleum Industries — Board Member
«  Proclad Group Limited (UAE) - Board Member

Bl Group (UK) - Board Member

Mr. Sheikh holds a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics and Statistics from the University of Punjab - Pakistan
and is a fellow of Chartered Certified Accountant, UK.

Mr. Khalid Ahmad Al Saad

Direct Investment Executive Manager

Mr. Al Saad joined NIGH in 2011 as a Direct Investment Manager, where he was later promoted to be the
Executive Manager for Direct Investment. Mr. Al Saad currently also holds the following positions:
« Combined National Industries Holding Company for Energy — Chairman
Middle East Chemicals Company — Chairman
+ lkarus Petroleum Industries Company - Vice Chairman
Bayan Holding Company - Board Member
Bahrain Bay Utilities Company (Bahrain) - Board Member
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Mr. Fadi Ali Abdel Salam, CPA, CFE, CABM
Group Risk and Compliance Manager
Mr. Abdel Salam joined the NIGH in early 2019 as the Group Risk and Compliance Manager. His previous

experiences include working in auditing for a period of 7 years, as well as working within the financial and
investments sector for 16 years.

Mr. Abdel Salam holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance and Banking Science from Yarmouk University -

Jordan and is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA). Mr. Fadi is a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) and is a
Certified Associate Business Manager (CABM).
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CAPITALIZATION AND BORROWINGS

The table below presents the Group’s capitalization as at 30 September 2021, in addition to the pro-forma
figures post the Capital Increase:

KD Thousands As at 30 September 2021 As at 30 September 2021
(Before Issuance) (Post Issuance)
Liabilities
Due to banks 13,806 13,806
Accounts payable and other liabilities 75,041 75,041
Borrowings and bonds 623,402 623,402
Provisions 14,793 14,793
Total Liabilities 727,042 727,042
Equity
Share capital 149,924 202,397
Share premium 122,962 175,435
Treasury shares (23,406) (23,406)
Other components of equity 28,008 28,008
Cumulative changes in fair value 18,295 18,295
Retained earnings 101,035 101,035
Eztr::,);:t;ributable to owners of the Parent 396,818 501,764
Non-controlling interests 146,947 146,947
Total Equity 543,765 648,711
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,270,807 1,375,753
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PROFIT DISTRIBUTION BY THE ISSUER

The table below shows profit distribution by the Group since 2016:

Dividends Distribution 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Date of Approval 23-May-17 10-May-18 02-May-19 30-Apr-20 29-Apr-21
Bonus Shares (%) - - 5% - 5%
Cash Dividend Paid (in KD) 3 - 13,250,570 15,900,534 13,913,098 -
Cash Dividend (Fils/Share) - 10fils 12 fils 10 fils -
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information has been extracted from the financial statements of the Company and should
be read in conjunction with the respective financial statements along with accompanying disclosures.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Assets
Bank balances and cash 33,696 38,436 32,077 31,798 50,011 33,052 60,456
Short-term deposits 9,224 8,020 9,136 18,189 9,394 11,439 34,077
Wakala and Sukuk investments 1,164 1,153 1,153 1,000 - - -
Assets classified as held for sale - - - - 6,312 8,370 4,294
Accounts receivable and other assets 61,569 95,907 49,453 50,776 56,918 55,968 58,236
Inventories 32,434 33,194 36,587 35,948 34,819 40,152 36,500
Financial assets at FVTPL 76,782 74,780 364,713 410,414 313,472 314,186 393,171
Financial assets at FVOCI - - 216,485 203,932 230,918 234,049 191,190
Available for sale investments 539,053 525,202 - - - - -
Right of use of leased assets - - - 6,532 9,642 6,108 8,121
Investment properties 64,294 66,121 76,857 60,445 60,260 57,399 56,928
Investment in associates 350,540 336,045 317,462 324,781 315,602 316,717 328,410
Property, plant and equipment 70,837 72,314 88,876 91,177 90,144 90,779 89,349
Goodwill and other intangible assets 14,025 14,121 9,925 9,552 9,847 9,735 10,075
Total Assets 1,253,618 1,265,293 1,202,724 1,244,544 1,187,339 1,177,954 1,270,807
Liabilities
Due to banks 21,186 22,315 23,009 23,969 23,695 24,439 13,806
fi\:;ﬁi‘:i”et: payable and other 45482 48391 58677 69,190 72,936 73,737 75,041
Borrowings and bonds 674,926 673,315 611,117 628,603 612,190 604,183 623,402
Provisions 14,645 15,157 13,573 14,113 15,296 14,738 14,793
Total Liabilities 756,239 759,178 706,376 735,875 724,117 717,097 727,042
Equity
Share capital 135,985 135,985 135,985 142,784 142,784 142,784 149,924
Share premium 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962
Treasury shares (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (23,406)
Other components of equity 31,526 30,457 23,827 32,260 32,816 32,616 28,008
Cumulative changes in fair value 108,729 103,959 21,679 20,938 36,469 35,698 18,295
Retained earnings (8,495) 13,000 78,608 89,434 22,253 21,501 101,035

Equity attributable to owners of the

360,332 375,988 352,686 378,003 326,909 325,186 396,818
Parent Company

Non-controlling interests 137,047 130,127 143,662 130,666 136,313 135,671 146,947
Total Equity 497,379 506,115 496,348 508,669 463,222 460,857 543,765
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,253,618 1,265,293 1,202,724 1,244,544 1,187,339 1,177,954 1,270,807
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December For thespe):::::::rded 30
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Sales 110,259 110,510 125,406 132,060 109,899 74,999 80,396
Cost of Sales (89,153) (90,441) (103,331) (110,048) (91,613) (64,427) (65,015)
Gross Profit 21,106 20,069 22,075 22,012 18,286 10,572 15,381
Income from investments 13,769 34,570 44,683 90,626 (18,307) (28,061) 100,670
Etl::g:isel: fair value of investment (3,246) (3,455) 34 (729) (2.243) (3.799) ]
Share of results of associates 21,177 19,035 15,182 15,767 5517 7,844 19,641
Loss on disposal of indirect subsidiaries - - - - - - 1,364
Gain on disposal of associates - 17,447 4,207 1,576 - - 22
e lssyoan o o .
Rental income 2,301 1,859 2,753 2,477 1,950 1,503 1,567
Interest and other income 3,201 4,760 21,994 3,074 3,382 2,146 2,316
Distribution costs (6,924) (7,384) (8,602) (8,353) (7,600) (5,627) (6,793)
er::r:izsadm'”'Strat've and other (22447)  (23664)  (25404) (25569  (23,129) (16,567)  (17,798)
(Loss)/gain on foreign currency exchange (1,537) 1,540 (855) (1,065) (765) (1,193) 217

Provision for cost of gas usage for

previous years (2,700) ) i i ) ) i

23,848 64,777 76,067 99,816 (22,559) (33,182) 116,569

Finance costs (28,188) (31,412) (32,693) (30,745) (23,761) (18,148) (15,883)
Impairment in value of goodwill and

other - - (3,634) (945) - - -
intangible assets

Impalrment in value of available for sale (18,696) (5,247) ) (530) . ) .
investments

Impairment in value of receivables and

other assets (1,056) (246) (1,280) (790) (834) (587) (3,405)
I'mpalrm'ent in value of investment ) - - (7,748) - - (4,917)
in associates

Impairment in value of assets ) ) ) ) ) . (1,581)
classified as held for sale '
Profit/(loss) before foreign taxation (24,092) 27,872 38,460 59,058 (47,154) (51,917) 90,783
Foreign taxation 292 (488) (1,250) (703) 1,565 (152) (449)

Profit/(loss) before KFAS, Zakat, NLST
and Directors’ remuneration

KFAS, Zakat and NLST (95) (717) (1,263) (2,452) (173) (95) (4,465)
Director’s remuneration - (480) (480) (590) - - (480)

(23,800) 27,384 37,210 58,355 (45,589) (52,069) 90,334

Profit/(loss) for the year from

. . (23,895) 26,187 35,467 55,313 (45,762) (52,164) 85,389
continued operations

Loss for the year from discontinued

operations i ) i (1955) (900) ) i

Profit/(loss) for the year (23,895) 26,187 35,467 53,358 (46,662) (52,164) 85,389

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company (24,192) 24,160 19,841 46,353 (52,213) (55,111) 69,652

Non-controlling interests 297 2,027 15,626 7,005 5,551 2,947 15,737
(23,895) 26,187 35,467 53,358 (46,662) (52,164) 85,389

Basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the (18.3) 18.2 14.3 333 (37.5) (37.7) 47.6
Parent Company (Fils)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Net cash from operating activities 34,334 19,971 80,401 37,222 68,130 56,375 13,155
Net cash from investing activities 17,138 15,371 4,393 4,316 4,060 (3,903) 32,851

Net cash used in financing activities (69,680) (32,800) (90,534) (35,435) (60,760) (56,603) (5,656)

Net increase in cash and cash (18,208) 2,542  (5,740) 6,103 11,430 (4,131) 40,350

equivalents

Net cash on assets held for sale - - - - - (15) -

Translation difference (187) (29) 16 (4) 11) (29) (58)
(18,395) 2,513 (5,724) 6,099 11,419 (4,175) 40,292

Cash and cash equivalents at 39,804 21,409 23922 18198 23,598 23,508 34,454

beginning of the year/period

Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to the disposed group - - - (699) (563) - -
and indirect subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents at end

. 21,409 23,922 18,198 23,598 34,454 19,423 74,746
of the year/period
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Select Ratios

For the period ended
For the year ended 31 December 30 September
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021

Profitability (%)
Return on Average Assets 0 0 o o o o o
(ROAA)' 1.9% 2.1% 2.9% 4.4% 3.8% 4.3% 6.9%
Return on Average Equity -4.7% 5.2% 7.1% 10.6% -9.6% 108%  0%.17
(ROAE)
Gross Margin® 14.4% 10.9% 10.3% 9.0% 18.2% 19.4% 7.5%
Net Margin* -16.3% 14.2% 16.6% 21.8% -46.4% -95.5% 41.5%
Leverage (%)
Debt / Equity® 140.0% 137.4% 127.8% 128.3% 137.3% 136.4% 117.2%
Total Liabilities / Total Equity® 152.0% 150.0% 142.3% 144.7% 156.3% 155.6% 133.7%
Liquidity (%)
Cash Ratio” 8.7% 7.2% 9.2% 7.8% 10.9% 8.1% 17.1%
Current Ratio® 89.7% 67.5% 95.0% 78.4% 75.8% 77.2% 93.6%
Share Ratios
Earnings per share (fils)® -18.3 18.2 14.3 333 -37.5 -37.7 47.6
Average Price / Earnings per 6.4 75 10.8 6.0 5.5 5.4 44
share (x)
Book Value (fils)" 265.0 276.5 2594 264.7 229.0 227.7 264.7
Cash dividends / par value %' - 10.0% 12.0% 10.0% - - -
Dividend yield % ' - 6.7% 7.6% 4.1% - - -

Notes:

1. Calculated as net profit for the year/period divided by the average of total assets (start and end of the fiscal year).

2. Calculated as net profit for the year/period divided by the average of total equity (start and end of the fiscal year).

3. Calculated as gross profit divided by total revenue for the year/period.

4.  Calculated as net profit divided by total revenue for the year/period.

5. Calculated as total debt divided by total equity.

6.  Calculated as total liabilities divided by total equity.

7. Calculated as cash and bank balances divided by current liabilities.

8. Calculated as current assets divided by current liabilities.

9. Calculated as profit for the year/period divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding.

10. Calculated as average share price (start and end of the fiscal year) divided by earnings per share.

11.  Calculated as equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company divided by the number of shares outstanding.
12.  Calculated as cash dividends divided by par value.

13.  Calculated as cash dividends divided by the last share price for the fiscal year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Thefollowing presentation and analysis should be read in conjunction with the information set out in the Group’s
“Financial Statements” and the “Selected Financial Information” section. The financial review is based on
the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018,
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, and the unaudited financial statements for the fiscal quarters ended
30 September 2020 and 30 September 2021.

The financial information in this section were presented based on audited Financial Statements of the Group.
The analysis of the financial condition and results of operations is based on the Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Standards as adopted by financial services institutions in Kuwait
and that are regulated by the CBK in accordance with Kuwait Companies Law (Law No. 1 of 2016 (as amended))
and the executive regulations thereto. The regulations adopted require the adoption and application of the IFRS
requirements.

The actual results could materially differ from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result
of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in the Prospectus, particularly under the “Risk
Factors” section.

Results of Operations

Sales Revenue

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Sales 110,259 110,510 125,406 132,060 109,899 74,999 80,396
Cost of Sales (89,153)  (90,441)  (103,331) (110,048) (91,613) (64,427)  (65,015)
Gross Profit 21,106 20,069 22,075 22,012 18,286 10,572 15,381

The primary sources of the Group’s sales revenues are from Building Materials, Specialist Engineering &
Chemicals and Hotel & IT Services. Sales revenues amounted to KD 109,899 thousand for the year ended
31 December 2020, compared to KD 132,060 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019. Moreover,
sales revenues amounted to KD 80,396 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2021, compared to
KD 74,999 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

The Group’s cost of sales reached KD 91,613 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared
to KD 110,048 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019. Further, cost of sales reached KD 65,015
thousand for the period ended 30 September 2021, compared to KD 64,427 thousand for the period ended
30 September 2020.

The Group attained a gross profit of KD 18,286 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared
to a gross profit of KD 22,012 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019. Moreover, gross profit
amounted KD 15,381 thousand during the period ended 30 September 2021, compared to KD 10,572
thousand during the period ended 30 September 2020.
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Income from Investments

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Dividend Income:
From financial assets at fair value 609 806 8,345 9,413 8,692 7681 5361
through profit or loss
From financial assets at fair value ) i 3607 4,625 2348 1232 1,952
through OCI
From available for sale investments 6,259 6,572 - - - - -

Profit on sale of available for sale

: 3,689 18,124 - - - - -
investments

Realized gain on financial assets at
fair 166 1,342 4,487 8,360 (9,893) (10,903) 4,814
value through profit or loss

Unrealized gain on financial assets
at fair 3,046 7,726 28,163 68,144 (19,473) (26,090) 88,543
value through profit or loss

Interest income on debt securities

classified under financial assets at - - 81 84 19 19 -
FVTPL

Total Income/(Loss) from 13,769 34,570 44,683 90,626 (18,307) (28,061) 100,670
Investments

The Group reported a loss from investments amounting to KD 18,307 thousand for the year ended 31
December 2020, compared to an Income from Investments amounting to KD 90,626 thousand for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Moreover, the Group achieved income from investments amounting to KD 100,670 thousand for the period
ended 30 September 2021, compared to a Loss from Investments amounting to KD 28,061 thousand for
the period ended 30 September 2020. Income from investments are a major source of income for the
Group.

Share of results of associates

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Share of results of associates 21,177 19,035 15,182 15,767 5,517 7,844 19,641

Share of results of associates amounted to KD 5,517 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020,
compared to KD 15,767 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Whereas, share of results of associates reached KD 19,641 thousand for the period ended 30 September
2021, compared to KD 7,844 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Interest and Other Income

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Interest and Other Income 3,201 4,760 21,994 3,074 3,382 2,146 2,316
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Interest and Other Income represents the income generated from interest/profit on deposits and Islamic
investment products, discounts on the settlement of borrowings, service, management and placement
fees, gains relating to acquisitions or liquidation/disposal of subsidiaries and other income.

The Group reached KD 3,382 thousand in Interest and Other Income for the year ended 31 December
2020, compared to KD 3,074 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Total Interest and Other Income reached KD 2,316 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2021,
compared to KD 2,146 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December For the period ended

30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Finance Costs (28,188) (31,412) (32,693) (30,745) (23,761) (18,148) (15,883)

Finance costs for the Group are related to due to banks, borrowings, bonds and lease creditors. All these
financial liabilities are stated at amortized cost.

The Group’s Finance Costs reached KD 23,761 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared
to KD 30,745 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Whereas, Finance Costs reached KD 15,883 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2021, compared
to KD 18,148 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Taxation and Other Statutory Contributions

For the period ended

a) Foreign taxation reversal/(charge) For the year ended 31 December 30 September

KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021

Current tax expense

Current yea/period reversal/(charge) (256) (527) (1,201) (676) 1,565 (152) (449)

Deferred tax expenses

Current year expenses 548 39 (49) (27) - - -
292 (488) (1,250) (703) 1,565 (152) (449)

Foreign taxes of KD 1,565 thousand have been reversed for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, compared to foreign taxes expense amounting to KD 703 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2019. Foreign taxation includes an amount of KD 156 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020
which was reversed, compared to KD 642 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019 charged by
certain foreign subsidiaries which is calculated based on the tax law adopted in the United Kingdom and
across European countries.

Moreover, foreign taxation reached KD 449 thousand charged for the period ended 30 September 2021 as
compared to KD 152 thousand charged for the period ended 30 September 2020.
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For the period ended

b) Provision of KFAS, Zakat and NLST For the year ended 31 December
30 September

KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Contributions to Kuwait Foundation
for Advancement of Science (KFAS) (7 (266) (310 (343) 27) ) (552)
Provision for Zakat (20) (285) (437) (469) (138) (95) (840)
Provision for National Labour
Support (58) (166) (516) (1,640) (8) - (3,073)
Tax (NLST)

(95) (717) (1,263) (2,452) (173) (95) (4,465)

The Group reported a total of KD 173 thousand in contributions to KFAS and provisions for Zakat and
NLST for the year ended 31 December 2020, in comparison with KD 2,452 thousand for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Whereas, contributions to KFAS and provisions for Zakat and NLST amounted to KD 4,465 thousand for the
period ended 30 September 2021, compared to KD 95 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share Attributable to the Owners of Parent Company

For the period ended

For the year ended 31 December 30 September

KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to the owners of the Parent (24,192) 24,160 19,841 46,353 (52,213) (55,111) 69,652
Company - (in KD Thousands)

Weighted avg. no. of shares

. . 1,325 1,325 1,391 1,391 1,391 1,461 1,463
outstanding during the year - . - - - s -
. million million million million million million million
(excluding treasury shares) - Shares
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (183) 182 143 333 (37.5) (37.7) 476

(Fils)

The Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share attributable to the Owners of the Parent Company was 37.5 Fils per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared to a Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the
Owners of the Parent Company of 33.3 Fils per share reported for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Moreover, Basic and Diluted EPS reached 47.6 Fils for the period ended 30 September 2021, compared to
a Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share of 37.7 Fils for the period ended 30 September 2020.
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Assets

KD Thousands

Bank balances and cash

Short-term deposits

Wakala and Sukuk investments
Assets classified as held for sale
Accounts receivable and other assets

Inventories

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVOCI

Available for sale investments

Right of use of leased assets
Investment properties

Investment in associates

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill and other intangible assets

Total Assets

As at 31 December As at 30 September
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
33,696 38,436 32,077 31,798 50,011 33,052 60,456
9,224 8,020 9,136 18,189 9,394 11,439 34,077
1,164 1,153 1,153 1,000 - - -

- - - - 6,312 8,370 4,294
61,569 95,907 49,453 50,776 56,918 55,968 58,236
32,434 33,194 36,587 35,948 34,819 40,152 36,500
76,782 74,780 364,713 410414 313,472 314,186 393,171

- - 216,485 203,932 230,918 234,049 191,190

539,053 525,202 - - - - -

- - - 6,532 9,642 6,108 8,121
64,294 66,121 76,857 60,445 60,260 57,399 56,928
350,540 336,045 317,462 324,781 315,602 316,717 328,410
70,837 72,314 88,876 91,177 90,144 90,779 89,349
14,025 14,121 9,925 9,552 9,847 9,735 10,075

1,253,618 1,265,293 1,202,724 1,244,544 1,187,339 1,177,954 1,270,807

Total Assets amounted to KD 1,187,339 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared to KD
1,244,544 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Moreover, Total Assets amounted to KD 1,270,807 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2021,
compared to KD 1,177,954 thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December As at 30 September

KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Bank balances and cash 33,696 38,436 32,077 31,798 50,011 33,052 60,456
Short-term deposits 9,224 8,020 9,136 18,189 9,394 11,439 34,077
Due to banks (21,186) (22,315) (23,009) (23,969) (23,695) (24,439)  (13,806)

21,734 24,141 18,204 26,018 35,710 20,052 80,727
Less:
:hntzgtr-]'iirsm deposits maturing after (325) (219) ©) ©) ©) ©) ©)
Blocked balances - - - (2,414) (1,250) (623) (5,975)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,409 23,922 18,198 23,598 34,454 19,423 74,746

Cash and Cash Equivalents are comprised of bank balances and cash, short-term deposits and due to
banks, less any blocked balances.

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents amounted to KD 34,454 thousand as at 31 December 2020, relative to KD
23,598 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

Further, Cash and Cash Equivalents reached KD 74,746 as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 19,423
thousand as at 30 September 2020.
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Account Receivable and Other Assets

As at 31 December As at 30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
ﬁzsgt‘;”ts receivable and Other 61,569 95907 49453 50,776 56918 55968 58236

Accounts Receivable and Other Assets amounted to KD 56,918 thousand as at 31 December 2020,
compared to KD 50,776 thousand reported as at 31 December 2019.

Accounts Receivable and Other Assets amounted to KD 58,236 as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD
55,968 as at 30 September 2020.

Inventories
As at 31 December As at 30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Inventories 32,434 33,194 36,587 35,948 34,819 40,152 36,500

Inventories are comprised of finished and work-in-progress goods, raw materials and consumables, spare
parts and others, and goods in transit.

Inventories reached KD 34,819 thousand as at 31 December 2020, compared to KD 35,948 thousand as at
31 December 2019.

Further, Inventories amounted to KD 36,500 thousand as at 30 September 2021, relative to KD 40,152
reported as at 30 September 2020.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

As at 31 December As at 30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Financial assets at FVTPL 76,782 74,780 364,713 410,414 313,472 314,186 393,171

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss are comprised of local and foreign quoted
shares and debt securities, unquoted equity participations (held in managed portfolios), and investments
in local and foreign managed portfolios and funds.

Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss for the Group decreased to KD 313,472 thousand as at
31 December 2020, compared to KD 410,414 thousand as at 31 December 2019. Moreover, Financial assets
at fair value through Profit or Loss reached KD 393,171 thousand as at 30 September 2021, relative to KD
314,186 thousand as at 30 September 2020.

Quoted shares and managed funds held at fair value by the Group amounting to KD 91,710 thousand as
at 31 December 2020 are secured against borrowings, compared to KD 163,476 as at 31 December 2019.

Moreover, quoted shares and managed funds held at fair value by the Group amounting to KD 140,887

thousand as at 30 September 2021 are secured against borrowings, compared to KD 93,554 as at 30
September 2020.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) / Available for Sale
Investments

As at 31 December As at 30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Available-for-sale investments 539,053 525,202 - - - - -
(F)'E?”C'a' assets at fair value through - 216,485 203,932 230,918 234,049 191,190
Total 539,053 525,202 216,485 203,932 230,918 234,049 191,190

Financial assets at fair value through OCl and available-for-sale investments are comprised of investments
allocated to equity instruments for medium to long-term strategic objectives. These include local and
foreign quoted shares, local and foreign unquoted equity participations, quoted debt securities, and local
and foreign managed portfolios and funds.

Due to the application of IFRS 9 accounting standards in 2018, available-for sale investments were
reclassified between financial assets at fair value through OCI or financial assets held at fair value through
P&L for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI amounted to KD 230,918 thousand as at 31 December 2020,
compared to KD 203,932 thousand as at 31 December 2019. Moreover, financial assets at fair value through
OCl amounted to KD 191,190 thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 234,049 thousand as at
30 September 2020.

Quoted shares with fair value of KD 29,788 thousand and unquoted shares with fair value of KD 320
thousand are secured against bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020, compared to quoted shares
amounting to KD 32,473 thousand and unquoted shares amounting to KD 96 thousand as at 31 December
2019.

Quoted shares with a fair value of KD 35,201 thousand and unquoted shares with a fair value of KD 384
thousand are secured against bank borrowings as at 30 September 2021, compared to quoted shares
with fair value of KD 28,457 thousand and unquoted shares with fair value of KD 157 thousand as at 30
September 2020.

Investment Properties

Investment Properties are stated at fair value, which is determined based on valuations performed by
independent valuers.

The Group’s Investment Properties came to KD 60,260 thousand as at 31 December 2020, in comparison
with KD 60,445 thousand as at 31 December 2019. Investment Properties reached KD 56,928 thousand as
at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 57,399 thousand as at 30 September 2020.

Investment Properties secured against borrowings amounted to KD 39,885 thousand as at 31 December
2020, compared to KD 42,479 thousand as at 31 December 2019.
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Investment Properties are comprised of lands and buildings in the following locations:

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Kuwait 54,780 52,365 57,666 49,117 49,394 46,700 46,082
Saudi 5,694 6,071 6,579 7,742 8,022 7,906 8,022
Jordan 494 501 504 504 505 458 502
UAE 2,513 6,267 11,264 2,211 1,435 1,472 1,434
London 813 917 844 871 904 863 888
Total Investment Properties 64,294 66,121 76,857 60,445 60,260 57,399 56,928

The Group’s Investment Properties located in Kuwait amounted to KD 49,394 thousand as at 31 December
2020, compromising around 82 per cent of Total Investment Properties, in comparison with KD 49,117
thousand as at 31 December 2019, compromising around 81 per cent of Total Investment Properties.

Investment in Associates

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Balance at 1 January 337,187 350,540 334,892 317,462 324,781 324,781 315,602
Net additions due to
deconsolidation of - - - 5,536 - - -
indirect subsidiaries
Additions during the year 2,182 5,558 2,107 2,997 5,626 2,131 2,451
Share of results 21,177 19,035 15,182 15,767 5517 7,844 19,641
Disposal/capital reduction (3,108) (28,388) (12,993) (5,217) (1,328) - (120)
isnhca;xf other comprehensive 1,143 3,368 (346) 9,971 (9,154) (8,994) 5,125
Dividend distribution (9,286) (9,376) (9,984) (9,619) (8,759) (6,599) (5,686)
ggigggvency translation 1,082 (4376) (11,485  (3,804)  (1,176) (2,446)  (3,689)
Impairment - - - (7,748) - - (4,917)
Other adjustments 163 (316) 89 (564) 95 - 3
Balance at the end of the year 350,540 336,045 317,462 324,781 315,602 316,717 328,410

Investments in Associates amounted to KD 315,602 thousand as at 31 December 2020, as compared to KD
324,781 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

Investments in Associates amounted to KD 328,410 thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD
316,717 thousand as at 30 September 2020.

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment 70,837 72,314 88,876 91,177 90,144 90,779 89,349

The Group’s Property, Plant and Equipment consists of land, freehold and leasehold properties, properties
on leasehold land, plant and machineries, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment, leased plant,
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machineries and vehicles, and properties under construction, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Property, Plant and Equipment amounted to KD 90,144 thousand as at 31 December 2020, relative to KD
91,177 thousand reported as at 31 December 2019.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
iss‘;‘tj:v'" and Other Intangible 14,025 14,121 9,925 9,552 9,847 9,735 10,075

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets increased to KD 9,847 as at 31 December 2020, compared to KD
9,552 as at 31 December 2019. Whereas Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets amounted to KD 10,075
thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 9,735 thousand as at 30 September 2020.

Total Liabilities

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Due to banks 21,186 22315 23,009 23,969 23,695 24439 13,806
ﬁacgﬁﬁlnet; payable and other 45482 48391 58677 69,190 72,936 73,737 75,041
Borrowings and bonds 674,926 673,315 611,117 628,603 612,190 604,183 623,402
Provisions 14645 15157 13,573 14113 1529 14738 14,793
Total Liabilities 756,239 759,178 706,376 735,875 724,117 717,097 727,042

Liabilities are comprised of due to banks, accounts payable and other liabilities, borrowings and bonds,
and provisions.

Total Liabilities amounted to KD 724,117 thousand as at 31 December 2020, compared to KD 735,875
thousand as at 31 December 2019.

Moreover, Total Liabilities amounted to KD 727,042 thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD
717,097 reported as at 30 September 2020.

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

As at 31 December As at 30 September
in KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
ﬁ;;ﬁ::::ss payable and other 45,482 48,391 58677 69,190 72,936 73,737 75,041

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities amounted to KD 72,936 thousand as at 31 December 2020, relative
to KD 69,190 thousand reported as at 31 December 2019.

Whereas Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities amounted to KD 75,041 thousand as at 30 September
2021, compared to KD 73,737 as at 30 September 2020.
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Bonds and Borrowings

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Short-term conventional loans 278,336 333,496 250,907 150,739 71,675 129,946 161,153
zrr::;:r:zr:iam'c financing 42571 131,846 14229 14128 13,897 27,227 13,829
320,907 465,342 265,136 164,867 85,572 157,173 174,982

Long-term conventional loans
(current portion and due after more 216,323 145,666 214,402 325,214 352,102 281,518 270,564
than one year)

Long-term Islamic financing
arrangements

(current portion and due after more
than one year)

112,696 37,307 106,579 113,522 119,516 110,492 122,856

329,019 182,973 320,981 438,736 471,618 392,010 393,420

Total borrowings 649,926 648,315 586,117 603,603 557,190 549,183 568,402
Bonds 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 55,000 55,000 55,000
Total Borrowings and Bonds 674,926 673,315 611,117 628,603 612,190 604,183 623,402

The Group’s Borrowings are categorized into short-term and long-term conventional loans and Islamic
financing arrangements.

The Group’s Borrowings decreased to KD 557,190 thousand as at 31 December 2020 from KD 603,603
thousand as at 31 December 2019, of which total borrowings amounting to KD 194,194 thousand as at 31
December 2020 are secured against cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment properties and
property plant and equipment, compared to KD 242,347 thousand as at 31 December 2019.

The Group has an outstanding floating-rate Bond issued during 2020 with a nominal value of KD 30,000
thousand in two series composed of KD 22,400 thousand fixed rate bonds and KD 7,600 thousand floating
rate bonds, and that matures on 11 February 2025.

Provisions
As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Pension liability 2,743 3,328 1,458 881 1,634 970 955
Provision for staff indemnity 11,135 11,429 11,664 12,749 13,151 13,242 13,312
Provision for land-fill expenses 767 400 451 483 511 526 526
Total Provisions 14,645 15,157 13,573 14,113 15,296 14,738 14,793

Provisions include pension liability, staff indemnity and land-fill expenses.

Provisions totaled KD 15,296 thousand as at 31 December 2020, compared to KD 14,113 thousand as at 31
December 2019.

Provisions amounted to KD 14,793 thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 14,738 thousand
as at 30 September 2020.
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Equity

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Share capital 135,985 135,985 135,985 142,784 142,784 142,784 149,924
Share premium 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962 122,962
Treasury shares (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (30,375) (23,406)
Other components of equity 31,526 30,457 23,827 32,260 32,816 32,616 28,008
Cumulative changes in fair value 108,729 103,959 21,679 20,938 36,469 35,698 18,295
Retained earnings (8,495) 13,000 78,608 89,434 22,253 21,501 101,035
Equity attributable to owners of the
Parent Company 360,332 375,988 352,686 378,003 326,909 325,186 396,818
Non-controlling interests 137,047 130,127 143,662 130,666 136,313 135,671 146,947
Total Equity 497,379 506,115 496,348 508,669 463,222 460,857 543,765

As at 30 September 2021, the Group has a Share Capital of KD 149,924 thousand and Share Premium of KD
122,962 thousand, while Treasury Shares amounted to KD 23,406 thousand.

Retained Earnings decreased to KD 22,253 thousand as at 31 December 2020, compared to KD 89,434
thousand as at 31 December 2019. Whereas Retained Earnings increased to KD 101,035 thousand as at 30
September 2021, compared to KD 21,501 thousand during the quarter ended 30 September 2020.

Total Equity provided by the Group amounted to KD 463,222 thousand as at 31 December 2020, relative
to KD 508,669 thousand as at 31 December 2019. Whereas the Group reported Total Equity of KD 543,765
thousand as at 30 September 2021, compared to KD 460,857 thousand as at 30 September 2020.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

As at 31 December As at 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Bank Guarantees 19,550 24,705 26,888 18,916 16,048 17,523 13,461
Purchase of investments and
acquisitions of PPE and Investment
Properties 53,467 43,418 31,498 20,348 18,828 16,449 14,884
Committed Lease Rentals 5,173 4,815 3,874 - - - -
Committed Loan to Related Party - 2,720 304 - - - -
Other Contingencies 251 356 356 356 - - -
Total Contingent Liabilities and
Capital Commitments 78,441 76,014 62,920 39,620 34,876 33,972 28,345

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments are potential liabilities that may occur, depending on the
outcome of an uncertain future event.

The Group's total Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments decreased to KD 34,876 as at 31 December
2020, compared to KD 39,620 as at 31 December 2019. Moreover, the Total Contingent Liabilities and
Capital Commitments decreased to KD 28,345 thousand as at 30 September 2021, relative to KD 33,972
thousand as at 30 September 2020.
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Cash Flows

For the period ended

For the year ended 31 December 30 September
KD Thousands 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021
Net cash from operating activities 34,334 19,971 80,401 37,222 68,130 56,375 13,155
Net cash from investing activities 17,138 15,371 4,393 4,316 4,060 (3,903) 32,851

Net cash used in financing activities (69,680) (32,800) (90,534) (35,435) (60,760) (56,603) (5,656)
Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents (18,208) 2,542 (5,740) 6,103 11,430 (4,131) 40,350

Net cash on assets held for sale - - - - - (15) -

Translation difference (187) (29) 16 (4) (11) (29) (58)
(18,395) 2,513 (5,724) 6,099 11,419 (4,175) 40,292

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year/period 39,804 21,409 23,922 18,198 23,598 23,598 34,454

Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to the disposed group

and indirect subsidiaries - - - (699) (563) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year/period 21,409 23,922 18,198 23,598 34,454 19,423 74,746

Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities amounted to KD 68,130 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2020, compared to a net cash flow from operating activities of KD 37,222 thousand for the year ended 31
December 2019. Whereas net cash flow from operating activities amounted to KD 13,155 thousand for the
period ended 30 September 2021, compared to KD 56,375 thousand reported for the period ended 30
September 2020.

Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities

Net cash flow from investing activities totaled KD 4,060 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2020,
compared to a net cash flow from investing activities of KD 4,316 thousand reported for the year ended
31 December 2019. Moreover, net cash flow from investing activities amounted to KD 32,851 thousand for
the period ended 30 September 2021, compared to a net cash flow used in investing activities of KD 3,903
thousand for the period ended 30 September 2020.

Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities

Net cash flow used in financing activities reached KD 60,760 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2020, compared to a net cash flow used in financing activities of KD 35,435 thousand reported for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Whereas net cash flow used in financing activities amounted to KD 5,656 for the
period ended 30 September 2021, compared to a net cash flow used in financing activities of KD 56,603 for
the period ended 30 September 2020.
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PREVIOUS SECURITIES ISSUANCES BY THE ISSUER

The following table presents all capital increases by the Group since 2011:

Issue Type . Total nominal value Net value of the issue (including
No. of shares issued . . ! .

(Bonus shares / (shares) of the issue nominal value and issue premium)

capital increase) < (KD) (KD)

5% bonus shares 2013 64,754,908 6,475,491 6,475,491

5% bonus shares 2018 67,992,653 6,799,265 6,799,265

5% bonus shares 2020 71,392,286 7,139,229 7,139,229

All previous bond and sukuk issuances by the Group are presented below:

Issue Year Amount Term Interest Rate Type of Issue
1998 KD 35 million 3 years 7.875% Bonds
2001 KD 35 million 5 years 6.25% Bonds
2004 USD 60 million 5 years 6M LIBOR + 0.9% Bonds
2007 USD 475 million 5 years 3M LIBOR + 1.05% Mudaraba Sukuk
2016 KD 25 million 5 years CBK Rate + 2.25% Bonds
2020 KD 30 million 5 years Fixed: 5.50% Floating: CBK Rate + 2.75% Bonds
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MATERIAL CASES

The Group is not a party to any governmental, administrative, litigation or arbitration proceeds (whether
such proceeds are pending or the Issuer is aware of them or anticipates them against the Issuer and/or

its subsidiaries) which may have, or had in the recent past, implications materially affecting the financial
position of the Issuer and its profits.
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MAJOR CONTRACTS

The Issuer has not entered into any major contracts outside of its area of activities during the two years
preceding the date of submitting the application for approval of this Prospectus, nor has it relied on any
specific customers or suppliers, or on any patent or other intellectual property rights, licenses or special
contracts, any of which are of primary importance in the activity of the Issuer.
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RISK FACTORS

Prior to investing in any Offering Shares, prospective investors should carefully consider, together with all other
information contained in this Prospectus, the risk factors described below. The Issuer believes that the factors
described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the Offering Shares, but these risk factors
are not exhaustive and other considerations, including some of which may not be presently known to the Group,
or which the Issuer currently deems to be immaterial, may impact any investment in the Offering Shares.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and reach
their own views prior to making any investment decision.

RISKS RELATING TO THE ISSUER AND ITS OPERATIONS
Economic Factors
Political and economic risks associated with investments, especially in developing markets

The operations and activities of the subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer are concentrated within
Kuwait, the GCC, MENA and to a lesser extent in the United States and Europe. Therefore, the operations of
the Issuer and its subsidiaries are exposed to geopolitical risks associated with such countries and regions,
which may consequently affect its performance. In view of the recent geopolitical events in the Middle East,
and the terrorist acts witnessed in some parts of the region, some countries remain exposed to terrorist
attacks, sabotage and similar threats. Terrorism creates an atmosphere of uncertainty that erodes investor
confidence, thus heightening risk factors, and subsequently causing investments and economic growth to
decline as a result.

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates are particularly exposed to the negative changes affecting the
economic conditions in markets it is invested in, as well as the political developments of those countries
and its interconnectedness with global financial markets.

The economies of GCC countries are highly reliant on oil export income and are therefore potentially
exposed to turbulent oil prices. Moreover, any deterioration in the economic stability of GCC countries, as
a result of falling oil and gas production or any related industry, can have a material adverse effect on the
performance and results of the Issuer and its subsidiaries.

Moreover, investors must be aware that investment in developing countries, such as Kuwait and the MENA
region, are exposed to significant risks compared to investment in developed markets, including in some
cases but not limited to material legal, economic and political risks.

The outbreak of communicable diseases around the world, in particular the COVID-19 pandemic, has
led to economic volatility, which may materially and adversely affect the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations

The outbreak of communicable diseases on a global scale may affect investment sentiment and result
in sporadic volatility in global markets. COVID-19 was first identified in Wuhan, Hubei Province, China in
late 2019 and spread to most countries around the world, including Kuwait, causing widespread business
disruptions and uncertainties surrounding economic activities. Governments around the world have
taken several measures to restrict the spread of the virus, by imposing travel restrictions and quarantine
measures. These measures, while designed to slow the spread of COVID-19 and its variants, resulted in
significant reductions in economic activity globally during 2020. It is currently unclear how long existing
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restrictions will be in place, the duration of possible future restrictions and what their ultimate impact will
be on global and local economies.

The global pandemic event has affected the economic climate locally and internationally, due to the
implemented restrictions and other measures, such as business and market closures, in the attempt to
reduce and control the spread of the COVID-19 virus. This in turn has exposed the Issuer to various losses,
including a significant decline in the Group’s operations, fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, high credit
losses, and decrease in the value of assets, on the back of the slowdown in economic activity.

The economic implications of COVID-19, or any of the other related strains, depend on several factors, such
as the duration of the pandemic or the frequency of subsequent waves, the expected timing of vaccine
distribution, and the suitability and effectiveness of the measures imposed by authorities around the world
such as enforcing local or regional lockdown measures and its impact on central banks, and governments
(especially regarding imposing quarantine requirements on clients), availability of resources, including
human capital, financial capital, infrastructure, and financial resources (for example, government stimulus
packages and / or measures introduced by central banks) necessary to implement economic reforms at the
local and regional levels as well as the level of civil compliance with these measures.

Accordingly, there are no guarantees that such economic reforms, or a combination thereof, are effective
methods in combatting such an outbreak or the consequences thereof, and the continuation of the
implications of this pandemic may lead to a significant decrease in the Group’s income, which will materially
and negatively affect the Group’s operations, financial condition, and future prospects.

Risks related to the Group’s revenue being affected by the level of government spending

Due to the concentration of the Group’s customers in governmental and semi-governmental entities,
the Group’s revenues may be affected by the conditions of governmental entities and the sectors they
represent and the level of government spending, which are related to several factors such as financial,
budgetary or regulatory restrictions, changes in the government’s financial or contractual policies, public
spending restrictions, a decline in the available government funding, or delays in collecting government
allocations. Government spending is also affected by political and economic conditions such as wars,
natural disasters, epidemics, etc. These factors will have a material effect on the volume, scope, timing, and
duration of contracts and purchases, which in turn will have an effect on the level of business secured by
the Group from such customers. Such factors could also result in a suspension, cancellation, termination,
or non-renewal of existing contracts. Any loss of key governmental and semi-governmental customers or
reduced expenditure on digital services by the governmental and semi-governmental customers would
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations, financial position, and future
prospects.

Risks relating to the sectors in which the Group operates

The industrial sector is a competitive sector in the markets where the Issuer and its subsidiaries and
associates are invested in

The Industrial sector in Kuwait and the MENA region is competitive, where it attracts new competitors
in the present time. Governments of the MENA region are working towards economic liberalization and
establishing economic reforms that causes it to emerge as an attractive investment opportunity, which in
turn attracts foreign companies. The increasing competition may have a negative impact on the profitability
of the associates and subsidiaries of the Group.
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Risks associated with the building materials sector

The performance of some of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates that work within the building materials
sector are closely linked to the levels of activity of developers of real estate and volume of infrastructure
projects implemented by the government. A decline in demand due to slow economic growth or any
other factors could have a material negative impact on the performance of the Issuer’s subsidiaries and
associates operating in the building materials sector.

The government of Kuwait is one of the main clients of the Group’s subsidiaries that are operating within
the building materials sector. As such, if the implementation of government projects declines or the
government of Kuwait ceases to meet its obligations under agreements for any reason, it will have an
adverse impact on the operations of the Issuer’s subsidiaries and associates operating in the building
materials sector.

Risks related associated with real estate construction and development

The subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer that operate within the real estate sector intend to continue
to develop new properties in the markets in which it currently operates as well as new markets. Current
and future development and construction activities of the subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer involve
a number of risks, including:

« Inability to obtain the desired sites for the construction of affordable real estate properties.
« Inability to obtain financing on favorable terms for construction purposes.

« Increasing capital requirements for the development of properties without obtaining revenues from
these properties until future periods.

+ Inability to complete development projects on schedule or within budgeted amounts.
« Delays in obtaining or refusal to grant all required permits and other required governmental approvals.

«  Occupancy rates at newly developed properties are unstable due to a number of factors, including
market and economic conditions that could result in subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer’s
investments becoming unprofitable.

« Lack of building materials and changes in their prices, thus impacting construction costs.

« Risk of insurance not covering all damages caused to properties and construction.
Fluctuating performance and the increased competition of the real estate sector

The real estate market is mainly affected by fluctuations in property prices and rental rates, which directly
affects subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer that operate in the real estate sector. Economic factors in
general, as well as the performance of other sectors, can have a direct impact on the real estate market.

One of the Issuer’s associate companies, which operates in the management of commercial centers,
contests to provide its best services to and attracting commercial tenants. Activities of competing real estate
companies may attract commercial tenants through attractive offers to entice investors and clients from
commercial properties managed by the Issuer’s associates, or attempt to attract investors and clients away
from renewing their leases with commercial properties managed by the Issuer’s associates. Competing
companies may also offer larger commercial spaces than ones offered by the Issuer’s associates to entice
clients, which may lead to an adjustment in the rental rates offered by the Issuer’s subsidiaries and which
leads to a negative and material impact on the business, its financial position, results of operations and
future prospects.
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Risks associated with the oil and gas and petrochemical sectors

Some of the Issuer’s subsidiaries invest in the oil & gas and petrochemical industries within the Arabian
Gulf, therefore any significant deterioration in oil and oil derivatives prices will have a negative impact
on the operations and future projections of the Issuer’s subsidiaries. Oil and gas prices have fluctuated
widely over the last two decades as a result of many factors, including global demand for oil and natural
gas, global storage capacity, changes in governmental regulations, weather, international armed conflict,
terrorism, general economic conditions and competition from other energy sources. Actual changes in
market conditions and oil and gas prices in the region or elsewhere may affect the future prospects of the
subsidiaries of the Issuer.

The oil & gas and petrochemicals industries are characterized by competition that attracts foreign
competitors into the markets where the Issuer’s subsidiaries operate in the oil & gas sector, and the ability
of the Issuer’s subsidiaries to adapt its activities and businesses to trends in that sector.

Although historically there has been a reasonably strong correlation between benchmark prices for oil
and gas on the one hand and petrochemical prices on the other, there can be no assurance that this will
continue to be the case, while petrochemical prices may be affected by similar factors to that of oil and gas
prices above, all of which are outside of the control of the subsidiaries of the Issuer.

Despite the presence of various environmental regulations, and the corresponding measures taken by the
subsidiaries and associates of the Issuer that operate within the energy sector, to comply with regulations
and programs that aim to preserve the environment, set forth by the respective regulatory bodies in
the countries where the subsidiaries or associates operates within, the occurrence of an environmental
violation is possible. This is due to the nature of the operations and the associated risks, across all ranges
of operational activity.

Furthermore, implementing strict environmental programs will increase the costs on the subsidiaries of
the Issuer, which may have a material adverse impact on operations and profits. It is also possible that
the Issuer’s net income, results of operations, and its financial position could be heavily impacted in
case of occurrence of major damages or losses as a result of handling dangerous or poisonous matter
without proper insurance coverage on such operations, or the occurrence of any accidents without proper
insurance coverage or no coverage at all for any reason as per reasonable commercial guidelines.

Risk relating to Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) Agreements

Some of the associate companies and subsidiaries are undertaking a number of BOT projects with the
Kuwaiti government, and which would result in a number of risks including the possibility of imposing
penalties on the company as a consequence to not abiding to its obligations under the project, in addition
to the risks relating to not being able to amend the prices of the services in the event that the operating
costs of the project increase due to the contractual commitments entered into with the government. In
addition to the above, the contracting governmental entities may terminate, amend or not renew the
project agreements for reasons relating to public interest or for other reasons which details would be
unknown to the company upon termination. The damages paid to the company may not be available or
sufficient. Accordingly, there is no guarantee that the company will be able to avoid the risks relevant to
these agreements, which may lead to a negative and material impact on the business, its financial position,
results of operations and future prospects.
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Risks related to the investments sector

The Group currently has strategic investments, and it may enter into any such investments in the future
to achieve its long-term strategic plans and objectives. The Group may not have a controlling interest in
strategic investments that it enters into, which does not give the Group any guarantees as to its investment
objectives. The Group’s objectives may not be compatible with its partners’ objectives, and such partners
may breach their obligations under the agreements entered into with the Group. In addition, strategic
investments require considerable time and tremendous effort from the Group and there can be no
assurance that any of these investments will be successful. Investments also entail many risks, such as the
failure to achieve the expected return on investment or loss of all or part of the Group’s investment; such
investments may also lead to the Group incurring unexpected obligations and having to cooperate with
a strategic partner that may not be cooperative with the Group. Any of these factors will have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations, financial position, and future prospects.

Market Risks

The Group’s financial position and results of operations could be adversely affected by risks associated
with financial markets

The Issuer and its subsidiaries’ financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected
by risks inherent in financial markets that are outside its control, including, without limitation, volatility
in interest rates, prices of securities and currency exchange rates. The Issuer and its subsidiaries maintain
portfolios of financial and real estate investments, such as financial assets held at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income, investments held at fair
value through profit or loss, as well as real estate investments. The Issuer’s income from investments in
financial and real estate assets depends on numerous factors beyond its control, such as overall market
trading activity, interest rate levels, fluctuations in currency exchange rates and general market volatility.

Further, the Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in interest rates and the financial obligations
arising from its activities. The global economy is witnessing a rise in inflation as a result of the implications
of COVID-19, primarily of which has resulted in significant complications to global supply chains. The
US Federal Reserve announced in 2021 it would begin scaling back its asset purchases program, while
economists predict that the Federal Reserve will raise interest rates at a faster pace than initially anticipated.
An increase in the general level of interest rates may increase the Group’s cost of borrowing, which could
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations, financial position, and future
prospects.

A main segment of the Group and its subsidiaries’ and associates’ income are derived from returns on
its investment portfolios. Any fluctuations in global markets can impact the performance of investment
portfolios that the Issuer and the subsidiaries and associates invest in, and that could lead the Group to
decrease their holdings in the securities they own.

Moreover, the weakness of the Kuwaiti Dinar against the US Dollar may have a negative impact on the
Group’s ability to repay the nominal amount and interest on loans in currencies other than the Kuwaiti
Dinar. The Group is exposed to risks that may result from a change in foreign exchange rate policies
imposed by the Central Bank of Kuwait. A volatile fluctuation in the value of the Kuwaiti Dinar against the
US dollar may have a significant impact on profits.

There are no guarantees that the Group will be successfully able to circumvent any future adverse effects
that may occurasaresult of changesininterest rates or volatility in foreign exchange rates, which could lead
to a material impact on the Issuer’s business, financial position, results of operations and future prospects.
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Liquidity Risks
The Group’s portfolio include illiquid investments, which are difficult to exit

llliquid investments are difficult to exit compared to other more liquid investments, particularly in times of
slowdowns in global markets, particularly, in markets where the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates
operate.The adverse market conditions could negatively impact the Issuer and its subsidiaries’investments
portfolio in the future, leading to increasing difficulty in divesting from such investments, which would
have a material adverse impact on its financial position, results of operations and future prospects.

Direct real estate investments are long-term investments and are difficult to exit compared to other
investments, particularly in times of recession in the real estate sector as well as other markets where
the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates operate. The adverse market conditions could negatively
impact the Issuer’s real estate portfolio in the future, which would increase the difficulty of divesting from
such investments, and would therefore have a material adverse impact on its financial position, results of
operations and future prospects.

The Group is subject to the risk that liquidity may not always be readily available or may only be
available at costs that may adversely affect its business or results of operations

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Issuer and some of its affiliate companies and subsidiaries will be unable
to meet their obligations, including funding commitments, as they fall due. The Issuer and its affiliate
companies and subsidiaries are intending to pay back a number of debts. The success of the Issuer and its
affiliate companies and subsidiaries in doing so will depend on a number of factors which fall outside their
control including the approval of lenders, the terms and conditions entered into with these lenders, the
ability of the Issuer and its affiliate companies and subsidiaries to issue these Offering Shares, in addition
to a number of other factors.

The risk may also increase because of certain requirements imposed on institutions and these would
include relying on a single source of funding (including for short-term funding), the changes in the credit
ratings, in addition to circumstances relating to the market at large such as major crisis and chaos in the
market. A decrease in the oil returns may cause a slowdown of growth and a budget deficit, which would
cause a decrease in the credit and liquidity in the GCC’s markets.

In addition to the above, the instability and the markets and credit fluctuations may limit the Issuer and its
affiliate companies and subsidiaries’ ability to refinance the commitments through a long term funding or
increase the cost of such funding. Obtaining additional funding by the Issuer and its affiliate companies
and subsidiaries will depend on various factors including the market situation and the availability of credit
generally, and on the borrowers in the financial services sector in particular, the financial situation of the
Issuer, its credit rating and worthiness.

Operational Risks

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates are exposed to a range of operational risks. In particular,
any failure of the Issuer’s information technology (IT) systems could have a material adverse effect on
its business and reputation

Operational risk and losses can result from fraud, errors by employees, failure to document transactions
properly or to obtain proper internal authorization, failure to comply with regulatory requirements and
conduct of business rules, systems and equipment failures (including IT failures, in particular), natural
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disasters or the failure of external systems (for example, those of the Issuer’s and its subsidiaries’ and
associates’ counterparties or vendors). The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates have implemented
risk controls and loss mitigation strategies, and substantial resources are devoted to developing efficient
procedures and to staff training, but it is not possible to entirely eliminate each of the potential operational
risks that the Issuer, or any of its subsidiaries’ and associates; face. Losses from the failure of the internal
system controls of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates could have a material adverse effect on its
financial position, results of operations and future prospects.

Thelssuerandits subsidiaries and associates depend on IT systems to process alarge number of transactions
on an accurate and timely basis, and to store and process substantially all of the Issuer’s business and
operating data. The proper functioning of the Issuer’s financial control, risk management, credit analysis
and reporting, accounting, customer service and other IT systems, as well as the communication networks
between main data processing centers, are critical to the Issuer’s business and ability to compete effectively.
The Issuer’s business activities would be materially disrupted if there is a partial or complete failure of any
of these IT systems or communications networks. Such failures can be caused by a variety of factors, many
of which are wholly or partially outside the Issuer’s control including natural disasters, extended power
outages, computer viruses and malicious third-party intrusions. The proper functioning of the Issuer’s IT
systems also depends on accurate and reliable data and other system input, which are subject to human
errors. Any failure or delay in recording or processing the Issuer’s transaction data could subject it to claims
for losses and regulatory fines and penalties. The Issuer has implemented and tested business continuity
plans and processes as well as disaster recovery procedures, but there can be no assurance that these
safeguards will be fully effective and any failure may have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s business
and reputation.

The risk management policies and procedures of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates may not
be effective in all circumstances and may leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks

There can be no assurance that the risk management and internal control policies and procedures will
adequately control, or protect it against, all credit, liquidity, market, operational and other risks. In addition,
certain risks may not be accurately quantified by their risk management systems. Some of the methods
used by the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates in managing risk are based upon the use of historical
market data which, as evidenced by events caused by the global financial crisis, may not always accurately
predict future risk exposures which could be significantly greater than historical measures indicate.
In addition, certain risks could be greater than the empirical data of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and
associates would otherwise indicate.

Other risk management methods depend upon evaluation of information regarding the markets in which
the Issuer operates, its clients or other matters that are publicly available orinformation otherwise accessible
to it. This information may not be accurate, complete, up-to-date or properly evaluated in all cases. Any
material deficiency in the Issuer’s risk management or other internal control policies or procedures may
expose it to significant credit, liquidity, market or operational risk, which may in turn have a material
adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations and future prospects.

The Issuer’s internal compliance systems might not be fully effective in all circumstances

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates’ ability to comply with all applicable regulations is largely
dependent on its maintenance of compliance, audit and reporting systems and procedures, and its ability
to attract and retain personnel qualified to manage and monitor such systems and procedures. Although
the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates are subject to oversight by regulatory authorities, including
regular examination activity, and performs regular internal audits and employs an external auditor to
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monitor and test its compliance systems, the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates cannot be certain
that these systems and procedures will be fully effective in all circumstances, particularly in the case of
deliberate employee misconduct or other frauds perpetrated against it. In the case of actual or alleged
non-compliance with applicable regulations, they could be subject to investigations and judicial or
administrative proceedings that may result in substantial penalties or civil lawsuits for damages. Any of
these factors could have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations and future
prospects of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates.

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates may not be able to recruit and retain qualified and
experienced personnel, which could have an adverse effect on its business and its ability to implement
its strategy

The success and ability of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates to maintain current business
levels and sustain growth will depend, in part, on its ability to continue to recruit and retain qualified
and experienced banking and management personnel. The market for such personnel in the markets
where they operate is intensely competitive and the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates could face
challenges in recruiting and retaining such personnel to manage its businesses.

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates depend on the efforts, skill, reputation and experience of
its senior management, as well as synergies among their diverse fields of expertise and knowledge. The
loss of key personnel could delay or prevent them from implementing its strategies. The Issuer and its
subsidiaries and associates are also not insured against losses that may be incurred in the event of the
loss of any member of its key personnel. Any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on the
business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects of the Issuer and its subsidiaries
and associates.

Lawsuits and fines that the Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates may face

The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates are at risk of prosecution from several parties it deals with,
and any adverse judgements and/or sentences in these potential litigation cases will most likely incur
damages, costs and fines. The occurrence of any of these risks would have a material adverse impact on its
financial position, results of operations and future prospects.

The application of Corporate Governance rules and the extent to which the Issuer and its subsidiaries
and associates are able to comply with the requirements of regulatory bodies

The Issuer’s management approved the Corporate Governance Regulations for Companies as per the rules
and regulations stated in the restated executive bylaws of the CMA in the State of Kuwait. These rules and
procedures include the formation of risk, audit, nomination and remuneration committees. The Issuer’s
success in implementing sound governance protocols will depend on a comprehensive understanding
of corporate governance laws and their objectives, especially in relation to the formation of the board
of directors, its committees, requirements for independence, and the performance of their roles and
responsibilities, as well as upholding principles, with relation to conflicts of interest, related parties
and periodic disclosures. The Issuer’s non-compliance to the rules and regulations and the demands of
regulatory bodies will result in penalties imposed by the CMA. As such, the Issuer’s failure in applying
governance protocols will have an adverse negative material impact on the Issuer’s business, financial
condition, results of operations and future prospects.

92



The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates accounting policies and methods are critical to how it
reports its financial condition and results of operations and require management to make estimates
about matters that are uncertain

Accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates
record and report its financial condition and results of operations. Management must exercise judgment
in selecting and applying many of these accounting policies and methods so they comply with IFRS.

The management of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates have identified certain accounting
policies in the notes to its financial statements as being critical because they require management’s
judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. See notes 2 to 6 to the 2020 Annual Audited Financial
Statements. These judgments include, for example, the classification of investments, real estate and the
determination of impairment allowances and fair values of assets and liabilities.

A variety of factors could affect the ultimate value that is obtained either when earning income, recognizing
an expense, recovering an asset or reducing a liability. The Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates have
established policies and control procedures that are intended to ensure that these critical accounting
estimates and judgments are well controlled and applied consistently. In addition, the policies and
procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing methodologies occurs in an appropriate
manner. However, due to the uncertainty surrounding the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates’
judgments and the estimates pertaining to these matters, they cannot guarantee that it will not be required
to make changes in accounting estimates or restate prior period financial statements in the future.

Regulatory Risks

Some of the Issuer’s subsidiaries and associates are subject to extensive regulations, where any changes
to these regulations, or the interpretation and enforcement of these regulations, or any failure by the
Issuer’s subsidiaries and associates to comply with these regulations could have a material adverse
effect on the Issuer

Some of the Issuer’s subsidiaries and associates operating in the financial services sector are subject to a
number of prudential and regulatory controls designed to maintain the safety and soundness of those
companies, ensure their compliance with economic and other objectives, and limit their exposure to risk.
These controls include laws and regulations promulgated by the CMA, the CBK, MOCI and Boursa Kuwait.

The regulations to which the Issuer’s subsidiaries and associates are subject to may limit its ability to
carry on certain parts of its business. In addition, increased regulations or changes in applicable laws and
regulations and the manner in which they are interpreted or enforced in Kuwait may impose significant
additional costs on the subsidiaries and associates and have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s
business, financial condition, results of operations or future prospects. Furthermore, noncompliance by
the Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates with any applicable regulations could expose it to potential
liabilities and fines, which may be significant.

In order to carry out and expand its businesses, it is necessary for the Issuer to maintain or obtain a variety
of licenses, permits, approvals and consents from various regulatory, legal, administrative, tax and other
governmental authorities and agencies. The processes for obtaining these licenses, permits approvals
and consents are often lengthy, complex, unpredictable and costly. If the Issuer or its subsidiaries and
associates are unable, to maintain or obtain the relevant licenses, permits, approvals and consents, its
ability to achieve its strategic objectives could be impaired.
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Other Risks
The interests of the major shareholders might occasionally conflict with those of the small shareholders

Major shareholders of the Group might collaborate, among themselves, or with other shareholders, to
block some measures or resolutions proposed by the Group’s shareholders in the Annual Ordinary General
Meetings (AGM) or Extraordinary General Meetings (EGM). Naturally, investors should be aware that the
interests of major shareholders in the Group may sometimes conflict with minority shareholders, and in
that case, affect some shareholders as a result. For more on the protection of the rights of shareholders,
see —“Corporate Governance, Rule Eight” above.

RISKS RELATING TO THE REGION IN WHICH THE GROUP OPERATES

Kuwait’s legal system continues to develop and this may create an uncertain environment forinvestment
and business activity

Kuwait is passing through various stages of developing its legal and regulatory institutions, which is a
characteristic of more developed markets. As a result, procedural safeguards as well as formal regulations
and laws may not be applied consistently. In some circumstances, it may not be possible to obtain
the legal remedies provided under the relevant laws and regulations in a timely manner. As the legal
environment remains subject to continuous development, investors in Kuwait and the GCC countries may
face uncertainty as to the security of their investments. Any unexpected changes in the legal systems in
Kuwait may have a material adverse effect on the rights of holders of the stocks or the investments that the
Issuer has made or may make in the future, which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s
business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

Legal and Regulatory Systems

Legal and regulatory systems may create an uncertain environment for investment and business activities
in the MENA region which is progressing in the development of governing institutions and legal and
regulatory systems that are not yet as firmly established as they are in Western Europe and the United
States. Kuwait, along with other countries within the GCC region, has enacted measures to promote
greater efficiency and certainty within its legal and regulatory systems. Among those measures, Kuwait
and countries within the GCC region have assumed obligations under the General Agreement on Tariffs
and Trade (“GATT") (as administered by the World Trade Organization (“WTO”) and Kuwait has already
enacted legislation, inter alia, to allow foreign ownership. However, Kuwait may experience changes in
its economy and government policies (including, without limitation, policies relating to the continued
extension of the rights of foreign ownership pursuant to Kuwait’s GATT/WTO obligations) that may affect
the environment in which the Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates operate.

Impact of regulatory changes

The Issuer is subject to the laws, regulations, administrative actions and policies of Kuwait and each
other jurisdiction in which it operates. These regulations may limit the Issuer’s activities and changes in
supervision and regulation, in particular in Kuwait, could materially affect the Issuer’s business, financial
condition, results of operations or future prospects. Although the Issuer works closely with its regulators
and continually monitors the situation, future changes in the regulation, fiscal or other policies cannot be
predicted and are beyond the control of the Issuer.
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Kuwait Bankruptcy rules

Any claim or rights, by or on behalf of shareholders, in the Shares to be issued, will rank pari passu, without
any preference, to the outstanding shares of the Issuer. In the event of the Issuer’s insolvency, Kuwaiti
bankruptcy rules under the Insolvency Law No. 71 of 2020 and the enforcement procedures over the
assets of the Group may adversely affect the Issuer’s ability to perform its obligations to the shareholders
or return the funds of the shareholders in the event of insolvency. According to the law, shareholders'’
claims are ranked below priority claims, to the benefit of the state, government, tax and labor authorities,
secured creditors and other creditors of the Issuer.

Obtaining a final bankruptcy judgment in Kuwait can take several years. There is, therefore, no certainty as
to the shareholders receiving, in the event of the Group being pronounced bankrupt, their claims in full or
at all.

Force Majeure

Some unpredictable events may happen which in turn may affect the ability of the Issuer or its subsidiaries
and associates to meet its obligations with respect to the current and planned operations. Force majeure
events include but are not limited to accidents, wars, revolutions, riots, civil resurrection, acts of god,
natural disasters, strikes or labor disputes.

There is no guarantee of steady financial performance for the Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates in
the future. The financial performance of the Issuer and its subsidiaries and associates has been favored
by robust economic conditions since inception in Kuwait and GCC states, during such period on the
background of relative political stability and steady increase in oil prices. There is no guarantee of steady
financial performance of the Issuer or its subsidiaries and associates in the future or growth and stability
in the markets in which the Issuer operates and invests. In view of the overlapping nature of the global
financial markets, investors must be mindful that the activities and financial performance of the Issuer
may be affected and influenced by the negative effects of other related political economic and other
developments within and outside of the GCC states and the Middle East. If the Issuer or its subsidiaries and
associates are unable to achieve satisfactory or reasonable investment returns on steady and sustainable
basis, existing Shareholders may decide to reduce or liquidate their investments. Further, the Group is
exposed to the risks of mismanagement, fraud, or failure.

Thelssuer continues to upgrade its systems in keeping with the potential growth, increased complexity and
specialization in various assets and investments management. Although the Issuer and its subsidiaries and
associates believe that it has proper financial and administrative controls, any mismanagement, or act of
fraud, circumvention, malfunctioning or failure in carrying out the operational responsibilities of the Issuer
or the negative publicity caused by such acts, or a charge laid out by any other party may have negative
impact on the ability of the Issuer to maintain income from various credit portfolios and investments, or
its ability to grow such income.

RISKS RELATED TO THE OFFERING SHARES
Investing in securities in developing and emerging markets generally involves a higher degree of risk

Investors in developing and emerging markets, such as Kuwait, should be aware that these markets are
subject to greater risks than developed markets including, but not limited to, higher volatility, limited
liquidity, and changes in the political and economic environment. In addition, there can be no assurance
that the market for securities bearing emerging market risk, such as the stocks, will not be affected
negatively by events elsewhere, especially in emerging markets.
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Specificrisks in Kuwait and the Middle East and North Africa region that could have a material adverse effect
on the Issuer’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects include the following:

+ Political, economic or social instability;

- External acts of warfare, civil clashes or other hostilities or conflict;
« Domestic unrest or violence;

+ Increases in inflation and the cost of living;

« Changing tax regimes and tax laws, including the imposition of taxes in tax-free jurisdictions or the
increase of taxes in low-tax jurisdictions;

« Government interventions and protectionism;
« Potential adverse changes in laws and regulatory practices, including legal structures and tax laws;
- Difficulties in staffing and managing operations;

« Legal systems which could make it difficult for the Issuer to enforce its intellectual property and
contractual rights;

+ Restrictions on the right to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;
«  Greater risk of uncollectible accounts and longer collection cycles;
«  Currency fluctuations; and

« Logistical and communications challenges.

Accordingly, prospective investors should exercise particular care in evaluating the risks involved, and
must determine for themselves whether, in light of those risks, an investment in the stocks is appropriate.
Generally,investmentin emerging marketsisonly suitable for sophisticated investors who fully comprehend
the significance of the risk involved.

Suitability of investment

Each potential investor in the stocks must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

« Have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the stocks, the merits
and risks of investing in the stocks, and the information contained in this Prospectus;

« Have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the stocks and the impact the stocks will have on its
overall investment portfolio;

« Understand thoroughly the terms of the stocks and be familiar with the behavior of any relevant
financial markets; and

- Beableto evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for economic
and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

Liquidity and volatility in the share price

The Issuer’s shares are listed on Boursa Kuwait. Investors may not be able to resell their shares (including
the Offering Shares) at or above the Offer Price, or at all, as the market price of the Shares after the Offering
may be adversely affected by factors within and beyond the Issuer’s control, including, but not limited to,
variations in the Issuer’s results of operations, market conditions, or changes in government regulations.
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Investors should be aware that the value of an investment in the Shares (including the Offering Shares) may
decline, as well as rise. The market price of the Offering Shares could be volatile and subject to significant
fluctuations due to a change in sentiment in the market regarding the Offering Shares.

Stock markets have, from time to time, experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have
affected market prices for securities, and which may be unrelated to the Issuer’s performance or prospects.
Furthermore, the Issuer’s operating results and prospects from time to time may be below the expectation
of market analysts and the market generally. Any of these events could result in a decline in the market
price of the Group’s shares.

Dividend payments

The Offering Shares will be entitled to receive any dividends declared by the Issuer in the future. The Issuer
intends to maintain a dividend policy which has due regard to sustainable levels of dividend distribution
and which reflects the Issuer’s view on the outlook for sustainable recurring earnings. The Issuer does not
aim to create reserves that are not available for distribution to Shareholders other than those required by
law. The Issuer intends to pay dividends when the Board of Directors considers it appropriate). Furthermore,
the dividend policy of the Issuer may change from time to time.

Dilution of existing shareholdings

If Qualified Shareholders do not take up their rights by the latest date for receipt of applications and
payments in full that are set out in this Prospectus, their proportionate ownership and voting interests in
the Issuer will be reduced and the percentage that their current shares represent in the share capital of the
Issuer immediately following the Offering will be reduced accordingly. In addition, Qualified Shareholders
as at the Record Date who take up their rights in full may suffer some dilution of their interest in the
Issuer as their entitlement will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Offering Shares. Such
Shareholders may, in the event of availability of unsubscribed Offering Shares, be able to subscribe for
additional Offering Shares, which may enable them to maintain or increase their proportionate interest in
the Issuer.

Risks of unprofitability or not exercising Preemption Rights

A higher trading price for the Group’s shares does not guarantee profitability for shareholders. Moreover,
there is no guarantee of sufficient demand in the market for investors to exercise their Preemption Rights
or be compensated by the Group for not exercising their Preemption Rights. In the event that investors
are unable to sell their Preemption Rights by the end of the 5th Business day prior to the closing of the
Subscription Period, investors may be losing these rights to subscribe in the Offering Shares. In the event
investors do not subscribe, or fail to follow the procedures for subscription in the Offering Shares, there
are no guarantees investors will be compensated for failure of exercising their Preemption Rights and thus
incurring potential losses. Accordingly, investors should review the information on the mechanism for the
listing and trading of Preemption Rights on Boursa Kuwait, the Kuwait Companies Law no. 1 of 2016, and the
provisions of the executive regulations of the CMA. Investors must be aware of factors that may potentially
affect them, to ensure that any investment decision is based on awareness and a full understanding of the
nature of the investment and the risks associated with it.

Risks of insufficient demand for Preemption Rights or the Group’s shares, or withdrawal from
subscription

There is no guarantee that there will be sufficient demand for Preemption Rights during the Subscription
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Period in the Offering Shares to allow preemption rightsholders to sell their rights at a profit. Moreover,
there is no guarantee there will be sufficient demand for the Group’s shares by Qualified Shareholders
during the Subscription Period, and in this case, preemption rightsholders will not be compensated for
failing to exercise their rights. In addition, there is no guarantee of sufficient market demand for the shares
acquired by the Subscriber through the exercise of their Preemption Rights, or through the remaining
shares offered, or through the market, which will in turn negatively affect the share price, the Group’s
profitability, and the shareholders. Besides, there is no guarantee the Offering will be successful, or is not
cancelled, and in the event of a cancellation, the preemption rightsholders will not be able to exercise
their right to subscribe in the Shares which may cause the preemption right holder to forfeit the purchase
price of the Preemption Right, and will not have the right of recourse against the Group or the Subscription
Agent or and the Clearing and Depositary Agent for any claim or compensation. The listing and trading of
the Preemption Rights in respect of the Offering is subject to the Group’s shares continuing to be listed on
Boursa Kuwait during the Subscription Period in the Preemption Rights.

Risks of speculation in Preemption Rights

Speculation in Preemption Rights is subject to risks that could lead to material losses. Additionally, there
is a positive relation between the Group’s share price and the reference price, and based on the daily
price trading limits on the stock. In the event that the speculator does not sell their Preemption Rights or
exercise it before the end of the trading period, the speculator will be forced to lose these rights and thus
be exposed to potential losses.

Taxation risks on payments

The application and enforcement of the Kuwaitiincome tax regime is uncertain, and holders of the Offering
Shares which are “non-GCC corporate entities” may become subject to the Kuwaiti income tax regime in
certain limited circumstances.

The application and enforcement of the Kuwaiti income tax regime to holders of the Offering Shares
which are “non-GCC corporate entities” (as defined in “Taxation”) is uncertain. There is a possibility that
any holder of the Issue Shares which is a non-GCC corporate entity may become subject to the Kuwaiti
income tax regime in the future, should the Department of Income Tax (the “DIT”) at the Kuwaiti Ministry of
Finance and/or the Kuwaiti courts determine that the income received by a holder of the Offering Shares
in respect of any Offering Shares is taxable notwithstanding the Tax Exemptions (as defined and explained
in “Taxation”).

As at the date of this Prospectus, there has been no official statement made publicly by the DIT regarding
its interpretation of, and/ or application of, the Tax Exemptions in the context of a transaction such as the
issue of the Offering Shares. Similarly, the Kuwaiti courts (who will be the final arbiters on the matter) have
not been required to interpret such requirement to date. Although there has been no precedent of the DIT
enforcing the imposition of income tax on non-GCC corporate entity shareholders in the circumstances
described above, itis not possible to state definitively how the DIT and/or the Kuwaiti courts may implement
or enforce the Taxation Laws (as defined in“Taxation”) and the Tax Exemption in practice. Furthermore, the
DIT has to date not always adopted consistent rulings on Kuwaiti tax matters more generally

If the DIT and/or the Kuwaiti courts were to determine that the income received by a holder of Offering
Shares which is a non-GCC corporate entity in respect of any Offering Shares held by it is taxable, then
such non- GCC corporate entity would become subject to the Kuwaiti income tax regime, which requires
income tax (at a rate of 15 per cent.) to be levied on the net income and possibly capital gains of such

98



non-GCC corporate entities, and imposes certain disclosure and reporting obligations on persons subject
to such regime (which would include an obligation to file a tax return in Kuwait). In addition, a deduction
of five per cent. of the amount of any payments made by the Issuer directly to the holders of the Offering
Shares may be applied in certain circumstances, pending resolution of their tax position. See “Taxation” -
Retention for further details.

Whilst the application and enforcement of the Kuwaiti income tax regime remains uncertain, there can
be no assurance that holders of Offering Shares which are “non-GCC corporate entities” will not become
subject to such regime in the circumstances described above. Prospective subscribers for the Offering
Shares are advised to consult their tax advisers as to the consequences under Kuwaiti and other applicable
tax laws of acquiring, holding and disposing of the Offering Shares and receiving payments under the
Offering Shares. See “Taxation” for further details.

Kuwait may introduce Corporate Income Tax on Kuwaiti and other Companies, as well as Value Added
Taxes

The Issuer is not currently subject to corporation tax on its earnings within Kuwait. However, on 14 March
2016 the Kuwait Cabinet of Ministers approved plans to implement a corporate tax of 10 per cent. On
the annual profits of Kuwaiti incorporated entities (the “Proposed Corporate Income Tax”), including
Partnerships, Funds, Sole Partnership and Trusts, similar companies established under the laws of a foreign
country and individuals, enterprises or sole traders (other than incorporated companies) who are carrying
on a business in Kuwait which may be applicable to the Issuer for future financial years. As at the date of
this Prospectus, the Proposed Corporate Income Tax does not have the force of law until such time as it has
been approved by the Kuwaiti Parliament, signed by the Amir, and published in the Official Gazette. It is
currently uncertain as to whether the Proposed Corporate Income Tax will be promulgated into law in the
form in which it has been proposed by the Cabinet of Ministers, or at all. If the Kuwaiti authorities impose
new tax regimes on the Issuer (whether in the form of the Proposed Corporate Income Tax or otherwise)
or introduce any other changes in tax laws which make doing business in Kuwait less attractive, this may
have a material adverse effect on the Issuer’s business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition. The Proposed Corporate Income Tax also provides for Withholding taxes (WHT) to be imposed
on payments to nonresident entities. Currently the Proposed Corporate Income Tax provides for WHT on
royalties, interest and technical fees at 10% and insurance premiums at 5%, but not on dividends.

It is expected that the State of Kuwait will implement a value-added tax law in the coming periods, while
a value-added tax will be implemented in most of the Gulf Cooperation Council countries. Although the
application of this tax on financial services has not been confirmed, the application may cause economic
effects on the Group’s financial position, business results and prospects.

Change in Law

No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible change to Kuwaiti law or to administrative
practice after the date of the Prospectus, nor can any assurance by given as to whether any such change
could adversely affect the ability of the Issuer to make payments and/or make deliveries under the Offering
Shares, as applicable.

The application of the Kuwaiti income tax regime on stock dividends.

Article 150 (bis) of Law No. 7 of 2010 Concerning the Establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and the
Regulating of Securities Activities, introduced pursuant to Law No. 22 of 2015 (“Article 150 (bis)"), provides
that, without prejudice to the tax on profits arising from the disposal of securities issued by companies
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listed on Boursa Kuwait, the returns in respect of securities, bonds, financial sukuk and all other similar
securities, regardless of the Issuer, are exempt from taxes. However, there is no guarantee that the Article
150 (bis) will not be amended in the future and hence the payments made by the Group relating to the
Shares may be subject to taxes if the article is amended.

GCC countries may form a monetary union

There exists a future possibility of the Kingdom of Bahrain, the State of Kuwait, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
and the State of Qatar abandon their national currencies for a single Gulf currency. In the event of adopting
a single Gulf currency, the necessary convergence and adjustment of laws, policies and procedures will
create profound changes in the basic economic and political structure in every GCC country. So far, no
timetable for the development of monetary union has been announced with no details available of new
legislations or policies; nevertheless, potential shareholders and investors should be aware that the new
legislations and any resulting change in the monetary policies and procedures in Kuwait can affect the
Issuer’s ability to fulfill its obligations towards its shareholders as it related to the Shares.
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TAXATION

The following is a general description of certain Kuwaiti tax considerations relating to the Issue Shares.
This description is based on the Issuer’s understanding of the historical and current interpretations and
practices of tax laws in the State of Kuwait by the Kuwaiti Income Tax Department. It does not purport
to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating to the Shares. Prospective subscribers should
refer to their tax advisors to determine the consequences of the tax laws in force in the countries in which
they reside for tax purposes, as well as the tax laws in the State of Kuwait regarding the purchase and
ownership of shares, their disposal and receipt of their returns and/or any other amounts under the shares.
This summary is based on the laws in force on the date of this Prospectus and is subject to any amendment
to the law after that date (as well as any change in the interpretation and practices of the Kuwait Income
Tax Administration for that law).

Returns

The Issuer undertakes that all returns related to shares are made under the current practice without
withholding or deduction for the account of taxes, fees, local taxes or government fees of whatever nature
imposed by the State of Kuwait or imposed on its behalf or imposed by any official body in the State of
Kuwait, or by any official body in the State of Kuwait that has the authority to impose taxes if the shareholder
is an individual or a Kuwaiti company.

Income Tax

Income tax is imposed at the rate of 15% on the netincome and capital gains realized by any establishment
that conducts business or trade in the State of Kuwait. Practically, the Income Tax Department does not
impose taxes on Kuwaiti companies whose capital is fully owned by Kuwaiti citizens or by citizens of the
GCC countries. Income tax is imposed on any foreign corporate body that is a shareholder in a Kuwaiti
company. Despite this, the Executive Bylaws of Law No. 2 of 2008 amending some provisions of Kuwait
Income Tax Decree No. 3 of 1955 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”) stipulates that an income tax
shall be imposed on income earned “from any contract executed fully or partly in the State of Kuwait” and
“the income generated from lending money within the State of Kuwait"

Individuals are not subject to any Kuwaiti income tax on their income or capital gains.

For the purposes of this section, the term“corporation”includes general partnerships, limited partnerships,
or joint ventures. The term “corporate body” that is subject to tax does not include any corporate body
established in one of the member states of the GCC and fully owned by citizens of the GCC countries only.
The GCC countries at present include the State of Kuwait, the Kingdom of Bahrain, the Sultanate of Oman,
the State of Qatar, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates.

Stamp Fees

According to the provisions of the tax laws in force in the State of Kuwait, shareholders are not entitled to
pay any stamp fees, registration fees, or similar fees in the State of Kuwait in connection with the issuance

of shares.

The Contribution of the Issuer to the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Science (KFAS)

According to the Emiri Decree of 12 December 1976, and its amendments, the Issuer is obliged, like other
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Kuwaiti shareholding companies, to pay an annual contribution of 1% (one percent) of its annual net profits
(after deductions for the Issuer’s legal reserve) to the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences.

Zakat

The Issuer is obliged to pay 1% (one percent) of its net profits as zakat in accordance with Law No. 46 of
2006 and Ministerial Resolution No. 58 of 2007, and their amendments.

Tax to support the national employment program

As a result of being a listed company on Boursa Kuwait, the Issuer is obliged to pay 2.5% (two and a half
percent) of its net profits to the National Labor Support Program in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000.

Tax exemption in the Capital Markets Authority Law

It should be noted that Article 150-bis of the Capital Markets Authority Law stipulates that: “Without
prejudice to the tax exemptions established on profits from the disposal of securities issued by listed
companies in the stock market, returns on securities, bonds and financing instruments are exempted from
tax, and all other similar securities, regardless its Issuer.
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Capital Markets Authority

The Capital Markets Authority in Kuwait is the regulating authority in charge of regulating the issuance of
securities in Kuwait and to issue the required licenses and approvals for the Offering, as per the Law No. 7
of 2010 and its executive bylaws as amended.

Change in Financial Position

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there has been no material adverse change in the financial position of
the Issuer since 31 December 2020 the date of its latest audited financial statements.

Auditors
The Group’s appointed Auditors are Grant Thornton - Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners.

The Group’s financials for the years ended 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, and
31 December 2020 have been audited by Grant Thornton - Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners with license No.
50-A for 2017,2018 and 2019, and license No. 94-A for 2020.

The Group’s financials for the years ended 31 December 2016 have been jointly audited by Grant Thornton
- Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners with license No. 50-A and Parker Randall (Allied Accountants) — Abdul Latif
Al-Majid & Co. with license No.70-A.

The Group’s financials for the period ended 30 September 2021 has been reviewed by Grant Thornton - Al-
Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners with license No. 94-A.

Resolution of the extraordinary general assembly and Board of Directors

The Issue Shares shall be issued pursuant to the Law No. 7 Of 2010 and its Executive Bylaws issued pursuant
to the resolution No. 72 of 2015, as amended and the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its executive
bylaws.

Approval of the issuance of the Issue Shares has been granted by the extraordinary general assembly
meeting held on 20 December 2021, which authorized the Board of Directors to increase the issued
capital within the limits of the authorized capital. This has been published in the Official Gazette with issue
number 1567 dated 2/1/2022 and annotated in the commercial register of the Issuer with the Ministry
of Commerce and Industry on 11/1/2022. The Issuer also obtained the approval of the Capital Markets
Authority in the State of Kuwait to increase the capital and issue shares on 24 February 2022 and as shown
in this Prospectus on 10 March 2022.

Official Consent

Approval to the issuance of the Issue Shares has been granted by the CMA 24 February 2022. The approval
on this Prospectus has been granted by the CMA 10 March 2022.

Shareholders Register

The Issuer maintains its shareholders register through the Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C in accordance
with the Companies Law No.1 of 2016 and its executive bylaws as amended.
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Clearance and Settlement

The clearing of the Shares’ transaction shall be completed through the Kuwait Clearing Company K.S.C
Control/Supervision over the Issuer

The Issuer was established in the State of Kuwait on 10 August 1960 and is subject to the Companies Law
No.1 of 2016 and its executive bylaws as amended. The Issuer is subject to the control/supervision of the
Ministry of Commerce and Industry in Kuwait and the Capital Markets Authority and to Boursa Kuwait

as a listed company according to Law No. 7 of 2010 regarding the establishment of the Capital Markets
Authority and the organization of the securities’ activities and its executive bylaws as amended.
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INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER AND ITS MANAGEMENT
The legal form of the Issuer and the legislation under which it was established and operated

National Industries Group Holding was established as a Kuwaiti public joint stock Company under the
Emiri Decree No. 8/1960 on 10 August 1960, and registered with the Commercial Register under No. 8392
on 23 April 2003, and has been listed on Boursa Kuwait since 29 September 1984, subject to the provisions
of the Kuwaiti Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its executive bylaws and subject to the supervision of
the Ministry of Commerce and Industry of the State of Kuwait in accordance with the provisions of the
aforementioned law. The Issuer is also subject to the supervision of the Kuwait Capital Markets Authority
and Boursa Kuwait as a listed Company. In accordance with the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 regarding
the establishment of the Capital Markets Authority, the regulation of securities activity and its executive
bylaws as amended.

Summary of the provisions of the Issuer’s article of association:

Objectives of the Group:

1. Owning shares of Kuwaiti or foreign joint stock companies as well as owning shares or stakes in Kuwaiti
or foreign limited liability companies or participating in the establishment of companies of both types
and lending, managing, and guarantying before third parties.

2. Lending to companies in which they own their shares and act as guarantors for them before third
parties, in which case the holding company’s participation in the capital of the borrowing companies
should not be less than 20%.

3. Owning industrial property rights such as patents, industrial trademarks, industrial duties, or any other
related rights and leasing to other companies for exploitation both inside and outside Kuwait.

4. Owning the tangibles and real estate necessary to perform their activities within the limits permitted
in accordance with the law.

The Group may have an interest or engage in any way with bodies that engage in similar businesses or may
cooperate in achieving their purposes in Kuwait or abroad and may purchase or join them.

Management of the Issuer

The Issuer is managed by a board of nine directors to be elected by the general assembly through secret
voting. Membership of the Board of Directors is for a period of three years renewable, and if a new Board of
Directors cannot be elected on time, the existing board will continue to manage the Issuer’s business until
a new Board of Directors is elected.

The Board of Directors may carry out all the work that the management of the Issuer requires in accordance
with its purposes. This authority is limited only by the provisions of the law, the articles of association and/
or the general assembly resolutions. The Board of Directors has the full authority to borrow, mortgage the
Issuer’s real estate, hold guarantees, and accept arbitration, reconciliation, and donations.

The Board of Directors is to elect via through secret voting its Chairman and Vice Chairman. The Chairman
of the Board of Directors represents the Issuer before third parties and before the judiciary, as well as before
other parties as indicated by the Group’s articles of association. The Chairman’s signature is considered to
be the signature of the Board of Directors in the Issuer’s relationship with others, and he has to implement
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the decisions of the Board and abide by its recommendations. The Vice Chairman replaces the Chairman in
his absence, or in the existence of any barrier to him exercising his competences.

The Board of Directors meets at least six times annually, and more meetings may be agreed upon. A
meeting is valid only if it is attended by at least five members of the Board of Directors and it may be held
using modern means of communication. Decisions may be taken by circulation with the consent of all
members of the Board of Directors.

The Issuer should have a Chief Executive Officer appointed by the Board of Directors, entitled to manage
the Group, and the Board shall determine his compensation and powers. The Chairman, Vice Chairman or
CEO have the right to solely sign on behalf of the company.

Share Capital of the Company
The Issuer’s authorized capital is KD 300,000,000, and its issued, and paid-up capital is KD 149,923,801.400

distributed at KD 1,499,238,014 nominal shares with a nominal value of 100 fils per share as at 30 September
2021.
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NI Group

National Industries Group
(Holding)

Articles and Memorandum of Association

National Industries Group Holding K.P.S.C.
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Stateof Kuwait
T+965-2244-3900/9
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www.grantthomton.com.kw

Report on review of interim condensed consolidated financial information

To the board of directors of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC
Kuwait

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying interim condensed consolidated statement of financial position of
National Industries Group Holding - KPSC (the “Parent Company”) and its Subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) as of 30 September 2021 and the related interim condensed consolidated statements of profit or loss,
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statements
cash flows for the nine-month period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of this interim condensed consolidated financial information in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim condensed consolidated financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review
of Interim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting
matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us
to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant mattets that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying intertm
condensed consolidated financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”.

Report on review of other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our review, the interim condensed consolidated financial information is in agreement with the books
of the Parent Company. We further report that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violation of the
Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the nine-month period ended 30
September 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the Parent
Company.

We further report that, during the coutse of our review, we have not become awate of any matetial violations
of the provision of law no 7 0f 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authotity and its related regulations during
the nine-months period ended 30 September 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business or
financial position of the Parent Company.

Abdullatif M. Al-Aiban (CPA)
(Licence No. 94-A)
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Kuwait
1 November 2021



Interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss

Three months ended

Nine months ended

30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD ‘000 KD '000
Sales 27,950 27,183 80,396 74,999
Cost of sales (22,292) (22,407) (65,015) (64,427)
Gross profit 5,658 4776 15,381 10,572
Income/(loss) from investments 5 41,441 18,846 100,670 (28,061)
Share of results of associates 12 7,582 816 19,641 7,844
Gain on partial disposal of associates 22 - 22 -
Change in fair vaiue of investment properties - - - (3,799)
Loss on disposal of investment properties - - (18) -
Rental income 533 471 1,567 1,503
Interest and other income 359 620 2,316 2,146
Gain on disposal of indirect subsidiary 21 1,364 - 1,364 -
Distribution costs (2,440) (1,730) (6,793) (5,627)
General, administrative and other expenses (6,271) (5,517) (17,798) (16,567)
Gain/(loss) on foreign currency exchange 24 280 217 (1,193)
48,272 18,562 116,569 (33,182)
Finance costs (5,249) (5,808) (15,883) (18,148)
Impairment in value of associates 12 (4,165) - (4,917) -
Impairment in value of accounts receivables and
other assets (3,339) (104) (3,405) (587)
Impairment in value of assets classified as held for
sale (1,581) - (1,581) -
Profit/(loss) before foreign taxation 33,938 12,652 90,783 (51,917)
Foreign taxation Ba (123) (70) (449) (152)
Profit/(loss) before provision for KFAS, NLST,
Zakat and Directors Remuneration 33,815 12,582 90,334 (52,069)
Provision for KFAS, NLST and Zakat 6b (2,651) (44) (4,465) (95)
Directors Remuneration 14b - - (480) -
Profit/(loss) for the period 31,164 12,538 85,389 (52,164)
Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 26,033 9,034 69,652 (55,111)
Non-controlling interests 5,131 3,504 15,737 2,947
31,164 12,538 85,389 (52,164)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Parent
Company 7 17.7 Fils 6.2 Fils 47.6 Fils  (37.7) Fils

The notes set out on pages 9 to 23 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.



Froun Holding - KPSQ
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Interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Profit/(loss) for the period 31,164 12,538 85,389 (52,164)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Exchange differences:
- Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
operations (4,346) 1,275 (4,135) (759)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of
associates
- Change in fair value (225) 1,061 (111) (2,229)
Total other comprehensive (loss)/ income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods (4,571) 2,336 (4,246) (2,988)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Defined benefit pian actuarial gain/(losses) 190 (656) 236 (44)
Net changes in fair value of investments in equity
instruments designated at FVOCI (26,330) 4,584 (7,688) 31,001
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of
associates 3,749 (5,791) 5,236 (6,765)
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income not being
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (22,391) (1,863) (2,216) 24,192
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the
period (26,962) 473 (6,462) 21,204
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 4,202 13,011 78,927 (30,960)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period
attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 9,535 7,642 64,066 (38,904)
Non-controlling interests (5,333) 5,369 14,861 7,944
4,202 13,011 78,927 (30,960)

The notes set out on pages 9 to 23 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.



od}

od Finanoinl informaliva

Interim condensed consolidated statement of financial

position
30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
Note (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000

Assets
Bank balances and cash 8 60,456 50,011 33,052
Short-term deposits 8 34,077 9,394 11,439
Assets classified as held for sale 4,294 6,312 8,370
Accounts receivable and other assets 58,236 56,918 55,968
Inventories 36,500 34,819 40,152
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 393,171 313,472 314,186
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income 11 191,190 230,918 234 049
Right of use of leased assets 8,121 9,642 6,108
Investment properties 56,928 60,260 57,399
Investments in associates 12 328,410 315,602 316,717
Property, plant and equipment 89,349 90,144 90,779
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10,075 9,847 9,735
Total assets 1,270,807 1,187,339 1,177,954
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 8 13,806 23,695 24,439
Accounts payable and other liabilities 75,041 72,936 73,737
Borrowings and bonds 13 623,402 612,190 604,183
Provisions 14,793 15,296 14,738
Total liabilities 727,042 724 117 717,097
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company
Share capital 14 149,924 142,784 142,784
Share premium 122,962 122,962 122,962
Treasury shares 14 (23,406) (30,375) (30,375)
Cumulative changes in fair value 18,295 36,469 35,698
Other components of equity 15 28,008 32,816 32,616
Retained earnings 101,035 22,253 21,501
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company 396,818 326,909 325,186
Non-controlling interests 146,947 136,313 135,671
Total equity 543,765 463,222 460,857
Total liabilities and equity 1,270,807 1,187,339 1,177,954

Sa’'ad Mohammed Al-Sa’ad
Chairman

i

Ahmad Mofiammed Hassan
Chief Executive Officer

The notes set ont on pages 9 1o 23 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.
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Interim condense»d consolidated statement of cash flows

Nine months Nine months
ended 30 ended 30
Sept. 2021 Sept. 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/{loss)before foreign taxation 90,783 (51,917)
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI (1,952) (1,232)
Share of results of associates (19,641) (7,844)
Loss on disposal of investment properties 18 -
Gain on partial disposal of associates (22) -
Interest/profit on bank balances and short-term deposits (529) (530)
Net provision (released)/charged (503) 625
Gain on disposal of indirect subsidiary (1,364) -
Depreciation and amortisation 5,687 6,024
Changes in fair value of investment properties - 3,799
Finance costs 15,883 18,148
Impairment in value of associates 4,917 -
Impairment in value of assets classified as held for sale 1,581 -
Impairment in value of accounts receivable and other assets 3,405 587
98,263 (32,340)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories (1,681) (4,229)
Accounts receivable and other assets (197) (5,513)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (79,699) 96,228
Accounts payable and other liabilities (2,812) 2,490
13,874 56,636
Taxation paid (282) (146)
KFAS, NLST and Zakat paid (437) (115)
Net cash from operating activities 13,155 56,375
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,821) (12,792)
Addition to investment properties - (753)
Addition to investment in associates (2,451) (2,131)
Proceeds from disposal/capital reduction of associates 142 -
Proceed from disposal of investment property 620 -
Proceed from disposal of indirect subsidiary (Note 21) 4,000 -
Dividend received from associates 4,494 6,599
Purchase of financial assets at FVOCI (213) (779)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVOCI 32,253 1,663
Dividend income received from financial assets at FVOCI 1,952 1,232
(Increase)/decrease in short term deposits maturing after three months (4,725) 1,791
Decrease in wakala investments - 1,000
Interest/profit received from bank balances, short-term deposits and wakala
investments 600 267
Net cash from/(used) investing activities 32,851 (3,903)

The notes set out on pages 9 to 23 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.
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Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash flows

(continued)

Nine months Nine months
ended 30 ended 30
i Sept. 2021 Sept. 2020
ote (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase/(decrease) in borrowings 11,212 (24,420)
Dividend paid to owners of the Parent Company (387) (12,906)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (1,178) (2,934)
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 1,996 -
Finance costs paid (15,686) (16,338)
Change in non-controlling interests (1,613) (5)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,656) (56,603)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40,350 (4,131)
Net cash on asset held for sale - (15)
Translation difference (58) (29)
40,292 (4,175)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 34,454 23,598
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8 74,746 19,423

The notes set out on pages 9 to 23 form an integral part of this interim condensed consolidated financial information.
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1 Incorporation and activities

National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (‘the Parent Company’) was incorporated in 1961 as a Kuwaiti
shareholding company in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law in the State of Kuwait and in April
2003, its status was transformed to a ‘Holding Company’. The Parent Company along with its subsidiaries are
jointly refetred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company’s shares are traded on the Kuwait Stock Exchange and
Dubai Financial Market.

The main objectives of the Parent Company are as follows:

- Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-IKluwaiti shareholding companies and shares in Kuwaiti or
non-Kuwaiti limited liability companies and participating in the establishment of, lending to and managing
of these companies and acting as a guarantor for these companies.

- Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the borrowing company,
along with acting as guarantor on behalf of these companies.

- Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royalties, or any other related rights, and
franchising them to other companies or using them within or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as stipulated by law.

- Employing excess funds available with the company by investing them in investment and real estate
portfolios managed by specialised companies.

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is PO Box 417, Safat 13005, State of Kuwait.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved this interim condensed consolidated financial
information for issue on 1 November 2021.

The annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issuance
by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting held on 29 April 2021.

2 Basis of preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial information of the Group for the nine-month period ended 30
September 2021 has been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34 “Intertm Financial
Reporting”.

The accounting polices used in the preparation of these interim condensed consolidated financial information
is consistent with those used in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information does not include all information and disclosures
requited for complete consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards. In the opinion of the Parent Company’s management, all adjustments consisting of normal
recurring accruals considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

Operating results for the nine-month period ended 30 September 2021 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be expected for the financial year ending 31 December 2021. For further details, refer to the
annual consolidated financial statements and its related disclosures for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies

31 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
No new amendments or standards were effective for the current period.

Howevet, the IFRS 16 Leases amendment relating to Covid19 Rent Related Concessions has been extended
until 30 September 2022. The practical expedient allows lessees to elect to not carry out an assessment to decide
whether a COVID-19 related rent concession received is a lease modification. The lessee is permitted to account

for the rent concession as if the change is not a lease modification.

3.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of this interim condensed consolidated financial information, certain new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective,
and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s interim condensed
consolidated financial information is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s interim condensed consolidated financial
information.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annual periods beginning

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments No stated date
TAS 1 Amendments - Classification of current and non-current 1 January 2023
IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
IAS 16 — Amendments — Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
IAS 37 — Amendments — Onerous contracts -Cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture - Amendments
The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:
e require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)
e require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture.

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or conttibution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of control
of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
S5 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture — Amendments (continued)

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until other projects are completed. However, eatly
implementation 1s allowed. Management anticipates that the application of these amendments may have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactions arise.

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of current or non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify the classification of a liability as either current or non-current is based on the
entity’s rights at the end of the reporting period. Stating management expectations around whether they will
defer settlement or not does not impact the classification of the lability. It has added guidance about lending
conditions and how these can impact classification and has included requirements for habilities that can be
settled using an entity’s own instruments.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant impact

on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments — Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments to TAS 1 require entities to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant
accounting policies. The amendments clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of its
nature, even if the related amounts are immatetial.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendments — Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments to IAS 8 inserted the definition of accounting estimates replacing the definition of a change
in accounting estimates. Accounting estimates are now defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before intended use

The amendment prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
recetved from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an
entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit ot loss.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendment in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 37 Amendments — Onerous contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify which costs an entity includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling
the contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
352 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IAS 37 Amendments — Onerous contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract (continued)
The amendments are only to be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all of its obligations
at the beginning of the annual period in which it first applies the amendments.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendment in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendment to TAS 1 simplifies the application of IFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after
its parent in relaton to the measurement of cumulative translation differences. Subsidiary that is a first-time
adopter later than its parent might have been required to keep two parallel sets of accounting records for
cumulative translation differences based on different dates of transition to IFRSs. However, the amendment
extends the exemption to cumulative translation differences to reduce costs for first-time adopters.

Amendment to IFRS 9 relates to the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities — In determining
whether to derecognise a financial liability that has been modified or exchanged, an entity assesses whether the
terms are substantially different. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantally different from the terms of the original financial

liability.

Lease Incentives — amendment to illustrative examples — The IASB was informed about the potential for
confusion in applying IFRS 16 Leases because of how Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 had
illustrated the requirements for lease incentives. Before the amendment, Illustrative Example 13 had included
as part of the fact pattern a reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements; the example had not explained
clearly enough the conclusion as to whether the reimbursement would meet the definition of a lease incentive
in IFRS 16. The TASB decided to remove the potential for confusion by deleting from Illustrative Example 13
the reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements.

Taxation in fair value measurements — Before this amendment, when an entity used a discounted cash flow
technique to determine the fair value applying IAS 41, IAS 41.22 required the entity to exclude taxation cash
flows from the calculation. The amendment to IAS 41 removed from this requirement to exclude taxation cash
flows when measuring fair value. This amendment aligned the requirements in TAS 41 on fair value measurement
with those in other IFRS Standards.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

4 Judgement and estimates

The preparation of interim condensed consolidated financial information requites management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this interim condensed consolidated financial information, the significant judgements made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the
same as those that applied to the annual audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 December 2020.
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information (continued)

5 Income/(loss) from investments
Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Dividend income:
- From financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 314 303 5,361 7,681
- From financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 203 698 1,952 1,232
Realised gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2,025 579 4,814 (10,903)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 38,899 17,266 88,543 (26,090)
Interest income on debt securities classified under
financial assets at FVTPL - - - 19
41,441 18,846 100,670 (28,061)
6 Taxation and other statutory contributions
(a) Foreign taxation
Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Taxation of foreign subsidiaries
Current tax expense
Current period charge (123) (70) (449) (152)
(123) (70) (449) (152)
(b) Provision for KFAS, NLST and Zakat
Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Provision for contributions to Kuwait Foundation
for Advancement of Science (KFAS) (227) - (552) -
Provision for National Labour Support Tax
(NLST) (2,080) - (3,073) -
Provision for Zakat (344) (44) (840) (95)

(2,651) (44) (4,465) (95)




Hotlonod o PSS and Buboigiories ek
Hakest

30 Qepisnbor 2

Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

onseli Finonola! nformetion

{Unzuliteg}

7 Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the period attributable
to the owners of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period

as follows:
Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to the

owners of the Parent Company (KD '000) 26,033 9,034 69,652 (55,111)
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the period (excluding

treasury shares) — shares 1,467,097,492 1,460,875,340 1,463,411,560 1,460,875,340
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 17.7 Fils 6.2 Fils 47.6 Fils (37.7) Fils

The weighted average number of shares outsfanding during previous period has been restated to add the bonus
shares approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Parent Company’s shareholders held on 29 April 2021
{(Note 14b).

The basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per shate reported during the previous period for the three months and
nine months ended 30 September 2020 were 6.5 Fils and (39.6) Fils respectively.

8 Cash and cash equivalents
30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Bank balances and cash 60,456 50,011 33,052
Short-term deposits (Note 8a) 34,077 9,394 11,439
Due to banks (Note 8b) (13,806) (23,695) (24,439)
80,727 35,710 20,052
Less: Blocked balances (6) 6) (6)
Less: Time deposits maturing after three months (5,975) (1,250) (623)
(5,981) (1,256) (629)
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of interim
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows 74,746 34,454 19,423

a) Short term deposit includes Murabaha investment with local Islamic financial institution amounting to
KD5,650 thousand (31 December 2020: KD650 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID650 thousand).

b) Due to banks includes bank overdraft facilities utilised by one of the subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to KD851 thousand which is secured by short term deposit of KID640 thousand (31 December 2020:
KD623 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID623 thousand).
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9 Wakala investments

During the previous years, one of the subsidiaries of the Group assumed the financial and legal obligations on
wakala investments of KID1,683 thousand (in violation of the Commercial Companies Law of 1960) that the
subsidiary company had placed with a local Islamic investment company as part of the total wakala investments
of KD14,324 thousand in a fiduciary capacity under a wakala agreement with certain related parties, despite
having no such obligation under the wakala agreement. The amount was fully provided in accordance with
Central Bank of Kuwait provision rules. The subsidiary company initiated legal proceedings against the parties
to recover the amount including profits thereon. During the year 2019, consequent to a court ruling decided in
favour of the subsidiary company, the related parties entered into a settlement agreement with the subsidiary
company to settle the above amount of KD1,683 thousand. The subsidiary company received KID1,683
thousand as per the settlement agreements. This has resulted in a reversal of provision during the current period
on wakala investment amounting to KID683 thousand in accordance with Central Bank of Kuwait credit
provisioning rules.

10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Quoted shares 275,952 206,244 206,285
Unquoted equity participations 14,086 13,862 26,775
Managed portfolios and funds 103,133 93,366 81,126
393,171 313,472 314,186

Quoted shares and managed funds, held by the Group, with a fair value of KID140,887 thousand (31 December
2020: KID91,710 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID93,554 thousand) are secured against borrowings.

11 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Quoted shares 50,468 41,489 44,042
Unqguoted equity participations 118,857 167,814 167,589
Managed portfolios and funds 21,865 21,615 22,418
191,190 230,918 234,049

a) During the year 2016, the Group signed a conditional agreement with a foreign party to sell 10.45%
shareholding in K-Electric Limited, one of the Pakistani listed companies involved in the generation,
transmission and distribution of electricity. The above shares are held through certain subsidiaries of the
Group and have been recorded under financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
However, the completion of the sale contemplated in the conditional agreement is further extended during
the current period until the receipt of applicable regulatory approvals and satisfaction of other conditions
precedent specified therein and therefore profit or loss expected from the above sale has not yet been
determined.
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial

information (continued)

11 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

(continued)

b) Quoted shares with a fair value of KI035,201 thousand (31 December 2020: KID29,788 thousand and 30
September 2020: KID28,457 thousand) and unquoted shares with a fair value of KID384 thousand (31
December 2020: KD320 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID157 thousand) are secured against bank

borrowings (Note 13).

12 Investment in associates

The movement in associates during the petriod/year is as follows:

30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Balance at 1 January 315,602 324,781 324,781
Additions during the period/year 2,451 5,626 2,131
Share of results 19,641 5517 7,844
Disposal (120) (1,328) -
Impairment in value (4,917) - -
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) 5,125 (9,154) (8,994)
Dividend distribution (5,686) (8,759) (6,599)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (3,689) (1,176) (2,446)
Other adjustments 3 95 -
Balance at the end of the period/year 328,410 315,602 316,717
13 Borrowings and bonds
Total borrowings and bonds are due as follows:
30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Bonds (Note 13a) 55,000 55,000 55,000
Long term borrowings
- Current portion of long-term borrowings 70,332 198,887 155,967
- Due after more than one year 323,088 212,731 236,043
Short term borrowings 174,982 145572 157,173
623,402 612,190 604,183

a)  During the last year, the Parent Company issued unsecured bonds of KID30,000 thousand in two series
comprising of KID22,400 thousand fixed rate bonds and KID7,600 thousand floating rate bonds at face

value maturing on 11 February 2025.

b) The remaining bonds of KID25,000 thousand represents floating rate bonds and will mature on 20
December 2021. The bonds benefit from certain uncollateralized financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, investment in associate and investment in subsidiary through one of the local subsidiaries of the

Group to ensure repayment.



information (continued)

14 Share capital and dividend distributions & treasury shares

a) Share capital

As of 30 September 2021, authorized issued and fully paid share capital in cash of the Parent Company
comprised of 1,499,238,014 shares of 100 Fils each (31 December 2020: 1,427,845,728 shares and 30 September
2020: 1,427,845,728 shares).

b) Dividend distribution

At the Annual General Meeting held on 29 April 2021, the shareholders approved a bonus share of 5% which
represent 71,392,286 shares of 100 Fils each amounting to KID7,140 thousand for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: a cash dividend of 10% equivalent to 10 Fils) and approved a total amount of KID480 thousand as
remuneration to the Parent Company’s Board of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30 April 2020, the shareholders approved a cash dividend of 10%
equivalent to 10 Fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2019.

c) Treasury shares
30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
Number of shares 29,560,940 36,535,880 36,535,880
Percentage of issued shares 2.00% 2.56% 2.56%
Market value (KD ‘000) 7,124 6,430 8,805
Cost (KD'000) 23,406 30,375 30,375

During the period the Group disposed treasury shares with a cost of KID6,969 thousand for a consideration of
KID1,996 thousand resulting in the Group share of loss amounting to KIDD2,537 thousand, which has been
recognised against the Treasury share profit reserve included within other reserves, along with share of loss of the
non- controlling interest amounting to KID2,436 thousand. Reserves of the Parent Company equivalent to the
cost of the treasury shares have been earmarked as non-distributable.

15 Other components of equity

Foreign
Gain on sale currency
Statutory General of treasury translation
reserve reserve shares reserve reserve Total
KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000 KD ‘000
Balances at 1 January 2021 19,950 6,382 18,452 (11,968) 32,816
Other comprehensive income:
Loss on sale of treasury shares - - (2,537) - (2,537)
Currency translation differences - - - (2,271) (2,271)
Balances at 30 September 2021 19,950 6,382 15,915 (14,239) 28,008
Balances at 1 January 2020 19,950 6,382 18,452 (12,524) 32,260
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences - - - 356 356

Balances at 30 September 2020 19,950 6,382 18,452 (12,168) 32,616
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

17 Related party transactions

Related parties represent associates, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and other related
parties such as major shareholders and companies in which directors and key management personnel of the Group
are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise significant influence or joint control. Pricing policies
and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.

Details of significant related party transactions and balances are as follows:

30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Balances included in the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position
Due from related parties (included in accounts receivable and other
assets)
- Due from associate companies 7,173 4,986 8,247
- Due from key management personnel 70 70 70
- Due from other related parties 339 922 1,698
Due to related parties (included in accounts payable and other liabilities’
- Due to associates 20 20 20
- Due to other related parties 111 520 565
Three months ended Nine months ended
30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
KD ‘000 KD '000 KD ‘000 KD '000
Transactions included in the interim condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss
Purchase of raw materials ~ from associates 259 328 670 1,222
Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group
Short term employee benefits 953 835 2,701 3,036
Board of Directors’ remuneration (Note 14b) - - 480 -
End of service benefits 39 45 106 122
Cost of share-based payment - - - 260
992 880 3,287 3,418

Refer note 19 & note 20 for details of fiduciary assets and contingent liabilities and capital commitments held
and issued on behalf of related parties.

18 Financial instruments

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets (accounts receivable and other assets, wakala investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, short term deposits and bank balances and cash) and financial liabilities (due to banks, borrowings,
bonds and accounts payable and other habilities).

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2021 approximate their fair
values.
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

18 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table presents the financial assets which are measured at fair value in the interim condensed
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.

This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the significance of inputs used in
measuring the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (L.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows;

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
At 30 September 2021 KD’000 KD’000 KD'000 KD’000
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL
- Quoted shares 275,952 - - 275,952
- Unquoted equity participations - 147 13,939 14,086
- Managed portfolios and funds - 4,578 98,555 103,133
Financial assets at FVOCI
- Quoted shares 50,468 - - 50,468
- Unquoted equity participations - 25,464 93,393 118,857
- Managed portfolios and funds - 519 21,346 21,865
326,420 30,708 227,233 584,361
At 31 December 2020
Assets at fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL
-Quoted shares 206,244 - - 206,244
-Unquoted equity participations - 156 13,706 13,862
-Managed portfolios and funds - 3,763 89,603 93,366
Financial assets at FVOCI
-Quoted shares 41,489 - - 41,489
-Unquoted equity participations - 79,329 88,485 167,814
-Managed portfolios and funds - 499 21,116 21,615
247,733 83,747 212,910 544,390
At 30 September 2020
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL
- Quoted shares 206,285 - - 208,285
- Unquoted equity participations - 13,415 13,360 26,775
- Managed portfolios and funds - 3,545 77,581 81,126
Financial assets at FVOCI
- Quoted shares 44,042 - - 44,042
- Unquoted equity participations - 69,878 97,711 167,589
- Managed portfolios and funds - 5,435 16,983 22,418

250,327 92,273 205,635 548,235
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

18 Financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements

The Group measurement of financial assets and liabilities classified in level 3 uses valuation techniques inputs
that are not based on observable market date. The financial instruments within this level can be reconciled
from beginning to ending balances as follows:

30 Sept. 31 Dec. 30 Sept.
2021 2020 2020

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

KD '000 KD '000 KD '000
Opening balance 212,910 265,627 265,627
Net change in fair value 28,307 964 4,873
Net (disposal)/additions during the period/year (13,984) (53,681) (64,865)
Closing balance 227,233 212,910 205,635

Changing inputs to the level 3 valuations to reasonably possible alternative assumption would not change
significantly amounts recognised in profit or loss, total assets or total liabilities or total equity.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair values are unchanged compared
to the previous reporting year/period.

19 Fiduciary assets

One of the subsidiaries of the Group manages mutual funds, portfolios on behalf of related and third parties,
and maintains securities in fiduciary accounts which are not reflected in the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position. Assets under management at 30 September 2021 amounted to KID9,982
thousand (31 December 2020: KDD8,497 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID8,780 thousand) of which assets
managed on behalf of related parties amounted to KD2,993 thousand (31 December 2020: KID2,611 thousand
and 30 September 2020: KDD2,701 thousand).

20 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

As at 30 September 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding bank guarantees
amounting to KD13,461 thousand (31 December 2020: KD16,048 thousand and 30 September 2020:
KID17,523 thousand) of which an amount of KID7,000 thousand (31 December 2020: KID7,000 thousand and
30 September 2020: KD Nil) is in relation to an associate.

At the reporting date the Group had commitments for the purchase of investments, the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties totalling to KID14,884 thousand (31 December 2020:
KIDD18,828 thousand and 30 September 2020: KID16,449 thousand).
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Notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial
information (continued)

21 Gain on disposal of indirect subsidiary

During the period, one of the Group’s wholly owned local subsidiary (Al-Durra National Real Estate KSCC)
has disposed one of its wholly owned local subsidiary with net asset value of KID2,636 thousand for a
consideration of KD4,000 thousand resulting in a net gain of KID1,364 thousand. The assets of the disposed
subsidiary mainly comprised of an investment property which was carried at KID2,674 thousand.

22 Merger of one of the subsidiaries of the Group

During the current period, one of the subsidiaries of the Group, Noor Financial Investment Company KPSC
(“Noor”) has merged with one of its subsidiaries, Noor Telecommunication Holding Company - KSCC
(“NoorTel”), by way of amalgamation, in accordance with the CMA regulations, through share swap, where
the minority shareholders of NoorTel received shares of Noor in exchange. Noor became the legal successor
of NoorTel’s rights and obligations on the effective date of the merger.

The merger has resulted in a gain of KID1,436 thousand recognised in the retained earnings and a corresponding
reduction of a same amount in non-controlling interest.

23 Comparative information

Certain other comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year, and
such reclassification does not affect previously reported net assets, net equity and net results for the year or net
decrease in cash and cash equivalents.

24 Effect of COVID-19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (“COVID19”) pandemic and related global responses have caused material
disruptions to businesses around the world, leading to an economic slowdown. Governments wortldwide
imposed travel bans and strict quarantine measures in order to slow the spread of Covid-19. Business are dealing
with lost revenue and disrupted supply chains. Global and local equity markets have expetienced significant
volatility and weakness. While governments and central banks have reacted with various financial packages and
reliefs designed to stabilise economic conditions, the duration and extent of the impact of the COVID19
outbreak remains unclear at this time.

Management has updated its assumptions with respect to judgements and estimates on various account balances
which may be potentially impacted due to continued uncertainties in the volatile economic environment in
which the Group conducts its operations. The reported amounts best represent management's assessment
based on observable information. Markets, however, remain volatile and asset carrying values remain sensitive
to market fluctuations.

Management is aware that a continued and persistent disruption may negatively impact the financial position,
petformance and cash flows of the Group in the future. Management continues to closely monitor the market
trends, its supply-chain, industry reports and cash flows to minimise any negative impact on the Group.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC
Kuwait

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Industries Group Holding — Kuwaiti Public
Shareholding Company (the “Parent Company”) and Subsidiaries, (collectively the “Group™), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants IESBA Code),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below as the key
audit matters.

Valuation of investments held at fair value

The Group invests in various assets classes, of which 46% of the total assets represent investments which are
carried at fair value and classified either as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. These investments are fair valued on a basis
considered most appropriate by the management, depending on the nature of the investment, and the valuation
is performed by the Group using a fair value hierarchy as detailed in Note 34.3. 46% of these investments are
carried at fair value based on Level 1 valuations, and the balance 54% of these investments are carried at fair
value either based on Level 2 or Level 3 valuations. Fair value measurement can be a subjective area and more
so for the investments classified under level 2 and level 3 since these are valued using inputs other than quoted
prices in an active market. Given the inherent subjectivity in valuation of investments classified under level 2
and level 3, we determined this to be a key audit matter. Refer to Notes 5.13.3, 5.13.8, 6.1, 6.2, 19, 20 and 34.3
for more information on fair valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Our audit procedures included, among others, documenting and assessing the processes in place to fair value
the investment portfolio. Agreeing the carrying value of the investments to the Group’s internal and external
valuations prepared using valuation techniques, assessing and challenging the appropriateness of estimates,
assumptions and valuation methodology and obtaining supporting documentation and explanations to
corroborate the valuations.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of investments in associates

The Group’s investments in associates represent 27% of the total assets and are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting and considered for impairment in case of indication of impairment. The investment in
associates is significant to our audit due to the Group’s share of results in the associates and the carrying value
of these associates. In addition, significant management judgment and number of assumptions are required in
the assessment of impairment and the recoverable amount, including the determination of the recoverable value
of the investment based on its value-in-use, in case thetre are indicators of impairment. Further, the projected
future cash flows and discount rates used by the Group in determining the investment’s value in use ate also
subject to estimation uncertainty and sensitivity. Accordingly, we considered this as a key audit matter. Refer
to Notes 5.4, 6.1, 6.2, and 22 for more information on investment in associates.

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating management’s consideration of the impairment
indicators of investment in associates. In evaluating such consideration, we assessed whether any significant or
prolonged decline in value exists, whether there are any significant adverse changes in the technological market,
economic or legal environment in which the associate operates, or structural changes in the field of industry in
which the investee company operates, or changes in the political ot legal environment effecting the investees
business, and also whether there are any changes in the investees financial condition. For associates where there
were impairment indicators, we also reviewed management’s assessment of the recovetable value of the
investment and the valuations methods used including, where applicable, the reasonability of the cash flow
projections and discount rates used in the value in use calculations.

Other information included in the Group’s 2020 annual report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of
Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the
Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, out responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ot errof,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditot’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the ovetride of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare citcumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of
Ditectors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report
that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that
the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1
of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law, the Executive Regulations, or of the
Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred
during the year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial
position of the Parent Company.

We further report, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of provisions of the Law No. 7 of
2010 regarding Capital Market Authority (“CMA™) and its relevant regulations have occurred during the year
ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on the business or financial position of the
Parent Company.

= up

Abdullatif M. Al-Aiban (CPA)
(Licence No. 94-A)
of Grant Thornton — Al-Qatami, Al-Aiban & Partners

Kuwait
25 March 2021
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2020 2019
KD '000 KD '000
(Restated)
Sales 109,899 132,060
Cost of sales (91,613) (110,048)
Gross profit 18,286 22,012
(Loss)/income from investments 8 (18,307) 90,626
Changes in fair value of investment properties 21 (2,243) (729)
Share of results of associates 22 5,617 16,767
Profit on disposal of associates 22 - 1,576
Profit on disposal of investment property 350 -
Rental income 1,950 2,477
Interest and other income 9 3,382 3,074
Distribution costs (7,600) (8,353)
General, administrative and other expenses (23,129) (25,569)
Loss on foreign currency exchange (765) (1,065)
(22,559) 99,816
Finance costs 11 (23,761) (30,745)
Impairment in value of receivables and other assets 17 (834) (790)
Impairment in value of associates 22 - (7,748)
Impairment in value of property, plant and equipment 23 - (530)
Impairment in value of goodwill and other intangible assets 24 - (945)
(Loss)/profit before foreign taxation (47,154) 59,058
Foreign taxation reversal/(charge) 12a 1,565 (703)
(Loss)/profit before KFAS, Zakat, NLST and Directors’ remuneration (45,589) 58,355
KFAS, Zakat and NLST 12b (173) (2,452)
Directors’ remuneration - (590)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continued operations 13 (45,762) 55,313
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 7.4 (900) (1,955)
(Loss)/profit for the year (46,662) 53,358
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company (52,213) 46,353
Non-controlling interests 5,551 7,005
(Loss)/profit for the year (46,662) 53,358
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Parent Company: 14
- From continued operations (37.3) Fils 33.9 Fils
- From discontinued operations (0.2) Fils (0.8) Fils
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Parent Company 14 (37.5) Fils 33.3 Fils

The notes set out on pages 12 to 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

5

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2020 2019
KD '000 KD '000
(Loss)/profit for the year (46,662) 53,358
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
- Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (42) (4,090)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on partial disposal of
an associate - 1,547
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of associates
- Changes in fair value (3,193) 6,291
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods (3,235) 3,748
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Defined benefit plan actuarial losses (682) (34)
Net changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments designated at
FVOCI 34,174 (7,028)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of associates (5,961) 3,680
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) not being reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods 27,531 (3,382)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 24,296 366
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (22,366) 53,724
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company (34,777) 44 398
Non-controlling interests 12,411 9,326
(22,366) 53,724

T'he notes set out on pages 12 to 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2020 2019

KD '000 KD '000
Assets
Bank balances and cash 15 50,011 31,798
Short-term deposits 15 9,394 18,189
Wakala investments 16 - 1,000
Assets classified as held for sale 7.4 6,312 -
Accounts receivable and other assets 17 56,918 50,776
Inventories 18 34,819 35,048
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 313,472 410,414
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 20 230,918 203,932
Right of use of leased assets 9,642 6,532
Investment properties 21 60,260 60,445
Investment in associates 22 315,602 324,781
Property, plant and equipment 23 90,144 91,177
Goodwilt and other intangible assets 24 9,847 9,552
Total assets 1,187,339 1,244 544
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to banks 15 23,695 23,969
Accounts payable and other liabilities 25 72,936 69,190
Borrowings and bonds 26 612,190 628,603
Provisions 27 15,296 14,113
Total liabilities 724,117 735,875
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company
Share capital 28 142,784 142,784
Share premium 28 122,962 122,962
Treasury shares 29 (30,375) (30,375)
Cumulative changes in fair value 30 36,469 20,938
Other components of equity 30 32,816 32,260
Retained earnings 22,253 89,434
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company 326,909 378,003
Non-controlling interests 31 136,313 130,666
Total equity 463,222 — 508,669
Total liabilities and equity 1,1‘5?,’339 1,244,544

Sa’ad Mohammed Al-Sa’ad
Chairman

@aﬁ”‘”‘

ohammed Hassan

ief Executive Officer

The notes set out on pages 12 to 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nationa! lndusiries Group Holding - HPSC and Sulsidiaries
Gonsolidated Floanehyd $tatements
31 Degember 2020

Consolidated statement of cash flows

=3
Lo

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2020 2019
KD '000 KD '000
(Restated)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before foreign taxation (47,154) 59,058
Adjustments:
Dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI (2,348) (4,625)
Changes in fair value of investment properties 2,243 729
Share of results of associates (5,517) (15,787)
Profit on disposal of associates - (1,576)
Profit on disposal of investment property (350) -
Interest/profit on bank balances, short-term deposits and wakala

investments (610) (1,095)
Net provisions charged 1,183 540
Depreciation and amortisation 8,122 9,343
Impairment in value of goodwill and other intangible assets - 945
Impairment in value of associates - 7,748
Impairment in value of receivable and other assets 834 790
Impairment in value of property plant and equipment - 530
Finance costs 23,761 30,745

(19,836) 87,365

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories 1,105 639
Accounts receivable and other assets (6,662) 3,953
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 96,942 (45,701)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (1,176) (7,488)
Cash from operations 70,373 38,768
Taxation paid (171) (1,332)
KFAS, Zakat and NLST paid (124) (382)
Net cash from continuing operations 70,078 37,054
Net cash (used)/from discontinuing operations (1,948) 168
Net cash from operating activities 68,130 37,222

The notes set out on pages 12 to 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

i1

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec. 31 Dec.
Note 2020 2019
KD '000 KD '000
- (Restated)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (13,342) (10,078)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 55 381
Additions to investment properties (3,574) (10,351)
Investment in associates (5,626) (2,997)
Dividend received from associate companies 8,759 9,619
Proceeds from disposal/capital reduction of associates 1,328 7,505
Proceeds from sale of investment property 1,900 -
Purchase of financial assets at FVOCI (786) (1,988)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVOCI 7,974 9,931
Dividend income on financial assets at FVOCI 2,348 4 625
Increase/(decrease) of short-term deposits maturing after 3 months 1,164 (2,414)
Decrease in wakala investments 1,000 -
Addition to intangible assets (191) -
Interest/profit on bank balances, short-term deposits, wakala
investments 555 310
Net cash from investing activities from continuing operations 1,564 4,543
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities from discontinued
operations 2,496 (227)
Net cash from investing activities 4,060 4,316
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease)/increase in borrowings (16,413) 26,206
Dividend paid to the owners of the Parent Company (13,287) (15,392)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest (2,940) (8,195)
Finance costs paid (24,296) (30,191)
Change in non-controlling interests (3,824) (7,863)
Net cash used in financing activities (60,760) (35,435)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,430 6,103
Translation difference (11) 4)
11,419 6,099
Cash and cash equivalents attributable to the disposed group and
indirect subsidiaries (563) (699)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 23,598 18,198
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 34,454 23,598

The notes set out on pages 12 10 75 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statementy.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Incorporation and activities

National Industries Group Holding — KPSC (“the Parent Company”) was incorporated in 1961 as a Kuwaiti
shareholding company in accordance with the Commetcial Companies Law in the State of Kuwait and in April
2003, 1ts status was transformed to a “Holding Company”. The Parent Company along with its subsidiaries are
jointly referred to as “the Group”. The Parent Company’s shares are traded on the Kuwait Stock Exchange
and Dubai Financial Market.

The main objectives of the Parent Company are as follows:

- Owning stocks and shares in Kuwaiti or non-IKuwaiti shareholding companies and shares in Kuwaiti or
non-Kuwait limited liability companies and participating in the establishment of, lending to and managing
of these companies and acting as a guarantor for these companies.

- Lending money to companies in which it owns 20% or more of the capital of the borrowing company,
along with acting as guarantor on behalf of these companies.

- Owning industrial equities such as patents, industrial trademarks, royalties, or any other related rights, and
franchising them to other companies or using them within or outside the State of Kuwait.

- Owning real estate and moveable property to conduct its operations within the limits as stipulated by law.

- Employing excess funds available with the group by investing them in investment and real estate
portfolios managed by specialised companies.

The address of the Parent Company’s registered office is PO Box 417, Safat 13005, State of Kuwait.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved these consolidated financial statements for issuance
on 25 March 2021. The general assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these
consolidated financial statements after issuance.

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include
the revaluation properties, the measurement at fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and investment propetties.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KID”) and all values ate rounded to
the nearest thousand (KID 000), except when otherwise indicated.

3 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the
TIASB.

4 Changes in accounting policies

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
which have been adopted by the Group. Information on these new standards which are relevant to the Group,
is presented below:

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annual periods beginning
IFRS 3 — Amendments — Definition of Business 1 January 2020
IAS 1 and IAS 8 — Amendments — Definition of Material 1 January 2020

TFRS 16 — Amendments — Covid 19 Rent Related Concessions 1 June 2020
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)
Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2020, but are not relevant and/or do
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Group has not early adopted any other standatd, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.

IFRS 3 — Amendments- Definition of Business
The Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations are changes to Appendix A Defined terms, the application
guidance, and the illustrative examples of IFRS 3 only with respect to Definition of Business. The amendments:

e clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to cteate outputs;

¢ narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs;

* add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been
acquired,;

e remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs; and

® add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business

The application of the amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

TAS 1 and IAS 8 — Amendments

The amendments to TAS 1 and IAS 8 clarify the definition of ‘material’ and align the definition used in the
Conceptual Framework and the standards. The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed
from ‘could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’.

The application of the amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 16 — Amendments- COVID19 Rent Related Concessions .

IFRS 16 contains specific requirements when accounting for changes to lease payments and rent concessions
are in the scope of these requirements. Lessees are required to assess whether rent concessions are lease
modifications, and if they are, there is specific accounting to be applied. However, applying these requirements
to potentially a significant number of leases could be difficult, particularly from a practical perspective due to
pressures resulting from the pandemic.

The practical expedient allows lessees to elect to not carry out an assessment to decide whether a COVID-19-
related rent concession received is a lease modification. The lessee is permitted to account for the rent
concession as if the change is not a lease modificaton.

The practical expedient is only applicable to rent concessions provided as a direct result of the COVID-19
pandemic. The relief is only for lessees that are granted these rent concessions. There are no changes for lessors.

All of the following conditions need to be met:

¢ The rent concession provides relief to payments that overall results in the consideration for the lease
contract being substantially the same or less than the original consideration for the lease immediately
before the concession was provided.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

q Changes in accounting policies (continued)

4.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

IFRS 16 — Amendments- COVID19 Rent Related Concessions (continued)

* The rent concession is for relief for payments that were originally due on or before 30 June 2021. So
payments included are those required to be reduced on or before 30 June 2021, but subsequent rental
increases of amounts deferred can go beyond 30 June 2021.

e There are no other substantive changes to the other terms and conditdons of the lease.

The application of the amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not expected to be relevant and/or have a matetial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for annnal periods beginning
IFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Ventute - Amendments No stated date

IAS 16 — Amendments — Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022

TAS 37 — Amendments — Onerous contracts -Cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

TAS 1 — Amendments — Classification of liabilities as cutrent or non-current 1 January 2023

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investot and its Associate or Joint
Venture - Amendments

The Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and TAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (2011) clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate
or joint venture, as follows:

* require full recognition in the investor's financial statements of gains and losses atising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations)

®  require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.c. a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture — Amendments (continued)

These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or contribution
of assets occurs by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in loss of
control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

IASB has postponed the effective date indefinitely until othetr projects are completed. However, eatly
implementation is allowed. Management anticipates that the application of these amendments may have an
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in future should such transactions arise.

TAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before intended use

The amendment prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an
entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit ot loss.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendment in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IAS 37 Amendments — Onerous contracts- Cost of fulfilling a contract
The amendments specify which costs an entity includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling
the contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of othet costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

The amendments are only to be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all of its obligations
at the beginning of the annual period in which it first applies the amendments.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendment in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendment to TAS 1 simplifies the application of IFRS 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter
after its parent in relation to the measutement of cumulative translation differences. Subsidiary that is a first-
time adopter later than its parent might have been required to keep two parallel sets of accounting records for
cumulative translation differences based on different dates of transition to IFRSs. However, the amendment
extends the exemption to cumulative translation differences to reduce costs for fitst-time adoptets.

Amendment to IFRS 9 relates to the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabiliies — In
determining whether to derecognise a financial liability that has been modified or exchanged, an entity assesses
whether the terms are substantially different. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
4.2 IASB Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle (continued)

Lease Incentives — amendment to illustrative examples — The IASB was informed about the potential for
confusion in applying IFRS 16 Leases because of how Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 had
illustrated the requirements for lease incentives. Before the amendment, Illustrative Example 13 had included
as part of the fact pattern a reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements; the example had not explained
clearly enough the conclusion as to whether the reimbursement would meet the definition of a lease incentive
in IFRS 16. The TASB decided to remove the potential for confusion by deleting from Illustrative Example 13
the reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

TAS 1 Amendments - Classification of liabilities as curtent ot non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify the classification of a liability as either current or non-curtent is based on the
entity’s rights at the end of the reporting period. Stating management expectations around whether they will
defer settlement or not does not impact the classification of the liability. It has added guidance about lending
conditions and how these can impact classification and has included requitements for liabilities that can be
settled using an entity’s own instruments.

Management does not anticipate that the adoption of the amendments in the future will have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5 Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies and measurements bases adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarised below:

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Parent Company and all of its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group and they are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaties are prepared for reporting dates which are typically not more than
three months from that of the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made
for the effect of any significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the reporting date of
the Parent Company’s financial statements. The details of the significant subsidiaties are set out in Note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales
are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from a Group petspective.

Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
conststency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation (continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiaty and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaties acquired
or disposed of during the year are recognised from the date the Group gains control, or until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary, as applicable.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the pottion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of
subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their respective
ownership interests. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results
in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiaty, it:

® Derecognizes the assets (including goodwilly and liabilities of the subsidiary

® Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

® Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

e Recognizes the fair value of the consideration recetved

¢ Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

¢ Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

® Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income

to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group has directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

5.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements ptior to the acquisition.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.2 Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the
sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquitee, over the acquisition-
date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated
above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss immediately.

5.3 Goodwill and other intangible assets

5.3.1 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognised. See note 24 for information on how goodwill is initially determined.
Goodwill is cartied at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to Note 5.12 for a description of
impairment testing procedures.

5.3.2 Other intangible assets
Identifiable non-monetary assets acquired in as business combination and from which future benefits are
expected to flow are treated as intangible assets. Intangible assets comprise of Indefeasible Rights of Use (IRU).

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized over their useful lives. For acquired network businesses
whose operations are governed by fixed term licenses, the amortisation period is determined primarily by
reference to the unexpired license petiod and the conditions for license renewal.

[RU are the rights to use a portion of the capacity of a terrestrial or submarine transmission cable granted for
a fixed period. IRUs are recognised at cost as an asset when the Group has the specific indefeasible right to use
an tdentified portion of the underlying asset, generally optical fibres ot dedicated wave length bandwidth and
the duration of the right is for the major part of the underlying asset’s economic life. They are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the expected period of use and the life of the contract which ranges
between 10 to 15 years.

5.4 Investment in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but which are neither
subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the Group’s share
in the associate is not recognised separately and is included in the amount recognised as investment in
associates.

Under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

The share of results of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statements of profit or loss. This
s the profit attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.4 Investment in associates (continued)

The difference in reporting dates of the associates and the Group is not more than three months. Adjustments
are made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The associate’s accounting policies conform to those used by the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to tecognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount under a separate heading in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any differences between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5=5 Segment reporting

The Group has four operating segments: Investment, building matetials, specialist engineering and hotel and
IT services segments. In identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s
service lines representing its main products and services. Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each requires different approaches and other resources.

For management purposes, the Group uses the same measurement policies as those used in its financial
statements. In addition, assets or liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

5.6 Revenue
Revenue arises from sale of goods, rendering of services, investing and real estate activities.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control of a product or service to a customer. The Group follows a 5-step process:

1 Identifying the contract with a customer

2 Identifying the performance obligations

3 Determining the transaction price

4 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) ate satisfied

The Group often enters into transactions involving a range of the Group’s products and services.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.6 Revenue (continued)
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

5.6.1  Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customers generally upon delivery or shipment of the goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods with no significant service obligation is recognised on delivery.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration and consideration
payable to the customer (if any).

5.6.2 Rendering of services

The Group generates revenues from after-sales service and maintenance, consulting, hotel operations, 1T
services and construction contracts. Consideration received for these services is initially deferred, included in
other liabilities and is tecognised as revenue in the period when the setvice is performed.

In recognising after-sales service and maintenance revenues, the Group considers the nature of the services and
the customer’s use of the related products, based on historical experience.

The Group also renders hotel services and revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the accounting
petiod in which the services are rendered or performed. Room revenue is recognised on the rooms occupied
on a daily basis and food and beverage and other related sales are accounted for at the time of sale.

The Group earns fees and commission income from diverse range of asset management, investment banking,
custody, consulting and brokerage services provided to its customers. Fees and commission income are
recognised over the period of the service.

5.6.3 Interest income
Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

5.6.4 Dividend income
Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, are recognised at the time the right to
recetve payment is established.

5.6.5 Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised as noted in Note 5.10.

5.7 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their origin.

5.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessaty to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance costs.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.9 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value of propetty,
plant and equipment, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings Lower of 50 years or remaining useful life
Long leasehold property Lower of 50 years or remaining lease term
Short leasehold property Lease term

Property on leasehold land 4 to 20 years

Plant and machinery 1 to 20 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

Any increase arising on revaluation is credited directly to other comprehensive income as “revaluation reserve”
except to the extent where the increase reverses a revaluation decrease related to the same asset for which a
decrease in valuation has previously been recognised as an expense, it is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any decrease in the net cartying amount arising on revaluation is charged directly to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, or charged to the revaluation resetve to the extent that the decrease is
related to an increase for the same asset which was previously recorded as a credit to the revaluation surplus.

Depreciation on the re-valued properties is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over their
remaining estimated useful lives and an amount equivalent to the excess depreciation charge relating to the
increase in carrying amount is transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

No depreciation is provided on frechold land. Properties in the course of construction for production ot
administrative purposes are cartied at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets,
which is on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

5.10 Leases

The Group as a lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2020, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a petiod of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

¢ the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract ot implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group

* the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract

* the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout

the period of use.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.10 Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet
measured as follows:

Right-of nse asset

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent to initial measurement, the Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from
the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset ot the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the tight-of-use asset for mpairment when such indicators exist.

Lease lability

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability is reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group as a lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties. The
Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. When the terms of a lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head-lease and sub-lease as two separate contacts.
The sub-lease is classified as finance lease or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use of asset arising
from the head-lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over lease term. Initial direct cost
incurred in arranging and negotiating a lease are added to the carrying amount of the lease assets and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.10 Leases (continued)

Amounts due under finance leases are recognised as receivables. Finance lease income is allocated to the
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
for the finance lease.

511 Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and are accounted for
using the fair value model.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently, investment
properties are re-measured at fair value on an individual basis based on valuations by independent real estate
valuers and are included in the consolidated statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are taken to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognised when either they have been disposed of ot when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property ate recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement ot disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is 2 change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under propetty, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use.

512  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a tesult, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within
the Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Group’s management as
equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or
cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from the asset or each cash-generating unit
and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used
for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as
necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements.

Discount factors are determined individually for each asset or cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risks factors.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

512  Impairment testing of goodwill and non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that
cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is chatged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

5.13 Financial instruments

5.13.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by directly attributable
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at
fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset ot part of group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised when:

o rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired,

® the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement;
and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transfetred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ot modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designhated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

* financial assets at amortised cost
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
* financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive (FVOCI)
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.13  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.2  Classification of financial assets
The classification is determined by both:

¢ the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset
¢ the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

The Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

*the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if certain criteria are met (Note 5.13.3); and

the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVOCI criteria as
measured at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. In this period
presented, no such irrevocable designation has been made.

5.13.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

* they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these ate measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise of the following:

o Wakala investments

Wakala is an agreement whereby the Group provides a sum of money to a financial institution under an agency
arrangement, who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a fee. The agent is obliged to return
the amount is in case of default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of Wakala.

o Bank balances, cash and short term deposirs
Cash on hand and demand deposits are classified under bank balances and cash and short term deposits
represent deposits placed with financial institutions with a maturity of less than one year.

o Receivables and other financial assets
Trade receivable are stated at original invoice amount less allowance for impairment.

Receivables which are not categorised under any of the above are classified as “Other receivables/Other
financial assets”
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.13  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.3 Subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI are categorised at
fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model financial assets whose contractual
cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those desighated and effective as hedging instruments, for which
the hedge accounting requirements apply. The category also contains investments in equity shares.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL comprise of the following:

- Investment in managed portfolios and funds
- Investment in guoted shares

-~ Investment in unguoted equity participation

Financial assets at FVOCI
The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI comprise of investments in managed portfolios and funds, equity shares
(quoted shares and unquoted equity participation).

On initial recognition, the Group may make irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity insttuments as at FVOCI. Designate at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subsequently, they ate measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comptehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss is transferred to retained earnings within the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
513  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.4 Impairment of financial assets :
The Group computes expected credit losses (IECL) on the following financial instruments that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss:

=  Bank balances
®  Short term deposits
®  Wakala and sukuk investments

®  Accounts receivables and other financial assets

The Group recognises ECL on investment in debt instruments measured at amortised cost on balances and
deposits with banks and other assets. Equity instruments are not subject to Expected Credit Losses.

Expected Credit Losses
The Group applies three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) as follows:

Stage 1: 12 months ECL

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12-month ECL on financial assets where there has
not been significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition or on exposures that are determined to
have a low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when
its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaited
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL on financial assets whete there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL on financial assets that are determined
to be credit impaired based on objective evidence of impairment.

Life ime ECL is ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12 month ECL is the portion of life time expected credit loss that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Both life time ECLs and 12 month ECLs ate calculated
on either an individual basis or a collective basis depending on the nature of the undetlying portfolio of financial
insttuments.

Determining the stage of impairment

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is credit
impaired. The Group considers a financial asset to be credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred or when contractual
payments are 90 days past due.

At each reporting date, the Group also assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the
reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The quantitative criteria used to
determine a significant increase in credit risk is a seties of relative and absolute thresholds. All financial assets
that are 30 days past due are deemed to have significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
migrated to stage 2 even if other critetia do not indicate a significant increase in credit risk.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
513  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Expected Credit Losses (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses and are measutred as the present value of all cash
shortfalls discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial instrument. Cash shortfall represent the
difference between cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to recetve. The key elements in the measurement of ECL include probability of default (PD),
loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group estimates these elements using appropriate
credit risk models taking into consideration the internal and external credit ratings of the assets, nature and
value of collaterals, forward looking macro-economic scenarios ete.

The Group has applied simplified approach to impairment for trade and other assets as permitted under the
standard. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

5.13.5 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trust certificates issued, botrowings, leasing creditors, due to banks,
trade payables and other liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

The subsequent measurement of financial labilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial Iiabilities at armortised cost
These are stated at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The Group categorises financial liabilities
at amortised cost into the following categoties:

®  Borrowings

All borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

e Bonds

Bonds are stated on the consolidated statement of financial position at their principal amount, net of directly
related costs of issuing the bonds to the extent that such costs have not been amortised. These costs are
amortised through the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest rate method.

Finance cost is charged as an expense as it accrues, with unpaid amounts included in accounts payable and
other liabilities.

o Wakala payables
Walkala payables represent short-term borrowings under Islamic principles, whereby the Group receives funds
for the purpose of financing its investment activities and are stated at amortised cost.



g
@

Nattong! Indusivies Group Holding ~ NPSE and Subsidiswies
Lonsoiidated Flonnoiad Statemants

3t Dovomber 202G

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.13  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.5 C(lassification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

o Murabaha finance payables

Murabaha finance payables represent amounts payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased
under murabaha arrangements. Murabaha finance payables are stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of
deferred finance cost. Deferred finance cost is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the
borrowing rate attributable and the balance outstanding.

o Jjara financing

Ijara finance payable ending with ownership is an Islamic financing arrangement through which a financial
institution provides finance to purchase an asset by way of renting the asset ending with transferring its
ownership. This fjara finance payable is stated at the gross amount of the payable, net of deferred finance cost.
Deferred finance costs are expensed on a time apportionment basis taking into account the borrowing rate
attributable and the balance outstanding.

o Acounts payables and other financial liabilities

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the supplier or not, and classified as trade payables. [inancial liabilities other than at FVTPL which are not
categorised under any of the above are classified as “Other financial liabilities”

All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are accounted
for at FVTPL.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or
loss, are included within finance costs or other income.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
Financial Labilities at 'VTPL are either held for trading or designated as such on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as
hedging instruments ate accounted for at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Where the Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate to mitigate its risks associated with
interest rate fluctuations, such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair
value on the date on which a detivative contract is entered into, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
The fair value of a derivative is the equivalent of the unrealised gain or loss from marking to market the
derivative using valuation quotes provided by financial institutions, based on prevailing market information.
Dertvatives, if any, are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabiliies when the fair value is
negative. The Group does not adopt hedge accounting, and any realised and unrealised (from changes in fair
value) gain or losses are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
5.13  Financial instruments (continued)

5.13.6  Amortised cost of financial instruments

This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes
into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate.

5.13.7  Offserting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.13.8 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positons), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent atm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation
models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided
in Note 34.

5.14 Inventories :

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses directly attributable
to the manufacturing process as well as suitable portions of related production overheads, based on normal
operating capacity. Costs of ordinarily interchangeable items are assigned using the weighted average cost
formula.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses.

5.15  Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued and paid up.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with
the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Statutory and voluntary reserves comprise appropriations of current and prior petiod profits in accordance with
the requirements of the companies’ law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association.

Other components of equity include the following:

* foreign currency translation reserve — comprises foreign currency translation differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the Group’s foreign entities into KID and the Group’s shate of foreign
currency translation reserves shown in the associates statement of financial position.

¢ Cumulative changes in fair value — comptises gains and losses relating to financial assets at FVOCI

Retained earnings include all cutrent and prior period profit retained/(losses) incurred. All transactions with
owners of the Parent Company are recorded separately within equity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

5.15  Equity, reserves and dividend payments (continued)
Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholdets are included in other labilities when the dividends have
been approved in a General Assembly meeting.

516  Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group
and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this
method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity.

When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity, (the “gain on sale of
treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the
extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the
voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend
shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without
affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

5.17  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditute required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting dat